
      
 

Session No. 10Session No. 10
MAY 11, 2023MAY 11, 2023

 April N.M. Baskin
Chair

Timothy J. Meyers
Majority Leader

John J. Mills
Minority Leader

Robert M. Graber
Clerk of the Legislature

      

ROLL CALLROLL CALL
 

INVOCATION - Mr. MalczewskiINVOCATION - Mr. Malczewski
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mr. KooshoianPLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mr. Kooshoian
 

TABLED ITEMSTABLED ITEMS
 

ITEMS FOR RECONSIDERATION FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGITEMS FOR RECONSIDERATION FROM PREVIOUS MEETING
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGMINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
 

Minutes for Meeting No. 8    
 

Minutes for Meeting No. 9    
 

PUBLIC HEARINGPUBLIC HEARING
 

MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS:MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS:
 

 
BASKIN  Celebrating and Honoring National Nurses Week

 

 

 
BASKIN  Recognizing Apraxia Awareness Day

 

 

 
TODARO  Honoring the Elwood Jordans Insurance Agency

as the Alden Chamber of Commerce 2023
Business of the Year

 

 

 
TODARO  Recognizing Coach McKenzie Bezon, 2023 All-

Bee Girls' Basketball Coach of the Year

 

 

 
TODARO  Honoring Tyler DeKruger on Achieving the

Rank of Eagle Scout

 

 

 
TODARO  Honoring Luciano Grande on Achieving the

Rank of Eagle Scout

 

 

 
TODARO  Honoring Eric Frys on Achieving the Rank of

Eagle Scout

 

 

 
VINAL  Acknowledging and Honoring Geoffrey and

Robin Klein

 

 

 
BASKIN  Honoring and Recognizing The Phi Omega

Chapter of Omega Psi Phi Fraternity, Inc. --

 



100th Year Anniversary
 

 
VINAL  Honoring Gary Schautt -- Celebrating 50 Years

of Service with the Eggertsville Hose Company  

 

 

 
JOHNSON  Recognizing Military Appreciation Month 2023

 

 

 
VINAL  Honoring Past Fire Chief John Daniels -- 50

Years of Service with the Eggertsville Hose
Company  

 

 

 
MAJORITY CAUCUS  Recognizing National Blood Pressure Month -

May 2023

 

 

 
MAJORITY CAUCUS  Honoring National Lupus Awareness Month -

May 2023

 

 

 
BASKIN  Acknowledging Shai Arnold and For Grieving

Daughters Organization Celebrating 4th Annual
Motherless-Daughter Brunch 

 

 

 
GREENE  Honoring Brothers of Mercy Wellness Campus

on National Nursing Home Week

 

 

 
GREENE  Honoring and Congratulating Police Officer

Keith Felgemacher on His Retirement

 

 

 
GREENE  Honoring and Congratulating Amherst Police

Officer Scott Banning on His Retirement

 

 

 
GREENE  Honoring the Cystic Fibrosis Association of

Western New York and Recognizing Cystic
Fibrosis Awareness Month in Erie County

 

 

 
MALCZEWSKI  Recognizing Lyme WNY During Lyme Disease

Awareness Month

 

 

 
MILLS  Honoring Fox Run at Orchard Park on National

Nursing Home Week

 

 

 
MILLS  Honoring the Jennie B. Richmond Nursing

Home During National Nursing Home Week

 

 

 
MILLS  Celebrating the Wayland Brewing Company on

Its Grand Opening

 

 

 
TODARO  Recognizing the Correctional Officers at the Erie

County Holding Center During National
Correctional Officers' Week May 7-13, 2023

 

 

 
TODARO  Recognizing the Correctional Officers at the Erie

County Correctional Facility During National

 



Correctional Officers' Week May 7-13, 2023
 

 
MILLS  Honoring Stanley Brown for Serving Our

Country and Community

 

 

 
MALCZEWSKI  Congratulating Anna Tavernier for Winning the

2023 Youth of the Year Competition

 

 

 
TODARO  Honoring Christopher Gust for Being Named

Alden Chamber of Commerce 2023 Citizen of
the Year

 

 

LOCAL LAWS:LOCAL LAWS:
 

 
LL INTRO. 1-1
(2022)

 TODARO, GREENE,
LORIGO & MILLS

 A Local Law Authorizing Twelve
and Thirteen-Year-Old Licensed
Hunters to Hunt Deer with a
Firearm or Crossbow During
Hunting Season with the
Supervision of a Licensed Adult 

 Energy & 
Environment

 

 
LL INTRO. 3-1
(2022)

 BASKIN, MEYERS,
JOHNSON, VINAL
& GILMOUR

 The Erie County Language Access
Act

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
LL INTRO. 3-1
(2023)

 JOHNSON  The Occupancy Tax Modernization
Act

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
LL INTRO. 2-2
(2023)

 BASKIN, MEYERS,
JOHNSON, VINAL,
KOOSHOIAN,
BARGNESI &
GILMOUR

 The Public Art Act of Erie County
 

 Community 
Enrichment

 

 
LL INTRO. 5-1
(2023)

 GILMOUR  The Service-Disabled Veterans
Utilization Act

 
 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS:COMMITTEE REPORTS:
 

 
REPORT No. 6  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
REPORT No. 6  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE  

 

 

LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS:LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS:
 

 
INTRO. 10-1  BASKIN  RENEW Plan Funding Re-

Allocation
 

 

 

 
INTRO. 10-2  MALCZEWSKI  Supporting the Separation of Policy

and Financial Issues in the New
York State Budget

 
 



 
 
INTRO. 10-3  TODARO  Supporting Kyra's Law in the New

York State Senate and Assembly
 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE:COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE:
 

 
COMM. 4E-9  From the Energy &

Environment
Committee

 From the County Executive - ECSD
No. 5 RFP - Transit Road Corridor
Sanitary Sewer Service Evaluation
Report

 
 

 

    ****Proposed Amendment to
COMM. 4E-9 (2023)

  

 

 
COMM. 6E-10  From the Energy &

Environment
Committee

 From the County Executive - ECSD
No. 6 - Ridgewood Village Sanitary
Sewer Service Lateral Connection
Lining Project

 
 

 

    ****Proposed Amendment to
COMM. 6E-10 (2023)

  

 

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES:SUSPENSION OF THE RULES:
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS:COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS:
 

 
COMM. 10E-1  SHERIFF  EC Sheriff's Office - NYS Canal

Corporation Marine Patrol Grant
 Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 10E-2  MEYERS  Letter of Absence for Session No. 9

- May 4, 2023
 RFP

 

 
COMM. 10E-3  BARGNESI  Submission Pursuant to EC Code of

Ethics (Local Law #2 -2018),
Disclosure of Family Members
Employed by Any Government
Organization

 RFP

 

 
COMM. 10E-4  COMPTROLLER  Interim Financial Report of Erie

County
 Finance & 

Management
 

 
COMM. 10E-5  MINORITY

CAUCUS
 Constituent Concern  Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 10E-6  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Submission Pursuant to EC Code of

Ethics (Local Law #2 -2018),
Disclosure of Family Members
Employed by Any Government
Organization

 RFP

 

 
COMM. 10E-7  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Buffalo Convention Center -

Sidewalk Vault Rehabilitation
Project

 Economic 
Development



 

 
COMM. 10E-8  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Erie County - On-Call Electrical

Engineering Consultant
 Economic 

Development

 

 
COMM. 10E-9  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Enter Into Contract

for Rath Building - 15th Floor
Amendment

 Economic 
Development

 

 
COMM. 10E-10  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 On-Call General Civil Engineering

& Land Survey Services RFP
 Immediate

Consideration Requested
 

 
COMM. 10E-11  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Transfer of Funds to Capital Project  Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 10E-12  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Enter Into Contract

with the Recreational Off-Highway
Vehicle Association

 Economic 
Development

 

 
COMM. 10E-13  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Acceptance of State Aid for Safe

Harbor for Sexually Exploited
Children

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
COMM. 10E-14  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Enter Into Contract

with Dr. Iram Ashraf
 Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 10E-15  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Appointment to the EC Senior

Services Advisory Board
 Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 10E-16  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Enter Into Contract

for Transportation Consultant for
Older Adult & Disabled Populations

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
COMM. 10E-17  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Award 2023

Summer Operation Primetime
Contracts

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
COMM. 10E-18  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Appointment to the EC Health

Equity Advisory Board
 Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 10E-19  SHERIFF  Accept Donation of Sanitation

Supplies
 Public Safety

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS:COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS:
 

 
COMM. 10D-1  DIRECTOR OF

BUDGET &
MANAGEMENT

 February 2023 Budget Monitoring
Report

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
COMM. 10D-2  DEPUTY

COMPTROLLER OF
AUDIT

 EC Comptroller's Office Audit of
the EC Clerk's Office - Notification
of Expanded Scope & Separation
into Two Audits

 Government 
Affairs



 

 
COMM. 10D-3  COUNTY

ATTORNEY
 Transmittal of New Claims Against

Erie County
 Government 

Affairs
 

 
COMM. 10D-4  BUDGET

DIRECTOR
 Information Request Per INTRO. 7-

3 (2023)
 Finance & 

Management
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES:COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES:
 

 
COMM. 10M-1  ASSIGNED

COUNSEL
PROGRAM

 Quarterly Report of Assigned
Counsel Program - 1st Quarter of
2023

 Government 
Affairs

 

 
COMM. 10M-2  ECIDA  ECIDA 2022 Annual Financial

Statements 
 Government 

Affairs
 

 
COMM. 10M-3  NYSERDA  Notice of Intent to Undertake an

Action Within an Agricultural
District - RPNY Solar 11, LLC's
Two Rod Road Project in the Town
of Marilla

 Energy & 
Environment

 

 
COMM. 10M-4  NYSERDA  Notice of Intent to Undertake an

Action Within an Agricultural
District - RPNY Solar 10, LLC's
Stolle Road Solar Project in the
Town of Marilla

 Energy & 
Environment

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:ANNOUNCEMENTS:
 

MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS:MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS:
 

ADJOURNMENT:ADJOURNMENT:
 

 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
Minutes for Meeting No. 8   

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Minutes for Meeting No. 8



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

321 

ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023 

  
The Legislature was called to order by Chair Baskin.  
 
All members present, except Legislators Meyers and Mills. 

  
An Invocation was held, led by Mr. Gilmour, who requested a moment of silence. 

  
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Johnson. 
   

Item 1 – No tabled items. 
 

 Item 2 – No items for reconsideration from previous meeting. 
 
 Item 3 – MR. GILMOUR moved for the approval of the minutes for Meeting Number 7 from 
2023.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 Item 4 – No Public Hearings. 
 

 
MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS 

 
 Item 5 – Miscellaneous Resolutions were offered, as follows: 
 
JOHNSON     Congratulating and Recognizing Wane Thomas Barnes  
     on a Phenomenal Career  
  
BASKIN & JOHNSON   Remembering the Life of Quinton R. Smith  
  
JOHNSON & GILMOUR   In Remembrance of Duryll S.D. Anderson  
  
MINORITY CAUCUS   Honoring Jeff Miers on His Retirement from the Buffalo News  
  
MILLS     Honoring Marilyn Cordia for Over 50 Years of Service to the  
     Farnham Volunteer Fire Department Ladies Auxiliary  
  
MILLS     Honoring Superintendent James Bialasik on School  
     Lunch Hero Day  
  
MILLS     Honoring Cafeteria Staff on “School Lunch Hero Day”  
  
GREENE     Recognizing Summit Center and Proclaiming April as Autism  
     Awareness Month in Erie County 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

322 

     
GREENE     Recognizing the Farooq Family for Their Efforts to Improve  
     Our Environment              
  
TODARO     Honoring Mark Pruitt for Thirty-Four Years of Service to the  
     Village of Alden Department of Public Works  
  
TODARO     Honoring and Celebrating Ronny’s Take Out Pizza on its 40th  
     Anniversary  
  
TODARO     Honoring the Bowmansville Garden Club on National  
     Gardening Day  
  
TODARO     Honoring the Lancaster Garden Club on National  
     Gardening Day  
  
TODARO     Honoring and Congratulating Chief William Karn on  
     His Retirement  
  
VINAL     Indian Heritage Month (May 2023)  
  
JOHNSON     National Black Barbershop Appreciation Day  
  
MAJORITY CAUCUS   Recognizing National Library Workers Day  
  
JOHNSON     Recognizing Military Appreciation Month 2023  
  
BASKIN     Honoring The Buffalo Club of the National Association of  
     Negro Business and Professional Women's Clubs Inc. –  
     Acknowledging "Sojourner Truth Day" in Buffalo  
  
BASKIN     Celebrating and Honoring Día de los Ninos/El Día de los  
     Libros (Children's Day/Book Day)  
  
BARGNESI & KOOSHOIAN  Recognizing Eileen Koteras Elibol - Newest Member of  
     the KVIS  
  
BARGNESI     Honoring James P. Stauffiger Town of Tonawanda Police  
     Chief - Citizen of the Month, April 2023  
  
VINAL     Congratulating and Recognizing C.R. Rao - 2023 International  
     Prize in Statistics Recipient  
  
VINAL     In Remembrance of Kara Margaret Stein  
  
MALCZEWSKI     Celebrating the 75th Anniversary of the East Aurora American  
     Legion Post 362 Auxiliary 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

323 

 MALCZEWSKI    Commemorating the 40th Anniversary of the East Aurora  
     Vietnam Veterans Club  
  
GREENE     Celebrating National Adopt a Shelter Pet Day in Erie County  
     and Recognizing Buddy’s Second Chance Rescue  
  
TODARO     Honoring Erie 1 BOCES’ Career and Technical Education on  
     National Skilled Trades Day  
  
GREENE     Recognizing Akron Central Schools Nutrition Service Staff on  
     “School Lunch Hero Day” 
 
 MR. GILMOUR moved for consideration of the above twenty-nine items.  MR. JOHNSON 
seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 MR. GILMOUR moved to amend the above twenty-nine items by including Et Al 
Sponsorship.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 MR. GILMOUR moved for approval of the above twenty-nine items as amended.  MR. 
TODARO seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
  
 

LOCAL LAWS 
 
 Item 6 – CHAIR BASKIN directed that Local Law No. 1 (Print #1) 2022 remain on the table 
and in the ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE.  
  
 GRANTED. 
 
 Item 7 – CHAIR BASKIN directed that Local Law No. 3 (Print #1) 2022 remain on the table 
and in the HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE.  
  
 GRANTED.   
  
 Item 8 – CHAIR BASKIN directed that Local Law No. 3 (Print #1) 2023 remain on the table 
and in the FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.  
  
 GRANTED. 
 
 Item 9 – MR. GILMOUR moved to take Local Law Intro. No. 1 (Print #2) 2023 from the 
table.  MR. TODARO seconded. 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

324 

 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

LOCAL LAW TO BE ENACTED BY 
THE ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 

IN THE 
COUNTY OF ERIE 

LOCAL LAW INTRO. – NO. 1-2 - 2023 
LOCAL LAW – NO.                 -  2023 

 
Providing for 10% property tax exemptions for Volunteer Firefighters and Ambulance workers in 
Erie County 
 
SECTION 1: Legislative Intent 
 
Volunteer firefighters and ambulance workers are vital to public safety in communities across Erie 
County.  To encourage and reward the selfless acts of volunteerism displayed by our firefighters and 
ambulance workers, New York State now allows local municipalities to opt into a real property tax 
exemption for certain volunteer firefighters and volunteer ambulance workers.  
This local law, pursuant to §466-a of the NYS Real Property Tax Law (RPTL), is intended to 
provide any enrolled member of an incorporated volunteer firefighter or volunteer ambulance 
company across Erie County a real property tax exemption of up to 10% of the assessed value of 
qualifying residential real property owned by a volunteer firefighter or ambulance worker in the 
district in which they volunteer. 
 
It is further the intent of this body to extend this benefit to un-remarried spouses of volunteer 
firefighters and ambulance workers in instances where the volunteer dies after accruing twenty years 
of service or for those who die in the line-of-duty. 
 
SECTION 2: Provision of a Real Property Tax Exemption to Enrolled Members of Incorporated 
Volunteer Firefighter and Ambulance Companies 
 
The Erie County Legislature hereby provides a real property tax exemption of 10% of the assessed 
value of real property for taxes levied by Erie County for individuals that meet the following 
qualifications: 
• The individual is an enrolled and certified member of an incorporated volunteer fire company, 

fire department, or volunteer ambulance service that provides services within the County of Erie 
and has a minimum of two years of service; and 

• That the property receiving the benefit is located within the jurisdiction served by the 
incorporated fire department or volunteer ambulance service to which the volunteer belongs; and 

• The individual resides in the County of Erie and the property receiving the benefit is the primary 
residence of the individual and is used exclusively for residential purpose, and any portion of the 
property not used for residential purposes shall be subject to taxation.  

 
SECTION 3: Grant of Lifetime Real Property Tax Exemption for Certain Volunteer Firefighters and 
Volunteer Ambulance Workers who have Accrued Twenty Years of Volunteer Service 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

325 

 
The Erie County Legislature hereby provides a lifetime real property tax exemption of 10% of the 
assessed value of real property for any individuals that have been certified by the authority having 
jurisdiction over an incorporated volunteer fire company, fire department or incorporated volunteer 
ambulance service as having accrued twenty or more years of active service, so long as their 
primary residence remains within the Erie County jurisdiction in which they served. 
 
SECTION 4. Grant of Lifetime Real Property Tax Exemption for Un-remarried Spouses of 
Volunteer Firefighters and Volunteer Ambulance Workers Whose Spouses Qualify under Section 3 
of this Law or Whose Spouses Die in the Line-of-Duty 
 
The Erie County Legislature hereby provides a real property tax exemption for life to the spouse of 
any volunteer firefighter or volunteer ambulance worker who dies after accruing twenty years of 
service or who dies in the line-of-duty pursuant to the policies contained in New York State RPTL 
§466-a (4).  Provided, however, that the volunteer was already eligible for, and receiving, this 
benefit under either Section 2 or Section 3 as applicable. 
 
SECTION 5. Certification of Eligibility 
 
For the purposes of the requirements set forth by §466-a of NYS RPTL and this Local Law, no 
benefits can be provided without a certification of eligibility filed with the local assessor’s office, in 
who’s jurisdiction the applicant’s property is located. 
 
A universal county certificate of eligibility shall be published by the Erie County Executive on the 
County website for submission to applicant’s assessor’s office within 30 days of the effective date of 
this local law.   
 
As part of any certificate of eligibility in application for benefits described by this law, the applicant 
must provide a Letter of Certification, which includes the exact date enrolled and current active 
status on their volunteer fire department or ambulance service’s letterhead along with a proof of 
residency. 
 
SECTION 6.  Effective Date 
 
This local law shall take effect in the next full tax year following filing with the Secretary of State.  
 
Any volunteer having accrued the minimum years of service described in this local law as of the 
effective date of this law shall be eligible to apply for the benefits described herein provided they 
meet all other eligibility requirements contained in this law. 
 
SECTION 7.  Severability 
 
If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this Local Law or the application 
thereof, to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance, shall be 
adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional such order of 
judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its 
operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this Local Law or in its 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

326 

application to the person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity, or circumstance directly 
involved in the controversy in which such judgment or order shall be rendered. 
 
Sponsors: Legislators Mills, Greene, Todaro, Malczewski, Baskin, Meyers, Johnson, Kooshoian, 
Bargnesi, Vinal and Gilmour 
 
 MR. GILMOUR moved to approve Local Law Intro. No. 1 (Print #2) 2023.  MR. TODARO 
seconded. 
 

CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI, MR. TODARO, MR. BARGNESI, CHAIR 

BASKIN, MR. GILMOUR, MR. JOHNSON, MR. KOOSHOIAN and MS. VINAL.  NOES: None.  
(AYES: 9; NOES: 0) 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 Item 10 – CHAIR BASKIN directed that Local Law No. 2 (Print #2) 2023 remain on the 
table and in the COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT COMMITTEE.  
  
 GRANTED. 
 
 Item 11 – MR. GILMOUR moved to take Local Law Intro. No. 4 (Print #1) 2023 from the 
table.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
COUNTY OF ERIE 

LOCAL LAW INTRO. NO.   4-1  - 2023 
LOCAL LAW NO. ______-2023 

 
THE VIDEOCONFERENCING PARTICIPATION ACT 

 
A Local Law providing for remote public meetings and remote participation of the Legislature in the 
County of Erie. 
 

 Be it enacted by the Legislature of the County of Erie as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent 
 
It is the intent of this local law to give the Erie County Legislature (“Legislature”) the authority to 
participate in meetings via videoconference in a manner consistent with the Legislature’s 
videoconferencing policy and the authority granted in Public Officers Law §103-a. 
 
Section 2. Authority 
 
This local law is adopted pursuant to Public Officers Law § 103-a which expressly authorizes the 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

327 

Legislature to adopt a local law giving the Legislature the authority to participate in meetings via 
videoconference from locations not accessible to the public so long as a quorum of the Legislature 
participates from locations where the public may be physically present and other conditions are met. 
 
Section 3. Videoconferencing for Public Meetings 
 
The Legislature hereby authorizes members of the Legislature to participate in meetings using 
videoconferencing technology in a manner consistent with Public Officers Law § 103-a and the 
Legislature’s videoconferencing policy 
approved by the Legislature. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Local Law shall take effect upon filing with the New York State Secretary of State. 
 
Section 7. Severability  
 
If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this law or the application thereof 
to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, or business shall be adjudged by any court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, 
impair or invalidate the remainder thereof but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, 
sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this law, or in its specific application. 
 
Sponsor: April N.M. Baskin 
 
 MR. GILMOUR moved to approve Local Law Intro. No. 4 (Print #1) 2023.  MR. JOHNSON 
seconded. 
 

CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI, MR. TODARO, MR. BARGNESI, CHAIR 

BASKIN, MR. GILMOUR, MR. JOHNSON, MR. KOOSHOIAN and MS. VINAL.  NOES: None.  
(AYES: 9; NOES: 0) 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 Item 12 – MR. GILMOUR presented the following report, moved to separate item Numbers 
1a, 1b, and 1c, and approve the balance of the report.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 57 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

328 

April 20, 2023 ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT 
COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 5 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATOR TODARO. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 6E-9 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 6 - Lackawanna WRRF & ORF Disinfection Systems 
Improvements Project” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
b. COMM. 6E-10 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 6 - Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service Lateral 
Connection Lining Project” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
c. COMM. 6E-11 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 2 - Big Sister Creek WRRF IT Infrastructure 
Improvements”  
(Chair’s Ruling) 
 

d. COMM. 7E-3 (2023) 
BASKIN: “Letter to Democratic Party Caucus Regarding Position of Commissioner of the 
ECWA” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
e. COMM. 7E-4 (2023) 

BASKIN: “Letter to Republican Party Caucus Regarding Position of Commissioner of the 
ECWA” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
f. COMM. 7E-5 (2023) 

BASKIN: “Letter to Conservative Party Member Regarding Position of Commissioner of the 
ECWA” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
g. COMM. 7E-19 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 3 - Engineer Contract Agreement” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
h. COMM. 7E-20 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 8 - East Aurora Water Resource Recovery Facility 
Control Building Improvements” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

329 

i. COMM. 7E-21 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 6 - Engineer Term Contract Agreement” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
j. COMM. 7E-22 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 2 - Engineering Term Contract Agreement” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
k. COMM. 7D-2 (2023) 

CLERK OF LEGISLATURE: “Letters of Interest & Resumes for Position of Commissioner 
of the ECWA” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
l. COMM. 7M-4 (2023) 

DEC: “DEC Invites Public Comment About Draft Plan to Investigate Contamination at 
Brownfield Site on Crowley Ave., Buffalo” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
m. COMM. 7M-5 (2023) 

DEC: “DEC Invites Public Comment About Brownfield Application & Draft Work Plan for 
Site on Main St., Buffalo” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
n. COMM. 7M-6 (2023) 

DEC: “DEC Invites Public Comment About Brownfield Application & Draft Work Plan for 
Site on Fillmore Ave., Buffalo” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
o. COMM. 7M-7 (2023) 

NYSERDA: “Notice of Intent to Undertake an Action Within an Agricultural District – 
Town of Grand Island” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
2. COMM. 5E-7 (2023) AS AMENDED 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning has received the 
following lowest responsible bids for Contract Nos. 73-A and 73-D at 10:00 a.m. on March 29, 
2023: 
 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder   Amount 
Contract 73-A   Hohl Industrial Services Inc.   $ 2,893,000.00 
General/Mechanical  770 Riverview Blvd 
    Tonawanda, NY 14150 
 
Contract 73-D   CIR Electric Construction Corporation $ 351,760.00 
Electrical   2517 Long Road 
    Grand Island, NY 14072 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

330 

 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the aforementioned lowest responsible bidders have successfully completed 
projects for the Division of Sewerage Management in the past; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Division of Sewerage Management has determined this project is a Type II 
action in accordance with 6NYCRR Section 617.5(c) and therefore is not subject to State 
Environmental Quality Review Act review under New York State Environmental Conservation Law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 

RESOLVED, that the Southtowns Influent Screenings Replacement Project, Erie County 
Sewer District No. 3, Contract Nos. 73-A and 73-D be awarded as follows: 
 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder   Amount 
Contract 73-A   Hohl Industrial Services Inc.   $ 2,893,000.00 
General/Mechanical  770 Riverview Blvd 
    Tonawanda, NY 14150 
 
Contract 73-D   CIR Electric Construction Corporation $ 351,760.00 
Electrical   2517 Long Road 
    Grand Island, NY 14072 
 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the County Executive be, and hereby is, authorized to execute Contracts 
with the aforementioned lowest responsible bidders, subject to approval as to form by the County 
Attorney’s office and approval as to content by the Commissioner of Environment and Planning; and 
be it further  

 
RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management and the County Comptroller are 

authorized to allocate up to $3,000,000.00 in Capital Account No. C.21150 (American Rescue Plan 
funds) to fund Contract Nos. 73-A and 73-D; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby provided for the partial closing of up to 
$244,760.00 in ECSD No. 3 Capital Reserve Account C.00007, Fund 430, Funds Center 183 to fund 
Contract Nos. 73-A and 73-D; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby provided for the Division of Budget and 
Management to process a residual equity transfer of up to $244,760.00 from ECSD No. 3 Capital 
Reserve Account C.00007 and a transfer of $3,000,000.00 in Capital Account No. C.21150 to Erie 
County Sewer District No. 3 Capital Bond Account C.17301, Fund 430, Funds Center 183; and be it 
further 
 

RESOLVED, that $3,244,760.00 be allocated in Erie County Sewer District No. 3 Capital 
Bond Account C.17301 to fund Contract Nos. 73-A and 73-D; and be it further 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

331 

 
RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby 

authorized to implement any budget adjustments necessary to facilitate this funding; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that any unused funds for this Contract will be returned to Erie County Sewer 
District No. 3 Capital Reserve Account C.00007 based on guidance from the Division of Sewerage 
Management and the budget for the Capital Reserve Account be adjusted accordingly; and be it 
further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature be directed to send a certified copy of this 
resolution to the County Executive, the County Comptroller, the Director of Budget and 
Management, Richard Stanton, Assistant County Attorney, and Joseph Fiegl, P.E., Deputy 
Commissioner, Department of Environment and Planning.  
(4-0) 
 
3. COMM. 7E-17 (2023)   
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) 
has awarded regional energy hub grants to community-based organizations across the state, with the 
Western New York Clean Energy Hub being awarded to People United for Sustainable Housing, 
Inc; and 
 

WHEREAS, Erie County is specified by NYSERDA as a grant sub-awardee for $329,628, to 
provide community engagement support to the WNY Hub; and 
 

WHEREAS, the WNY Hub is an important strategy for achieving the County’s goals to 
reduce the community’s carbon footprint, lower energy costs for low- and moderate-income 
households, and improve access to renewable energy; and  

 
WHEREAS, to proceed with the project it is necessary for Erie County to execute an 

agreement with People United for Sustainable Housing, Inc., adopt a project budget; and create a 
new Junior Environmental Compliance Specialist (JG7) position in the Department of Environment 
& Planning (DEP). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 

accept $329,628 from People United for Sustainable Housing, Inc. as a sub-awardee from 
NYSERDA and be made available as a multi-year grant to DEP in Fund 281, Fund Center 1620020 
as follows: 

 
Department of Environment & Planning 

WNY Regional Clean Energy Hub Project 
162WNYRCEHP2327 

May 1, 2023 to December 31, 2027 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

332 

REVENUE:  

Account                      Description                                                    Amount 

409010                            State Aid - Other                                     $329,628  

TOTAL REVENUE                                                              $329,628 
 

APPROPRIATIONS: 

Account Description   Amount 

500000 

502000 

Full Time Salaries 

Fringe Benefits 

  $202,603 

$127,025 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS:       $329,628 
 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the following position will be created in the Department of Environment 
and Planning and funded by grant 162WNYRCEHP2327 in Fund 281: 
  
 Junior Environmental Compliance Specialist (JG-7) 
 B-100 No. 13721 
 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the County 
Executive; the Director of the Division of Budget and Management; the County Attorney; the 
County Comptroller; Commissioner of Environment and Planning; and Deputy Commissioner of 
Environment and Planning – Compliance.  
(4-0)  
 

TIMOTHY J. MEYERS 
CHAIR 

 
 CHAIR BASKIN directed that item Numbers 1a, 1b, and 1c be returned to committee for 
further consideration. 
 
 Item 13 – MR. GILMOUR presented the following report and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. TODARO seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 58 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

333 

April 20, 2023 FINANCE & MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 4 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 7E-7 (2023) 
 COMPTROLLER: “Dec. 2022 - Feb. 2023 Sales & Compensating Use Tax Report” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
b. COMM. 7E-9 (2023) 
 COMPTROLLER: “Department of Law Risk Retention Fund Spending - Jan. & Feb. 2023” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
c. COMM. 7D-1 (2023) 

DEPUTY COMPTROLLER OF AUDIT: “Audit of the Department of Law - Notification of 
Expanded Scope of the Indigent Defense Program to Include Claim Reimbursements” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 
 

d. COMM. 7D-4 (2023) 
DEPUTY COMPTROLLER OF AUDIT: “EC Comptroller's Office Audit of the Department 
of Law” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
e. COMM. 7M-8 (2023) 

NYS DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION & FINANCE: “List of Certified 2023 State 
Equalization Rates” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
f. COMM. 7M-9 (2023) 

NYS DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION & FINANCE: “List of Certified 2023 State 
Equalization Rates” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
2. COMM. 2D-3 (2023) AS AMENDED 
 DIRECTOR OF REAL PROPERTY TAX SERVICES 
 WHEREAS, the Erie County Director of Real Property Tax Services has received 
applications for corrected tax billings and / or refunds for taxes previously paid in accordance with 
New York State Real Property Tax Law sections 554 and 556; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the Director has investigated the validity of such applications (see attached 
listing).   
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT   
  



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

334 

RESOLVED, that petitions numbered 250042 through 250070, inclusive be hereby approved 
or denied based upon the recommendation of the Director of Real Property Tax Services and be 
charged back to the applicable towns and/or cities. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,042.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel 
 S-B-L 107.00-8-14 1636 Sandridge Rd 142089 ALDEN 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 142089 ALDEN 
 Relevy School $199.76 142001 ALDEN CENTRAL 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied school tax payment to wrong parcel 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,043.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $255.71 
 S-B-L 108.15-3-7 1804 Crittenden Rd 142001 ALDEN 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $255.71 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 142001 ALDEN $255.71 
 Relevy School $255.71 142001 ALDEN CENTRAL 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied school payment to wrong parcel 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,044.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $1,328.19 
 S-B-L 28.42-1-4 30 Coriander Ct 142289 AMHERST 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $1,328.19 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 142289 AMHERST $1,328.19 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied incorrect sewer units 
 Refund to be issued to Frances Mary Egloff 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,045.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $424.94 
 S-B-L 69.10-2-17.2/7F 610 Youngs Rd Uni 142289 AMHERST 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

335 

 Acct. No. 112 $247.72 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $177.22 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 142289 AMHERST $177.22 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply senior exemption 
 Refund to be issued to Gary C. Francescone 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,046.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $1,671.62 
 S-B-L 176.05-2-44 62 Olean St 142401 EAST AURORA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $1,671.62 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 142401 EAST AURORA $1,671.62 
 
 Relevy Village $1,671.62 Village of EAST AURORA 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply partial payment to village taxes 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 250,047.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $1,593.28 
 S-B-L 92.14-1-1.112 Moorman Dr 143089 CHEEKTOWAGA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $1,593.28 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143089 CHEEKTOWAGA $1,593.28 
 Relevy School $1,593.28 143002 CHEEK. UNION #2 
 
 RPTL 550(7):  Failed to apply town owned exemption, RS 8 
 Refund to be issued to Town of Cheektowaga 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,048.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $1,191.35 
 S-B-L 92.14-1-1.112 Moorman Dr 143089 CHEEKTOWAGA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $473.65 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $717.70 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143089 CHEEKTOWAGA $717.70 
 
 RPTL 550(7):  Failed to apply town owned exemption, RS 8 
 Refund to be issued to Town of Cheektowaga 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,049.00 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

336 

  ASSESSOR  Refund $229.85 
 S-B-L 91.11-7-18 696 Maryvale Dr 143089 CHEEKTOWAGA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $229.85 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143089 CHEEKTOWAGA $229.85 
 Relevy School $229.85 143002 CHEEK. UNION #2 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply on time school tax payment 
 Refund issued to Jeffery & Christine Walsh 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,050.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $257.41 
 S-B-L 113.21-5-27 151 Roland St 143001 SLOAN 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $257.41 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143001 SLOAN $257.41 
 Relevy School $257.41 143009 SLOAN UNION #9 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply timely school tax payment 
 Refund to be issued to Joseph M. Fouchie 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,051.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $15,900.00 
 S-B-L 123.28-6-11 75 Pleasant Pkwy 143089 CHEEKTOWAGA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $15,900.00 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143089 CHEEKTOWAGA $15,900.00 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied incorrect amount on clean up charge. 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,052.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $32.77 
 S-B-L 103.76-3-17 4596 Broadway St 143003 DEPEW 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $32.77 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143003 DEPEW $32.77 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply capital improvement exemption 
 New tax bill to be issued. 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

337 

 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 250,053.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $911.19 
 S-B-L 103.12-3-6.111 Rossiter Ave 143001 SLOAN 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $911.19 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 520  Code SC520                        $538.03 
 Charge To : 143001 SLOAN $373.16 
 Relevy School $373.16 143007 DEPEW UNION-CHEEK 
 
 RPTL 550(7):  Failed to apply village owned exemption, RS 8 
 Refund to be issued to Village of Depew 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,054.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $709.65 
 S-B-L 103.12-3-6.111 Rossiter Ave 143003 DEPEW 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $100.09 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $609.56 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143003 DEPEW $609.56 
 
 RPTL 550(7):  Failed to apply village owned exemption, RS 8. 
 Refund to be issued to Village of Depew 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 250,055.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $6.38 
 S-B-L 274.00-2-13.11 10690 Springville  143889 CONCORD 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $6.38 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 143889 CONCORD $6.38 
 Relevy School $6.38 143801 SPRING-GRIFFITH 
 
 RPTL 550(1):  Incorrect acreage 
 Refund to be issued to Donna Felger 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,056.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $4.67 
 S-B-L 274.00-2-13.11 10690 Springville  143889 CONCORD 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $1.79 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $2.88 Town/SpecialDist/School 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

338 

 38019  CONCORD FIRE PROTECT                $1.36 
 Charge To : 143889 CONCORD $1.52 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect acreage 
 Refund to be issued to Donna Felger  
 

FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,057.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $549.93 
 S-B-L 255.00-3-8 9550 Sisson Hwy 144000 EDEN 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $308.19 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $241.74 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 144000 EDEN $241.74 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to calculate aged exemption properly 
 Refund to be issued to Robert P. & Cecilia B. Mols 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 250,058.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $300.00 
 S-B-L 253.00-1-2 2071 Carpenter Rd 144000 EDEN 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $300.00 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 40049  ECSD2 Flat Usage Fee              $300.00 
 Charge To : 144000 EDEN $0.00 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied ECSD flat usage fee in error 
 Refund to be issued to Lewis A Yager Jr. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2021 Petition No. 250,059.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $300.00 
 S-B-L 253.00-1-2 2071 Carpenter Rd 144000 EDEN 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $300.00 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 40049  ECSD2 Flat Usage Fee              $300.00 
 Charge To : 144000 EDEN $0.00 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied ECSD flat usage fee in error. 
 Refund to be issued to Lewis A. Yager Jr. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,060.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $315.00 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

339 

 S-B-L 253.00-1-2 2071 Carpenter Rd 144000 EDEN 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $315.00 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 40049  ECSD2 Flat Usage Fee              $315.00 
 Charge To : 144000 EDEN $0.00 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Applied ECSD flat usage fee in error 
 Refund to be issued to Lewis A Yager Jr. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 250,061.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $7,630.51 
 S-B-L 23.00-1-17.111 126 Industrial Dr 144600 GRAND ISLAND 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $7,630.51 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 144600 GRAND ISLAND $7,630.51 
 Relevy School $7,630.51 144601 GRND ISLN CENTRAL 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply Solar PILOT exemption 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,062.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $230.64 
 S-B-L 23.00-1-17.111 126 Industrial Pkwy 144600 GRAND ISLAND 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $73.66 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $156.98 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 144600 GRAND ISLAND $156.98 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply Solar PILOT agreement 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2021 Petition No. 250,063.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $370.00 
 S-B-L 139.13-4-11 S-1886 Two Rod R 145400 MARILLA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $370.00 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 145400 MARILLA $370.00 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect sanitation units 
 Refund to be issued to David Cegielski 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

340 

 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 250,064.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $370.00 
 S-B-L 139.13-4-11 S 1886 Two Rod R 145400 MARILLA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $370.00 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 145400 MARILLA $370.00 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect sanitary units 
 Refund to be issued to David Cegielski 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,065.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $370.00 
 S-B-L 139.13-4-11 S 1886 Two Rod R 145400 MARILLA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $370.00 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 145400 MARILLA $370.00 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect sanitation units 
 Refund to be issued to David Cegielski 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,066.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Cancel $137.51 
 S-B-L 157.00-6-10./GG Four Rod Rd 145400 MARILLA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $112.86 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $24.65 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 54019  MARILLA FIRE PROTECT               $19.18 
 Charge To : 145400 MARILLA $5.47 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect assessed value 
 New tax bill to be issued. 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 250,067.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $1,111.17 
 S-B-L 65.68-1-6 194 Henderson Ave 146489 TONAWANDA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $1,111.17 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 520  Code SC520                      $1,111.17 
 Charge To : 146489 TONAWANDA $0.00 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

341 

 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect calculation of exemption removal charge 
 Refund to be issued to David G. Economou 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,068.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $2,041.67 
 S-B-L 65.68-1-6 194 Henderson Ave 146489 TONAWANDA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $2,041.67 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 64999  EXEMPTION REMOVAL               $2,041.67 
 Charge To : 146489 TONAWANDA $0.00 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Incorrect calculation of exemption removal charge 
 Refund to be issued to David G. Economou 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2022 Petition No. 250,069.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $1,419.00 
 S-B-L 143.14-3-57 750 Fisher Rd 146800 WEST SENECA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $0.00 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $1,419.00 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 146800 WEST SENECA $1,419.00 
 Relevy School $1,419.00 146801 WEST SENECA CENT 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply exemptions 
 Refund to be issued to Edwina & Jeffrey Kwiatkowski 
 
 FISCAL YEAR 2023 Petition No. 250,070.00 
 
  ASSESSOR  Refund $1,089.60 
 S-B-L 143.14-3-57 750 Fisher Rd 146800 WEST SENECA 
 
 Acct. No. 112 $419.82 County 
 Acct. No. 132 $669.78 Town/SpecialDist/School 
 Charge To : 146800 WEST SENECA $669.78 
 
 RPTL 550(2):  Failed to apply vet exemptions 
 Refund to be issued to Edwina & Jeffrey Kwiatkowski 
 
and be it further 
  
 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the Director of Real 
Property Tax Services. 
(5-0) 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

342 

TIMOTHY J. MEYERS 
CHAIR 

 
 Item 14 – MR. JOHNSON presented the following report and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. GILMOUR seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 59 
 
April 20, 2023 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 5 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 
 
1.  RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received and filed: 
 
a.  COMM. 7M-3 (2023) 

NFTA: “NFTA Revised Budget for FYE 24” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
2. COMM. 7E-14 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the 2022 Miscellaneous Culvert Group Construction (Project CUL-MISC-2-22) 
(the “Project”), for the replacement of two (2) culverts was approved by your Honorable Body via 
COMM 13E-20 (July 21, 2022); and 

 
WHEREAS, constructability and additional slope failure at the Emery Road (CR 67) culvert 

in the Town of Aurora, it was determined that this culvert needed to be removed from this contract 
for further design and investigation; and  

 
WHEREAS, a culvert carrying East Eden Road (CR 220) between Schintzius Road (CR 483) 

and Hardt Road (CR 473) in the Town of Eden was substituted for the Emery Road culvert for 
replacement; and 

 
WHEREAS, changing the Project name and number to the Replacement of 2022 Culvert 

Group 1 (Project CAP-CUL-2022) will clarify the pre and post amended resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are no financial changes in the project previously approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the amendment to remove 

the Emery Road (CR 67) culvert from the Project and the addition of the East Eden Road (CR 220) 
culvert to the Project; and be it further 

 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

343 

RESOLVED, that the project be known as the Replacement of 2022 Culvert Group 1 (Project 
CAP-CUL-2022); and be it further 

 
 RESOLVED, that three (3) certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the Department 
of Public Works, Office of the Commissioner, and one copy each to the Office of the County 
Executive, the Division of Budget and Management, the Office of the County Attorney, and the 
Office of the Comptroller.  
(5-0) 
 
3. COMM. 7E-16 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, consistent with Erie County’s Commitment to Paris goals, the County 
encourages the development of solar facilities which reduce dependence upon fossil fuels and further 
climate goals to mitigate global warming; and   

 
WHEREAS, Project Owner, (Grand Island Sunrise LLC) has submitted a Notice of Intent to 

the Taxing Jurisdictions that it plans to build and operate a Solar Energy System as defined in New 
York Real Property Tax Law (“RPTL”) Section 487(1)(b) (the “Project”) with an expected 
nameplate capacity (“Capacity”) of approximately 5.00 Megawatts AC on an approximately 167-
acre parcel of land located within the Town of Grand Island, identified as 871 Whitehaven Road, 
SBL: 38.09-3-1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has not opted out of RPTL § 487; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to RPTL § 487(9)(a) the County has indicated their intent to require a 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement (“PILOT”) with the Project Owner, under which the Project 
Owner will be required to make annual payments to the Taxing Jurisdictions for each year during the 
term of this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project Owner has submitted or will submit to the Assessor of the Town of 
Grand Island an Application for Tax Exemption of Solar or Wind Energy Systems or Farm Waste 
Energy Systems (“Form RP-487”); and 
  

WHEREAS, the Real Property not part of the Project will be assessed for any statutory real 
property taxes levied by the Taxing Jurisdictions. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 

execute a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) Agreement with Grand Island Sunrise LLC, and any 
other organizations necessary to complete this PILOT Agreement, pertaining to the Real Property 
located at 871 Whitehaven Road, Grand Island New York (SBL: 38.09-3-1); and be it further 

RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall include an annual approximate PILOT payment in 
the amount $17,500.00, subject to annual escalation of 2%; and be it further 

 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

344 

RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall include an estimated annual PILOT based on the 
amount of taxes due as set forth on Schedule A attached hereto; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the Erie County 

Executive’s Office; Division of Budget and Management; Department of Real Property Tax 
Services; Department of Environment and Planning; County Comptroller; and the County Attorney. 

 
Schedule A 

PILOT Schedule* 
 

PILOT Term Year Calendar Year County Payment Amount 
Year 1 2024  $ 17,500.00  
Year 2 2025  $ 17,850.00  
Year 3 2026  $ 18,207.00  
Year 4 2027  $ 18,571.14  
Year 5 2028  $ 18,942.56  
Year 6 2029  $ 19,321.41  
Year 7 2030  $ 19,707.84  
Year 8 2031  $ 20,102.00  
Year 9 2032  $ 20,504.04  
Year 10 2033  $ 20,914.12  
Year 11 2034  $ 21,332.40  
Year 12 2035  $ 21,759.05  
Year 13 2036  $ 22,194.23  
Year 14 2037  $ 22,638.12  
Year 15 2038  $ 23,090.88  

*Please note that, as per the PILOT Agreement, this payment schedule is subject to adjustment if the 
capacity of the Project changes. 
(5-0) 
 
4. COMM. 7E-18 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 WHEREAS, the County of Erie is interested in the fostering of business growth and job creation 
within Erie County; and 
 

  WHEREAS, Erie County desires to encourage the sound reuse of urban brownfields for 
productive use, be it industrial, commercial, or recreational; and  
 
 WHEREAS, County of Erie, City of Lackawanna, Erie County Industrial Development Agency, 
continue to work cooperatively toward achieving the redevelopment of the former Bethlehem Steel site; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the relocation of existing railroad lines is necessary to develop the site into a 
shovel ready site ready for development; and  
 

  WHEREAS, the Erie County Industrial Development Agency has extensive experience in 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

345 

contracting with consultants and contractors specializing in design of railroad infrastructure; and 
 

  WHEREAS, the County of Erie has approved funding in the County Budget to be utilized 
specifically for infrastructure and redevelopment on the former Bethlehem Steel site. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to enter 
into contracts with the Erie County Industrial Development Agency or Buffalo and Erie County 
Industrial Land Development Corporation, or other state and federal agencies, and consultants in 
amounts not to exceed a total of $600,000, for the purpose of the design and construction of railroad on 
the former Bethlehem Steel site in the City of Lackawanna; and be it further 
   
 RESOLVED, that the County Executive is authorized to enter into agreements with the Genesee 
and Wyoming Railroad Inc., New York State Department of Transportation, Erie County Water 
Authority as necessary to execute this project and complete the work; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the source of these funds shall be in SAP accounts A.19025 in the amount of 
$237,367.56 and A.13012 in the amount of $362,632.44 available respectively as part of the approved 
County budgets; and be it further  
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Division of Budget and Management 
to make any technical adjustments necessary to effectuate this resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution will be forwarded to the Erie County 
Executive’s Office, County Attorney, Comptroller’s Office, Division of Budget and Management, 
and the Department of Environment & Planning. 
(5-0) 
 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 
CHAIR 

 
 Item 15 – MR. JOHNSON presented the following report and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. TODARO seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 60 
 
April 20, 2023 PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 5 
 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 6D-3 (2023) 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

346 

ERIE COUNTY PROBATION COMMISSIONER: “Erie County Conditional Release 
Commission - 2022 Annual Report” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
b. COMM. 7E-1 (2023) 
 MILLS: “Board Appointment Recommendation” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
2. COMM. 7E-11 (2023) 

SHERIFF 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Division of Correctional Health is responsible for the 

medical care of individuals in its custody; and 
 

WHEREAS, this medical care requires access to prescription medicine for preexisting and 
diagnosed conditions while incarcerated; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Division of Correctional Health and its chief medical officer 
monitor the incarcerated population’s medical conditions, continue therapies, or order new medicinal 
treatments; and 
 

WHEREAS, Correctional Health issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for an expiring 
pharmaceutical supplier and received five proposals; and 
 

WHEREAS, Westwood’s proposal was deemed the overall best proposal by the review 
committee; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office recommends that MAO Pharmacy Inc. (D/B/A Westwood 
Pharmacy) be awarded the contract for RFP #2023-003VF; and  
 

WHEREAS, this is a two-year agreement with the option of up to three one-year extensions; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, either party may terminate the agreement, with or without cause, with thirty 
days written notice; and  
 

WHEREAS, there are no fiscal implications on the operating budget. The professional 
services contract for pharmacy services at the Erie County Holding Center and the Erie County 
Correctional Facility are funded in accounts: 
 

516020   Professional Services   $2,000,000.00 
505800  Medical and Health Supplies       $25,000.00 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the Erie County 
Sheriff’s Office to award RFP #2023-003VF to MAO Pharmacy, Inc., d/b/a Westwood Pharmacy, 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

347 

5823 Patterson Avenue, Richmond, VA 23226, for comprehensive pharmacy management services 
to the Erie County Sheriff’s Division of Correctional Health; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the County Executive 
and the Erie County Sheriff to enter into a contract with MAO Pharmacy, Inc., d/b/a Westwood 
Pharmacy, 5823 Patterson Avenue, Richmond, VA 23226; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, the terms of the agreement are for two years with up to three additional one-
year extensions; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, the contract is funded in Fund Center 11650, in the following accounts: 
 

516020   Professional Services   $2,000,000.00 
505800  Medical and Health Supplies       $25,000.00 

 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management is hereby authorized to make the 
necessary transfers and to make any technical adjustments necessary to effectuate these transfers 
should there be any unforeseen issues; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office is hereby authorized to release the 
designated funds and make payments as necessary; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, certified copies of the approved resolution shall be sent to the County 
Executive, the County Attorney, the Division of Purchasing, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office, 
and the Chief of Administration of the Sheriff’s Office for implementation.  
(5-0) 
 
3. COMM. 7E-12 (2023) 

SHERIFF 
WHEREAS, the US Department of Homeland Security, through the NYS Division of 

Homeland Security and Emergency Services, has awarded $139,500.00 for FY22 to Erie County in 
funding to increase security; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office will coordinate with police agencies from the 
cities of Buffalo, Lackawanna, and Tonawanda and the towns of Brant, Evans, Hamburg, Lancaster, 
and Tonawanda; and   
 

WHEREAS, these operations support the U.S. Border Patrol’s mission of protecting the  
international borders from human trafficking and illegal drug operations as well as apprehending 
terrorists and others intent on conducting illegal activities on U.S. soil; and 
 

WHEREAS, the funds will be used for overtime, fringe benefits, and equipment of the 
participating law enforcement agencies while participating in Operation Stonegarden; and 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

348 

WHEREAS, this resolution accepts $139,500.00 in grant funding and will provide for all 
expenses needed to support this program.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the County Executive 
and the Erie County Sheriff to enter into a contract with the New York State Department of 
Homeland Security to accept $139,500.00 for FY22; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, the Fund Center is 11510, and the grant will be allocated to the following 
accounts: 
 

ERIE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
FY 2022 Operation Stonegarden Grant 
September 1, 2022, to August 31, 2025 

 
REVENUE DECREASE 
414000  Federal Revenue $139,500.00 
 
APPROPRIATION   INCREASE 
501000  Overtime  $22,000.00 
502000  Fringe Benefits $5,760.00 
516010  Contractual Payments $106,740.00 
516410  Lab and Tech Equipment $5,000.00 

Total Revenue $139,500.00 
 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the County Executive and the Erie County Sheriff’s Office are authorized 
to enter into sub-contracts with the cities of Buffalo, Lackawanna, and Tonawanda, and the towns of 
Brant, Evans, Hamburg, Lancaster, and Tonawanda to reimburse the expenses the agency incur 
while participating in Operation Stonegarden and border security operations; and be it further  
 

RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management is hereby authorized to make the 
necessary transfers and to make any technical adjustments necessary to effectuate these transfers 
should there be any unforeseen issues; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office is hereby authorized to release the 
designated funds and make payments as necessary; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, certified copies of the approved resolution shall be sent to the County 
Executive, the County Attorney, the Division of Purchasing, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office, 
and the Chief of Administration of the Sheriff’s Office for implementation. 
(5-0) 
 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 
CHAIR 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

349 

 
 Item 16 – MR. GILMOUR presented the following report and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 61 
 
April 20, 2023 COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT 

COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 3 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 6E-8 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Buffalo Niagara Convention & Visitors Bureau Board 
Appointment” 

 (Chair’s Ruling)  
 
2. COMM. 7E-15 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Legislature must approve contracts in excess of $50,000 for 
SUNY Erie; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Legislature authorized at its September 22, 2022, meeting, 
SUNY Erie to enter into a three-year initial term and for up to two additional one-year periods 
contract with PLS III LLC (aka Cedar Bus LLC) to provide intercampus student transportation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the college's initial contract was for 105 days of services for year one at 

$271,912 and 115 days for year two and three at $289,316 per year, making the total contract for 
three years $850,544; and  

 
WHEREAS, SUNY Erie now intends to amend the contract to increase year one's services to 

136 days at $350,213 and years two and three's services to 149 days at $376,184 per year, making 
the total contract amount for three years $1,102,581; and 
 

WHEREAS, the contractor is responsible for all labor, services, materials, and appliances 
required to complete the work without any extra charges; and 
 

WHEREAS, the contractor is required to report the progress of work to the College and 
maintain a detailed daily log; and 

 
WHEREAS, the SUNY Erie Board of Trustees at their February 16th 2023 Board meeting 

approved to amend the agreement for Intercampus Student Transportation between SUNY Erie and 
PLS III LLC (aka Cedar Bus LLC). 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

350 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  

 
RESOLVED, that the Legislature of the County of Erie does hereby authorize SUNY Erie to 

amend the Agreement for Intercampus Student Transportation with PLS III LCC (aka Cedar Bus 
LLC); and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that SUNY Erie Officer in Charge is given the authority to modify the 

Agreement for Intercampus Student Transportation with PLS III LLC (also known as Cedar Bus 
LLC) by extending the service period to 136 days in the first year at a cost of $350,213 and to 149 
days in the second and third years at a cost of $376,184 per year. As a result, the total value of the 
contract for the three-year period would be $1,102,581; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature of the County of Erie shall forward certified 

copies of this resolution to the County Executive of the County of Erie, to the Chairman of the Board 
of Trustees of SUNY Erie, and to the Officer in Charge of SUNY Erie. 
(5-0) 
 

JOHN J. GILMOUR 
CHAIR 

 
 

LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS 
 

Item 17 – MR. GILMOUR presented the following resolution and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. TODARO seconded. 
 

CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI, MR. TODARO, MR. BARGNESI, MR. 

GILMOUR and MR. KOOSHOIAN.  NOES: CHAIR BASKIN, MR. JOHNSON and MS. VINAL.  
(AYES: 6; NOES: 3) 

 
CARRIED. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 62    RE: Opposing Federal Government's  
        Change in Loan-Level Price  
        Adjustment Matrix  
        (INTRO. 8-1) 

 
A RESOLUTION TO BE SUBMITTED BY 

LEGISLATOR MALCZEWSKI 
 

WHEREAS, the Federal Government has recently made changes to the Loan-Level Price 
Adjustment Matrix, resulting in higher mortgage payments for borrowers with good credit scores 
and lower fees for riskier borrowers; and 

 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

351 

WHEREAS, this change will create an unfair and unjust system that punishes responsible 
borrowers with good credit scores and rewards risky borrowers who pose a greater risk of defaulting 
on their loans; and 

 
WHEREAS, this change goes against the principles of a fair and just lending system, which 

should incentivize responsible borrowing behavior and discourage risky behavior; and 
 
WHEREAS, this change will disproportionately affect low- and middle-income borrowers 

with good credit scores, who may not have the financial resources to absorb the higher mortgage 
payments resulting from the change; and 

 
WHEREAS, the current economic climate, with economic uncertainty, makes it even more 

important to protect borrowers from unfair and predatory lending practices. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
 
RESOLVED, that the legislative body opposes the Federal Government's change in the 

Loan-Level Price Adjustment Matrix and urges the Federal Government to reverse this decision and 
work towards creating a fair and just lending system that incentivizes responsible borrowing 
behavior and protects borrowers from unfair and predatory lending practices; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that copies of this resolution be sent to the President of the United States, the 

Secretary of the Treasury, Congressman Brian Higgins and Congressman Nick Langworthy, urging 
them to act to reverse the change in the Loan-Level Price Adjustment Matrix and to support policies 
that promote fair and just lending practices. 

 
Item 18 – MR. GILMOUR presented the following resolution and moved for immediate 

consideration and approval.  MR. GREENE seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 63    RE: Opposing SkyWest Airlines’  
        Request for Reclassification 
        (INTRO. 8-2) 

 
A RESOLUTION TO BE SUBMITTED BY 

LEGISLATOR GREENE 
 

WHEREAS, SkyWest Airlines has requested to be reclassified from a "major airline" to a 
"commuter airline," which would significantly reduce the safety rules that it is subject to; and 

 
WHEREAS, the tragic crash of Flight 3407 on February 12, 2009, which claimed the lives of 

50 people, revealed the serious deficiencies in the aviation industry's safety regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Flight 3407 was operated by a regional airline, Colgan Air, which had a poor 

safety record and was known for its low pay and poor working conditions for its pilots; and 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

352 

WHEREAS, the National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) investigation into the crash 
of Flight 3407 found that the pilots were inadequately trained and fatigued, and that the airline's 
safety culture was severely lacking; and 

 
WHEREAS, the NTSB made numerous recommendations for improving the safety of 

regional airlines, including enhancing pilot training and qualification requirements, improving 
fatigue management programs, and enhancing safety culture and oversight; and 

 
WHEREAS, since the crash of Flight 3407 and the subsequent passage of the Airline Safety 

and Federal Aviation Administration Act of 2010, commercial aviation fatalities have reduced by 
99.8%; and  

 
WHEREAS, reclassifying SkyWest Airlines as a commuter airline would weaken the safety 

regulations that were put in place following the crash of Flight 3407 and would put the lives of 
passengers and crew at risk; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the legislature to prioritize the safety of its citizens, 

including those who travel by air. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
 
RESOLVED, that the legislature opposes SkyWest Airlines' reclassification request and calls 

on the Federal Aviation Administration to reject this request in order to maintain the safety 
regulations that are currently in place for major airlines; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the legislature urges the Federal Aviation Administration to continue to 

prioritize safety in all aspects of the aviation industry, including regional airlines, in order to prevent 
future tragedies like the crash of Flight 3407; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to Congressman Nick 

Langworthy, Congressman Brian Higgins and Secretary of the United States Department of 
Transportation Pete Buttigieg. 

 
Item 19 – MR. GILMOUR presented the following resolution and moved for immediate 

consideration and approval.  MR. MALCZEWSKI seconded. 
 
 CHAIR BASKIN directed that the resolution be referred to the FINANCE & 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. 

 
GRANTED. 
 
INTRO. 8-3 from MALCZEWSKI.  Opposing NYS Senate Proposal to Add a Surcharge on 

Ride Sharing Services. 
 

 
COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE 

 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

353 

Item 20 – MR. GILMOUR moved to discharge the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE of further consideration of COMM. 7E-26 (2023).  MR. JOHNSON seconded.   

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 64   RE: 2023 Public Works Projects –  
       Authorization to Appropriate Funds &  
       Enter Into Contracts   
       (COMM. 7E-26, 2023) 

 
 MR. GILMOUR moved to amend the item.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Insert the Following: 
 
 WHEREAS, it is critical that the Department of Public Works accomplish as many highway 
rehabilitation projects as possible and commence projects as soon as possible, including taking 
advantage of the short construction season and the availability of lower pricing by contractors by early 
bidding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due to the condition of County facilities, every effort must be made to expedite 
this work, which includes seeking pre-approval from the Erie County Legislature to award highway, 
bridge and culvert construction, construction engineering services, design, and testing contracts and to 
appropriate funds for 2023 highway and related work; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Erie desires to advance the Construction phase of Federal Aid 
Projects by making a commitment for the Federal and non-Federal share of the costs of the project 
and execute New York State and local fed aid agreements to obtain Federal and State reimbursement 
funds.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
 RESOLVED, that to best promote the public interest and expedite 2023 highway work, the 
award of 2023 highway division construction, construction engineering services, design, and testing 
contracts as designated by the Commissioner of Public Works for projects listed in Exhibit A and any 
other necessary projects added to the 2023 road list by the Commissioner of Public Works are hereby 
preapproved by the Erie County Legislature and the County Executive is hereby authorized and directed 
to execute said contracts; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that pre-approval is contingent upon the advertisement and award of all 2023 
highway construction projects pursuant to applicable Local and New York State public bidding laws; 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Commissioner of Public Works shall determine the lowest responsible 
construction bidders and submit recommendations to the County Executive; and be it further  
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

354 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 
enter into Agreements with the New York State Department of Transportation (NYSDOT) for the 
Federal Aid projects in Exhibit A; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County of Erie to pay in 
the first instance 100% of Federal and non-Federal shares of the cost of construction and 
construction inspection phases of the Projects or portions thereof with the understanding that 
qualified costs may be eligible for federal-aid and or state-aid reimbursement; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the County of Erie is hereby authorized to accept any Federal, New York 
State Marchiselli or other revenue that is available and to increase the budgets in the capital projects 
in Fund 420, Funds Center 123 accordingly; and be it further 
  
 RESOLVED, that the pre-approved contract authorization shall apply to the 2023 highway 
project contracts, as designated by the Commissioner of Public Works and noted on the attached 
Exhibit A document, and shall not exceed an aggregate total of $29,694,770.09 from the following fund 
sources: 
  
2017, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 Bond Proceeds, Federal Aid, and 
Pay-As-You-Go 

$11,502,360.00 

2023 Bond Proceeds and Pay-As-You-Go  $18,192,410.09 
Total Funding $29,694,770.09 
 
and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, the authorization is hereby given for the expenditures of the funding provided for 
the above pre-approved projects be extended into 2024 if construction work is unable to be completed 
in 2023; and be it further  
  
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby provided to the Director of Budget and Management 
to make any necessary adjustments to the revenues and expenses to the projects included in Exhibit A; 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Comptroller’s Office is directed to effectuate the release of funds for road 
projects based on requests from the Department of Public Works from the above-noted funding sources 
or related sources of funds made available in 2023; and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, that periodic informational reports shall be filed with the Legislature by the 
Department of Public Works indicating awarded 2023 highway project contracts and contractors; and 
be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Department of Public Works, 
Office of the Commissioner, Office of the County Executive, the Division of Budget and Management, 
and the Office of the Comptroller. 
 

****See attachment: COMM. 7E-26 (2023) Erie County Department of Public Works - 2023 
Road Program Exhibit A 

https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/Amendment%20to%20COMM.%207E-26%20%282023%29%20DPW%20Resolution%20-%20Omnibus%20Authorization%20CHART.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/Amendment%20to%20COMM.%207E-26%20%282023%29%20DPW%20Resolution%20-%20Omnibus%20Authorization%20CHART.pdf


MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

355 

 
 MR. GILMOUR moved to approve the item as amended.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Item 21 – MR. GILMOUR moved to discharge the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE of 
further consideration of INTRO. 23-2 (2022).  MR. JOHNSON seconded.   

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 65   RE: In Support of the Proposed  
       "3 Bell System" for Buffalo  
       Public Schools    
       (INTRO. 23-2, 2022) 

 
WHEREAS, approximately 1,500 Buffalo Public School students aged 3-13 (grades PK - 8) 

have not had access to a bus that picks them up and transports them to school on time or that 
efficiently takes them home after school since the beginning of the 2022-2023 school year; and 

 
WHEREAS, some students wait for hours at the end of their school day for a bus to pick 

them up and transport them home; and 
 
WHEREAS, teachers load some children onto buses thirty minutes before a school’s 

designated end time in order to accommodate transportation schedules; and 
 
WHEREAS, this amounts to a segment of students losing between 1 and 3 hours of 

instruction each day or spending between 1 and 3 hours either waiting for or on the bus at the end of 
the day; and 

 
WHEREAS, what might have begun as a logistical matter has quickly devolved into an issue 

of profound inequity, with hundreds of students waiting for morning buses and losing academic 
learning time; and 

 
WHEREAS, hundreds more are impacted at the end of each day, with tens of thousands of 

Buffalo Public School students being deprived of field trips, essential extended learning time 
activities, and modified sports; and 

 
WHEREAS, Superintendent Dr. Tonja Williams, with input from teachers and parents, has 

put together a solution to this busing crisis called the 3 Bell System; and 
 
WHEREAS, this proposal includes adoption of a three-bell schedule and shifting school start 

times by no more than 30 minutes to 7:30 a.m., 8:30 a.m., and 9:30 a.m.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the benefits to this plan are clear as it would provide predictable and consistent 

bus coverage where students would be picked up no earlier than 6:30 a.m. and dropped off by 5:30 
p.m., bus routes of no more than 50 minutes in length, fewer students riding each bus (thereby 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

356 

improving safety on buses), and additional capacity for extended learning, field trips, and athletics; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, adopting this plan would immediately improve two of the most important 

aspects of student care in Buffalo: safety and academic standing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the three-bell schedule will require weeks for full planning and implementation, 

and should be carefully planned and measured for success. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature supports the careful consideration and 

application of Superintendent Dr. Tonja Williams’ 3 Bell System for the Buffalo Public School 
System; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that this honorable body requests that Buffalo Teachers Federation and the 

Buffalo School Board ratify a new contract; and be it further 
 

 RESOLVED, that copies of this resolution be given to the Buffalo Public Schools 
Superintendent, the Buffalo Board of Education, and the Buffalo Education Equity Task Force. 
 
 MR. GILMOUR moved to approve the resolution.  MR. JOHNSON seconded.  MR. 
BARGNESI, MR. GILMOUR and MR. KOOSHOIAN voted in the negative. 
 
 CARRIED.  (6-3)  

 
SUSPENSION OF THE RULES 

 
Item 22 - MR. GILMOUR moved for a Suspension of the Rules to include an item not on the 

agenda.  
 
GRANTED. 
 
MR. GILMOUR moved for consideration.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
CHAIR BASKIN called for nominations for Commissioner of the Erie County Water 

Authority. 
 
MR. GILMOUR, pursuant to law, presented a petition nominating Peggy A. LaGree for re-

appointment as Commissioner of the Erie County Water Authority. 
 
We, the undersigned, representing the Republican members of the Erie County Legislature, 

do hereby nominate Peggy A. LaGree, residing at 55 Heritage Road East, Williamsville, New York 
14221, for re-appointment as Commissioner of the Erie County Water Authority, to fill a three-year 
term commencing April 27th, 2023 and expiring April 27th, 2026: 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

357 

 
Christopher D. Greene     Frank J. Todaro 
District 6       District 8 
 
John J. Mills 
District 11 

 
CHAIR BASKIN called for any other nominations for Commissioner of the Erie County 

Water Authority. 
 
MR. GILMOUR moved to close nominations.  MR. GREENE seconded. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MR. GILMOUR moved to amend the item.  MR. TODARO seconded. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RESOLUTION. 66    RE: Appointment of Commissioner of  

ECWA  
       (COMM. 8E-18, 2023) 
 

Insert the Following: 
 
     April 27, 2023 
 
Robert M. Graber, Clerk 
Erie County Legislature 
92 Franklin Street, Fourth Floor 
Buffalo, New York 14202 

 
Re: Appointment of Commissioner of the Erie County Water Authority 
 

Dear Clerk Graber: 
 
Pursuant to Section 5.01 of the Erie County Legislature Rules of Order, I have previously 

requested that notice be provided to the public, legislators, media and interested candidates for the 
position of Commissioner of the Erie County Water Authority.  You provided proper notice and 
interviews were conducted by the Legislature’s Energy and Environment Committee on April 13, 
2023. 

 
Therefore, I am prepared to appoint a candidate for Commissioner of the Erie County Water 

Authority as required by Section 1053 of the New York Public Authorities Law.  I hereby appoint 
Peggy LaGree of 55 Heritage Road East, Williamsville, NY 14221 to fill a three (3) year term 
commencing April 28, 2023 and ending April 27, 2026. 

 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

358 

I have attached a Nominating Petition from the Minority Caucus as required by Section 1053 
of the New York Public Authorities Law and request legislative confirmation of this appointment. 

 
Thank you in advance for your assistance. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

April N.M. Baskin 
Chair, Erie County Legislature 

 
MR. GILMOUR moved to approve the item as amended.  MR. TODARO seconded. 
 
CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI, MR. TODARO, MR. BARGNESI, CHAIR 

BASKIN, MR. GILMOUR, MR. JOHNSON, MR. KOOSHOIAN and MS. VINAL.  NOES: None.  
(AYES: 9; NOES: 0) 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby confirm the re-appointment of 

PEGGY A. LAGREE, 55 Heritage Road East, Williamsville, NY 14221, as Commissioner of the 
Erie County Water Authority for a three (3) year term commencing April 27, 2023 and expiring 
April 27, 2026. 

 
Item 23 – MR. GILMOUR moved for a Suspension of the Rules to include an item not on the 

agenda.  
 
GRANTED. 
 

 COMM. 8D-1 from COUNTY ATTORNEY  Re: Opinion as to Form Local Law Intro No. 1-
2 2023 

 
CHAIR BASKIN directed that the letter be received, filed and printed. 

 
     April 25, 2023 
 
Via Email Only 
Hon. April N.M. Baskin, Chairwoman 
Erie County Legislature 
Old Erie County Hall 
92 Franklin Street, 4th Floor 
Buffalo, New York 14202 
 
 Re: Opinion as to Form Local Law Intro No 1-2 2023 
 
Dear Chairwoman Baskin: 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

359 

 
In accordance with the obligations of the Erie County Attorney set forth in subsection 3, 

Section 204 of Article 2 of the Erie County Charter, this legal opinion concerns Local Law Intro No. 
1-2 2023 (1-2). 
 
Preemption 
 

Under New York state law, preemption occurs when a local law directly conflicts with a state 
statute, or where a state statute expressly states that local laws on a given subject matter are 
preempted.  Preemption can also occur where the State Legislature has assumed full regulatory 
responsibility in a field related to the proposed local law.   
 

Here, New York State Real Property Tax Law Section 466-a (RPTL) provides specific 
authority which permits counties to provide for 10% property tax exemptions for volunteer 
firefighters and ambulance workers.  Since the State Legislature has granted counties this specific 
authority, 1-2 does not present a preemption issue of concern.  
 
Grammar  
 
 The stated purpose of 1-2 is to provide any enrolled member of an incorporated volunteer 
firefighter or volunteer ambulance company across Erie County a real property tax exemption of up 
to 10% of assessed value of qualifying real property. We find the grammar and usage of 1-2 to be 
sufficient in order to achieve the stated purpose.   
 
Ambiguities 
 
 While every hypothetical circumstance or eventuality cannot be addressed in the scope of 
this opinion, 1-2 does not present any facial ambiguities that would frustrate its implementation and 
enforcement.  
 
Conclusion 
 
We find that Local Law Intro. 1-2-2023 is sufficient as to form. 
 
      Very truly yours, 
 
      JEREMY C. TOTH 
      Erie County Attorney 
 
      By: Gregory P Kammer 
      Assistant Erie County Attorney 
 

Item 24 - MR. GILMOUR moved for a Suspension of the Rules to include an item not on the 
agenda.  

 
GRANTED. 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

360 

 COMM. 8D-2 from COUNTY ATTORNEY  Re: Opinion as to Form Local Law Intro No. 4-
1 2023 

 
CHAIR BASKIN directed that the letter be received, filed and printed. 

 
     April 25, 2023 
 
Via Email Only 
Hon. April N.M. Baskin, Chairwoman 
Erie County Legislature 
Old Erie County Hall 
92 Franklin Street, 4th Floor 
Buffalo, New York 14202 
 
 Re: Opinion as to Form Local Law Intro No 4-1 2023 
 
Dear Chairwoman Baskin: 
 

In accordance with the obligations of the Erie County Attorney set forth in subsection 3, 
Section 204 of Article 2 of the Erie County Charter, this legal opinion concerns Local Law Intro No. 
4-1 2023 (4-1). 
 
Preemption 
 

Under New York state law, preemption occurs when a local law directly conflicts with a state 
statute, or where a state statute expressly states that local laws on a given subject matter are 
preempted.  Preemption can also occur where the State Legislature has assumed full regulatory 
responsibility in a field related to the proposed local law.   
 

Here, New York State Public Officers Law Section 103-a (POL) provides specific authority 
which authorizes the governing board of a county to adopt a local law authorizing the use of 
videoconferencing.  Since the State Legislature has granted county governing boards this specific 
authority, 4-1 does not present a preemption issue of concern.   
 
Grammar  
 
 The stated purpose of 4-1 is to give the Erie County Legislature the authority to participate in 
meetings via videoconference in a manner consistent with POL. We find the grammar and usage of 
4-1 to be sufficient in order to achieve the stated purpose.  
  
Ambiguities 
 
 While every hypothetical circumstance or eventuality cannot be addressed in the scope of 
this opinion, 4-1 does not present any facial ambiguities that would frustrate its implementation and 
enforcement.  
 
Conclusion 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

361 

 
We find that Local Law Intro. 4-1 2023 is sufficient as to form. 
 
      Very truly yours, 
 
      JEREMY C. TOTH 
      Erie County Attorney 
 
      By: Gregory P Kammer 
      Assistant Erie County Attorney 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

FROM THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 

Item 25 – MR. GILMOUR presented the following resolution and moved for immediate 
consideration.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 67   RE: 2022 Year-End Budget Balancing  
       Amendments & Designations  
       (COMM. 8E-1) 

 
 WHEREAS, year-end budget balancing amendments are necessary to close the County’s 
books and prepare financial statements for review by the County’s independent auditors for the 2022 
fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, amendments were identified in cooperation with the Erie County Comptroller’s 
Office and in consultation with departmental accountants based on year-end financial reports; and  
 
 WHEREAS, existing 2022 funding within a variety of departments has been established as 
fund reservations and designated for re-appropriation into 2023 with no additional transfer required. 
These include $100 million for the New Buffalo Bills Stadium, $41.6 million for delayed 
Intergovernmental Transfer payments to Erie County Medical Center Corporation and $33.3 million 
in duly appropriated items that were not fully expended in 2022; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after completing budget balancing entries and consideration of the 
aforementioned carry-forwards, the County will end 2022 7.2% below budget resulting in a 
$96,442,847 surplus; and 
 
 WHEREAS, key positive variations contributing to this year-end surplus include:  sales tax 
receipts ($48.4M), Medicaid savings ($12.7M), gross salary & fringe savings ($24.8M), Social 
Service operating efficiencies ($16.5M), delinquent property tax collections ($10.8M), interest 
earnings ($5.8M), etc.; and  
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

362 

 WHEREAS, after the establishment of $72 million in re-appropriations are made into the 
2023 Budget, $24,370,732 will be committed to Unassigned Fund Balance for a final 2022 balance 
of $137,767,019 or approximately ten (10) percent of the County’s 2022 Adopted Operating Budget; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, although the Erie County Charter and Code require an Undesignated Fund 
Balance to be at least five (5) percent of the County’s annual operating budget, other municipal 
financial best practices suggest as much as 15 percent; and  
 
 WHEREAS, additionally, this resolution makes several designations that will both reduce 
future bonding and pre-pay remaining bond principal, which, in turn, will lead to approximately 
$23.8 million in interest savings over the next several decades; and 
 
 WHEREAS, specifically, the defeasance of the $9.4 million in remaining old stadium debt 
will save approximately $1.5 million in interest, the addition of $25 million in pay-as-you-go 
funding for the new stadium construction (now a total of $125 million) will save approximately 
$17.7 million in interest and the conversion of 6 capital projects from bonded to pay-as-you-go will 
save approximately $6.6 million in interest. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
 
 RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby 
authorized to adjust the 2022 Budget in order to facilitate the completion of 2022 financial 
statements, based on the following schedule: 
 

2022 Year-End Budget Balancing Amendments 
 

The following list of accounts is balanced by fund and indicates where adjustments are 
needed to match year-end spending. In most cases the source of funds was obtained from within the 
department from where the shortfall occurred. 

Department   Account   
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 
     

General Fund 110 - Expense Adjustments  
     

100 Legislature   
  561410 Lab & Technical Equipment -200,000 

  561420 Office Furn & Fixt 200,000 
 Legislature Total 0 
     

105 Information & Support Services  
  500350 Other Employee Pymts 36,375 

  515000 Utility Charges -36,375 
 Information & Support Services Total 0 
     



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

363 

10610 Division of Purchase  
  500000 Full Time - Salaries 11,839 

  500350 Other Employee Pymts 11,952 
  502000 Fringe Benefits -23,791 
 Division of Purchase Total 0 
     

11510 Sheriff Division  
  500000 Full Time - Salaries 802,915 

  500010 Part Time  - Wages -94,132 
  500030 Seasonal - Wages 235,901 
  500300 Shift Differential 28,930 
  500330 Holiday Worked 66,178 
  500340 Line-up Pay 19,757 
  500350 Other Employee Pymts 185,377 
  501000 Overtime 2,725,717 
  502000 Fringe Benefits -196,193 
  505600 Auto Tr & Hvy Eq Sup -20,787 
  510100 Out Of Area Travel -57,019 
  510200 Training And Education -30,350 
  515000 Utility Charges -11,757 
  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees -32,680 
 Sheriff Division Total 3,621,857 
     

116 Jail Management  
  500000 Full Time - Salaries -1,416,099 

  500300 Shift Differential 114,994 
  500320 Uniform Allowance -19,435 
  500330 Holiday Worked 91,840 
  500340 Line-up Pay -232,838 
  500350 Other Employee Pymts 24,404 
  501000 Overtime 3,682,382 
  502000 Fringe Benefits -1,595,607 
  505400 Food & Kitchen Supplies 84,693 
 Jail Management Total 734,334 
     

11650 Correctional Health Services  
  500000 Full Time - Salaries -363,025 

  500330 Holiday Worked -17,250 
  501000 Overtime 37,490 
  502000 Fringe Benefits -569,462 
  505800 Medical & Health Supplies -141,054 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

364 

  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees 31,431 
  516050 Dept Payments to ECMCC 994,525 
 Correctional Health Total -27,345 
     

120 Department of Social Services  
  500010 Part Time -  Wages -323,255 

  516010 Cnt Pmts-Non Pro Pur 90,000 
  516030 Maintenance Contracts -178,065 
  516040 DSS Trng & Edu Pro 106,710 
  516400 Title XX Prev&Prot -155,733 
  525040 Family Assistance (FA)  -4,826,179 
  525092 Child Care - CCBG 4,706,630 
  525130 State Training School 1,595,434 
  525160 Indigent Care DSH -786,922 
  530000 Other Expenses -740,567 
  530010 Chargebacks -458,679 
  530030 Pivot Wage Subsidies -589,552 
  545000 Rental Charges -114,336 
 Department of Social Services Total -1,674,514 
     

12210 DPW Commissioner’s Office  
  502000 Fringe Benefits -40,428 

  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees 575,000 
  530000 Other Expenses -119,679 
 DPW Commissioner's Office Total 414,893 
     

12220 DPW Building & Grounds  
  500020 Regular PT - Wages -20,323 

  502000 Fringe Benefits -584,577 
  515000 Utility Charges -49,548 
  575040 Interfund Expense-Utility Fund 315,852 
 DPW Building & Grounds Total -338,596 
     

12410 MH - Program Admin.  
  516050 Dept Payments to ECMCC -306,334 

  516010 Cnt Pmts-Non Pro Pur -327,831 
  517581 Court Ordered-MH Srv 878,574 
  502000 Fringe Benefits -63,695 
 MH - Program Admin. Total 180,714 
     



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

365 

12520 Youth Detention  
  502000 Fringe Benefits -1,338,464 

  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees -496,122 
  575040 Interfund Expense-Utility Fund 10,298 
 Youth Detention Total -1,824,288 
     

1273030 Environmental Health  
  502000 Fringe Benefits -75,297 

  516050 Dept Payments to ECMCC 75,297 
 Environmental Health Total 0 
     

12750 Special Needs  
  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees -271,879 

  516050 Dept Payments to ECMCC -276,639 
  528000 Svcs Spec Need Child 1,065,428 
 Special Needs Total 516,910 
     

1335010 Aid to Local Governments  
  516060 Sales Tax Loc Gov 3 % 31,733,381 

 Aid to Local Governments Total 31,733,381 
     

14010 County-wide Acct Budget  
  504990 Reductions Per Srv 1,400,000 

  504992 Salary Reserves -3,875,122 
  511000 Control Board Expense 162,227 
  516050 Dept Payments to ECMCC -346,563 
  520070 Buffalo Bills Maintenance 29,663 
  520072 Working Capital Asst 66,279 
 County-wide Acct Budget Total -2,563,516 
     

14020 Interfund   
  570035 IF Tran-COVID-19 Res 181,160 

  570050 InterFund Trans-Cap 5,750,000 
 Interfund Total 5,931,160 
     

14030 Community College  
  520020 Co Res Enrl Comm Col -65,754 

 Community College Total -65,754 
     

150 Board of Elections  



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

366 

  500000 Full Time - Salaries -169,609 
  500010 Part Time -  Wages -365,398 
  500020 Regular PT - Wages -248,441 
  501000 Overtime -107,761 
  502000 Fringe Benefits -628,578 
  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees -448,736 
  530000 Other Expenses -509,546 
 Board of Elections Total -2,478,069 
     

16010 Law Division  
  502000 Fringe Benefits -264,287 

  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees -119,555 
 Law Division Total -383,842 
     

16110 Personnel   
  502000 Fringe Benefits -164,252 

  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees -73,198 
 Personnel Total -237,450 
     

16200 Env.& Planning Divn.  
  502000 Fringe Benefits -70,742 

  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees -402,881 
 Env.& Planning Divn. Total -473,623 
     

16410 Parks Department  
  502000 Fringe Benefits -228,899 

  515000 Utility Charges 42,415 
  575040 Interfund Expense-Utility Fund 19,567 
 Parks Department Total     -166,917 
     

16500 Central Police Services  
  500000 Full Time - Salaries -58,977 

  502000 Fringe Benefits -162,618 
 Central Police Services Total -221,595 
     

16700 Homeland Security & Emergency Services  
  500000 Full Time - Salaries -23,855 

  559000 County Share - Grants 23,855 
 Homeland Security & Emergency Services Total 0 
     



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

367 

500 ECMC   
  502000 Fringe Benefits -232,949 

 ECMC Total -232,949 
     

510 EC Home   
  502000 Fringe Benefits -194,500 

 EC Home Total -194,500 
     

 Total General Fund 110 Expense Adjustments 32,250,291 
     

General Fund 110 - Revenue Adjustments  
     

12750 Special Needs  
  405570 ME 50% Fed Presch 516,910 

 Special Needs Total 516,910 
     

     
14010 County-wide Acct Budget  

  402140 Sales Tax to Local Gov 31,733,381 
  405500 SA-Spec Need Presch  

  409050 State Aid Revenue Offset  
 County-wide Acct Budget Total 31,733,381 

     
 Total General Fund 110 Revenue Adjustments 32,250,291 

     
 Net General Fund 110 Adjustments 0 

     
Highway Fund 210 - Expense Adjustments  

123 Highways (DPW)  
  501000 Overtime 60,048 

  502000 Fringe Benefits -159,576 
  505600 Auto Tr & Hvy Eq Sup 34,788 
  506200 Maintenance & Repair 64,740 
 Highways (DPW) Total 0 
     

E-911 Fund 230 -Expense Adjustments  
11510 Sheriff Division  

  500000 Full Time - Salaries 17,887 
  502000 Fringe Benefits -17,887 
 Sheriff Division Total 0 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

368 

     
12720 Emergency Medical Services  

  501000 Overtime 76,238 
  502000 Fringe Benefits -76,238 
 Emergency Medical Services Total 0 
     

 Total E-911 Fund 230 Expense Adjustments 0 
     

Debt Service Fund 310 - Adjustments  
     

17200 General Debt  
 Expense   
  550000 Principal - Bonds  
  550010 Principal - Long Term Loan 5,085,000 

  550110 Bond Issue Costs 196,640 
  550800 Interest - Bonds  

  550810 Interest-Long Term Loan 6,624,050 
 General Debt Expense Total 11,905,690 
     

 Revenue   
  445070 Premium on Obligations 208,828 

  445180 Interest-Long Term Loan  4,721,495 
  466350 Principal-Long Term Loan 6,975,367 
  486010 Resid Equity Tran-In  

 General Debt Revenue Total 11,905,690 
     

 Net General Debt Adjustments 0 
     

17300 Debt Srv SD 1,4 & 5  
 Expense   
  550000 Principal - Bonds 30,427  

  550800 Interest - Bonds 20,223  
 Debt Service SD 1,4 & 5 Expense Total 50,650  
     

 Revenue   
  475090 NYSEFC Bond Subsidy Income 50,650  

 Debt Service SD 1,4 & 5 Revenue Total 50,650  
     

 Net Debt Service SD 1,4 & 5 Adjustments 0  
     



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

369 

17400 Debt Srv SD 2  
 Expense   
  550000 Principal - Bonds 5,044  

 Debt Service SD 2 Expense Total 5,044  
     

 Revenue   
  475090 NYSEFC Bond Subsidy Income 5,044  

 Debt Service SD 2 Revenue Total 5,044  
     

 Net Debt Service SD 2 Adjustments 0  
     

17500 Debt Srv SD 3/Southtowns  
  550800 Interest - Bonds 5,918  

 Debt Service SD 3/Southtowns Expense Total 5,918  
     

 Revenue   
  475090 NYSEFC Bond Subsidy Income 5,918  

 Debt Service SD 3/Southtowns Revenue Total 5,918  
     

 Net Debt Service SD 3/Southtowns Adjustments 0  
     

17600 Debt Svc - SD 6  
 Expense   
  550000 Principal - Bonds 14,966  

  550800 Interest - Bonds (9,322) 
 Debt Service SD 6 Expense Total 5,644  
     

 Revenue   
  475090 NYSEFC Bond Subsidy Income 5,644  

 Debt Service SD 6 Revenue Total 5,644  
     

 Net Debt Service SD 6 Adjustments 0  
 
and be it further 
   

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to re-appropriate $100,000,000 in available 
2022 funding established as fund reservations into 2023 for pay-as-you-go funding for the New 
Buffalo Bills Stadium, no transfer is required; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to re-appropriate $41,599,635 in available 

2022 funding established as fund reservations into 2023 for the following items directly related to 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

370 

the delayed Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) Payments to Erie County Medical Center Corporation 
(ECMCC), no transfer is required: 

 
Countywide  
 2022 Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) Payments  $ 39,013,497  
 2022 Upper Payment Limit (UPL) Payments  $   2,586,138  
 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to re-appropriate $33,335,460 in available 
2022 funding established as fund reservations into 2023 for the following items, no transfer is 
required: 
 
Countywide  
 Grant Local Share  $   3,034,123  

 2021 Budget Balancing PAYGO Capital - Unexpended  $   1,315,000  

 2022 Budgeted - All Other  $      228,000  
Environment & Planning  
 Storefront Revitalization Program  $   8,400,000  
 Legislature Directed Urban Initiatives Funding  $   2,400,000  
 Legislative Directed RENEW Plan Allocations - Unexpended  $   1,749,424  
 2020-22 Cultural & Community Benefit Funding - Unexpended  $      552,466  
 Poverty Initiative  $      400,000  
 Climate Action "PARIS" Fund  $      180,063  
Equal Employment Opportunity, Diversity & Inclusion  
 2022 Disparity Study - Allocated  $      500,000  
 2022 Disparity Study - Unallocated  $      500,000  
Health   
 Environmental Health Water Safety Program   $      225,000  
 Division of Health Equity ARP Funding - Unexpended  $      202,383  
 Community Health Center of Buffalo  $      175,000  
 Public Health Lab Cooperative Agreement with Monroe County  $      130,000  
Homeland Security & Emergency Services  
 Communication Tower Repairs  $        50,000  
Law   
 Risk Retention  $   3,520,262  
Legislature  
 Lab & Technical Equipment & Furniture - Unallocated  $      210,000  
Mental Health  
 Housing Options Program  $      350,000  

 Website Upgrades for Mental Health/Youth  $      100,000  

 Suboxone Initiative for Jail Management Division  $        54,023  



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

371 

 Mobile Telephone App Development  $        50,000  

 V3iT Software (Per COMM 18E-26)  $        50,000  

 CCNY (Per COMM. 14E-12)  $        43,906  

 Murals at 120 West Eagle  $          2,650  
Public Works - Highways  
 AURIGO Capital Planning & Cost Management System  $      575,000  

 Municipal Capital Program Management  $      380,000  
Sheriff's Office  
 Radio Upgrade Project  $   1,500,000  
 Warehouse & Office Lease (Per COMM. 14E-20)  $        87,519  
Social Services  
 DSS Workforce Development Action  $   4,550,000  

 DSS Live Well Innovation  $      597,537  

 Training & Education  $      470,028  

 Employment Services  $      425,000  

 Domestic Violence Services  $      225,515  

 Raise the Age  $      150,000  

 Child Abuse Prevention  $        82,500  

 Preventative Services  $          8,067  
SUNY Erie Community College  
 Unemployment Cost Relief Funds  $      861,994  
 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to transfer $4,679,739 in available 2022 
funding for additional designations and establish re-appropriations into 2023 as follows: 
 
Health and Human Services  
 EMS Ambulance Operations - Start-Up $   2,954,739  
 EMS Ambulance Operations - Building Design & Construction $   1,725,000  
 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Division of Budget and Management 
to amend the Department of Health’s Division of Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 2023 Budget 
(Fund 110, Funds Center 12720) in the amount of $2,954,739 for EMS Ambulance Operations start-
up as necessary; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to create the following positions within EMS 
as of June 3, 2023, of which sufficient funding is available in EMS’s 2023 Budget as included in the 
“EMS Ambulance Operations – Start-Up” appropriation above: 
 
Department Title Status Unit JG # B100 # 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

372 

Health EMS Director of Ambulance Services FT CSEA 13 1 13634 
Health EMS Paramedic Program Director FT CSEA 13 1 13635 
Health EMS Supervising Emergency Medical 

Technician - Paramedic 
FT CSEA 11 1 13636 

Health EMS Emergency Medical Technician 
- Paramedic II 

FT CSEA 10 5 13637 

Health EMS Emergency Medical Technician 
- Paramedic I 

FT CSEA 9 5 13638 

Health EMS Emergency Medical Technician 
- Paramedic I 

PT CSEA 9 6 13639 

Health EMS Advanced Emergency Medical 
Technician 

FT CSEA 8 4 13640 

Health EMS Emergency Medical Technician RPT CSEA 7 4  13684 
Health EMS Emergency Medical Technician PT CSEA 7 4 13732 
Health EMS Junior Administrative Assistant FT CSEA 7 1 13731 
Health EMS Emergency Communication 

Nurse 
FT NYSNA 11 2 13733 

 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to transfer $261,437 in available 2022 
funding for additional designations and establish re-appropriations into 2023 as follows: 
 
Countywide  
 Salary Reserve  $     261,437  
 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to create the following positions as of June 
3, 2023, of which sufficient funding is available in the 2023 Budget as included in the “Salary 
Reserve” appropriation above: 
 
Department Title Status Unit JG # B100 # 

HSES Building Guard FT AFSCME 6 2 13676 
Comptroller Public Affairs Consultant RPT MC 16 1 13722 
DPW B&G Electrical Engineer FT CSEA 13 1 13646 
 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to upgrade the following positions as of June 
3, 2023, of which sufficient funding is available in the 2023 Budget as included in the “Salary 
Reserve” appropriation above: 
 

Department Title Status Unit 
Old 
JG 

New 
JG # B100 # 

HSES Building Guard FT AFSCME 4 6 14 13674 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

373 

HSES Building Guard - Shift 
Supervisor 

FT AFSCME 5 7 2 13675 

HSES Coordinator of Building 
Security 

FT CSEA 9 10 1 13741 

 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization hereby given to transfer $67,130,939 in available 2022 
funding for additional designations and establish re-appropriations into 2023 as follows: 
 
Countywide  
 New Stadium Pay-As-You-Go  $ 25,000,000  

 Existing Stadium Debt Defeasance  $   9,421,977  

 Teamsters Contractual Reserve  $      900,000  
Economic Development 

 

 2023 Storefront Revitalization Program  $   5,000,000  

 Renaissance Commerce Park Capital Fund  $   3,800,000  

 2022 November Storm Damage Fund  $   2,000,000  

 Erie County Healthcare Careers Program  $      280,000  

 Niagara Military Affairs Council  $        10,000  
Education and Libraries  
 SUNY Erie CSEA & AFSCME Contract Reserve   $   3,492,316  

 Central Library - Evolv Weapons Detectors  $      510,976  

 Central Library - Teen/Kids Space Conversion  $      115,000  

 Buffalo Science Museum Eclipse 2024 Glasses  $      100,000  

 Chromebook Hotspot Lending Program  $        70,000  

 Central Library - Security Needs  $        60,000  
General Services 

 

 New Jail & Corrections Center Pre-Construction  $   2,500,000  

 SUNY Erie Master Plan Phase 2 Pay-As-You-Go  $   2,500,000  

 
Fed Aid William Street Reconstruction Phase 1 Pay-As-
You-Go 

 $   1,628,000  

 Parks - Emery Maintenance Building Exterior Renovations   $   1,100,000  

 Parks - Winter Groomers  $      750,000  

 Rath Building Improvements Pay-As-You-Go  $      750,000  

 Parks Roads & Parking Lots Pay-As-You-Go  $      750,000  

 Kleinhans Capital Improvements Pay-As-You-Go  $      650,000  

 
SUNY Erie North Campus Sports Field Complex 
Construction  

 $      500,000  

 Building & Grounds - Work Order System Expansion  $      300,000  

 Trailblazing Women Monument  $      250,000  

 Transit Road Sanitary Study  $      125,000  
Health and Human Services  



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

374 

 Youth Sports AED Kits  $      220,000  

 Civic Ready  $      150,000  

 Save the Michaels  $      100,000  

 211 - Outreach  $      100,000  

 Say Yes Summer Camp  $      100,000  

 Mural for 608 William Street  $        50,000  

 Feed More WNY  $        50,000  

 United Way Emergency Care Kits  $        25,000  

 Cornell Childcare Study  $        25,000  
Public Safety  
 District Attorney Discovery Local Share Grants Reserve  $   2,819,402  

 Probation Discovery Local Share Grants Reserve  $      403,268  

 Winter Storm Rating System  $      350,000  

 Emergency Operations Center Upgrades  $      175,000  
 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to make the following 2022 budget 
adjustments in order to establish funding for the re-appropriations into 2023 as outlined in the 
preceding resolve clauses: 

Department Account   
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 
Designations   
General Fund 110 - Expense Adjustments  
     

10110 County Executive's Office  
  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees 420,000 

  561410 Lab & Technical Equipment 70,000 
 County Executive’s Office Total 490,000 
     

11400 District Attorney's Office  
  559000 County Share - Grants 2,819,402  

 District Attorney's Office Total 2,819,402  
     

120 Department of Social Services  
  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees 250,000 
 Department of Social Services Total 250,000 

     
12210 DPW Commissioner’s Office  

  516020 Professional Services Cont & Fees 300,000 
 DPW Commissioner's Office Total 300,000 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

375 

     
12610 Probation   

  559000 County Share - Grants 403,268  
 Probation Total 403,268  
     

12700 Health Division  
  516020 Pro Ser Cnt and Fees 50,000  

 Health Division Total 50,000  
     

12720 Emergency Medical Services  
  516045 Program Start-Up Costs 2,954,739 

  570050 InterFund Trans-Cap 1,725,000 
 Emergency Medical Services Total 4,679,739 
     

1331010 Economic Development  

  518700 
WIB Health Professions 
Opportunity 280,000 

 Economic Development Total 280,000 
     

1332010 Community/Neighborhood Development  

  516340 
Storefront Community 
Revitalization 5,000,000 

  517780 Save the Michaels of the World 100,000 
  518053 Niag Mil Affairs Council 10,000 
 Community/Neighborhood Development Total 5,110,000 
     

1333020 Cultural Agencies  
  518064 Buffalo Society Natural Sciences 100,000 

 Cultural Agencies Total 100,000 
     

14010 County-wide Acct Budget  
  504992 Full Time - Salaries 261,437 

  504998 Net Impact Teamsters 900,000 
  516020 Pro Ser Cnt and Fees 4,500,000 
  570000 Interfund Transfers Subsidy 125,000 
  570050 InterFund Trans-Cap 25,000,000 
 County-wide Acct Budget Total 30,786,437 
     

14020 Interfund   
  570028 Interfund County Share Library 685,976 

  570040 Interfund Subsidy-Debt Service 9,421,977 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

376 

  570050 InterFund Trans-Cap 12,103,000 
 Interfund Total 22,210,953 
     

14030 Community College  
  575000 Interfnd Exp Non-Sub 3,492,316 

 Community College Total 3,492,316 
     

16410 Parks Department  
  561430 Building, Grounds & Heavy Eqmt 750,000 

 Parks Department Total 750,000 
     

16700 Homeland Security & Emergency Services  
  516020 Pro Ser Cnt and Fees 350,000 

 Homeland Security & Emergency Services Total 350,000 
     

 Total Designations Expense  72,072,115 
     

Designations   
General Fund 110 - Revenue Adjustments  
     

11400 District Attorney's Office  
  409010 State Aid - Other 2,819,402  

 District Attorney's Office Total 2,819,402  
     

120 Department of Social Services  
  414030 FMAP Revenue 640,002 

  466070 Refunds P/Y Expenses 8,160,473 
 Department of Social Services Total 8,800,000 
     

12610 Probation   
  409010 State Aid - Other 403,268  

 Probation Total 403,268  
     

14010 County-wide Acct Budget  
  400050 Int&Pen on R P Taxes 1,771,163 

  402000 Sales Tax EC Purp 16,513,962 
  402100 1% Sales Tax-EC Purp 17,686,163 
  402120 .25% Sales Tax 4,313,612 
  402130 .5% Sales Tax 8,860,054 
  402500 OTB Betting & Gaming 1,474,060 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

377 

  402520 Gaming Facilities Aid 3,652,018 
 County-wide Acct Budget Total 54,271,032 
     

17000 Countywide Accounts - Comptroller  
  445030 Int & Earn - Gen Inv 4,769,527 

  445040 Int & Earn-3rd Party 1,008,411 
 Countywide Accounts - Comptroller Total 5,777,938 
     

 Total Designations Revenue 72,072,115 
     

 Designations Net Impact 0 
 
and be it further 
  
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the County Executive enter into contract 
with Bergmann and Associates to providing consulting services to assist the Department of Public 
Works with the continued implementation of the Cartegraph software system for GIS building 
inventory and a work order system for an amount not to exceed  the $300,000  “Highways – Work 
Order System Expansion” appropriation authorized above, with purchasing authority provided under 
the New York State Office of General Services; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Director of Budget and Management 
to make any additional 2022 and 2023 budgetary adjustments necessary to implement budgetary 
amendments, carry-forwards and the establishment of re-appropriations authorized in this resolution; 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Director of Budget and Management 
to make any further 2022 Budget adjustments that may be required based on inter-departmental 
budget balancing or adjusting entries identified by the Erie County Comptroller or the County’s 
independent auditors, said adjustments would be made in conjunction with the Office of the 
Comptroller in preparation of their final financial statements and for no other purpose; and be it 
further 
 
 RESOLVED, that none of the aforesaid budget transfer items shall be deemed to approve, 
fund, or permit the physical alteration of the environment for any specific action or project identified 
above until the applicable environmental review(s) for the specific action or project is completed in 
accordance with the applicable laws, including but not limited to the New York State Environmental 
Quality Review Act (Art 8 of New York State Environmental Conservation Law); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature be instructed to forward certified copies of this 
resolution to the County Executive’s Office, the Comptroller’s Office, the Department of Law, and 
the Division of Budget and Management.  

 
MR. GILMOUR moved to amend the item.  MR. TODARO seconded. 

 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

378 

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Amend 11th Resolve Clause as Follows: 
 
Delete: 
New Jail & Corrections Center – Pre-Construction - $2,500,000 
 
Add: 
Public Safety Needs Assessment & Facility Feasibility Study - $750,000 
 
Public Safety Facilities – Pre-Construction - $1,750,000 
 
Jail Management Division (Community Reintegration Division Furniture Project) - $45,000 
 Fund Center – 116 Account-561420 – Office Eqmt. Furniture & Fixtures 
 
Jericho Road Community Health Center (Vive, Inc. Shelter)   $150,000 
Village of Farnham Volunteer Fire Department    $5,000 
Town of Brant         $3,000 
Langford-New Oregon Volunteer Fire Company    $5,000 
Hillcrest Volunteer Fire Company      $5,000 
Orchard Park Volunteer Fire Company     $5,000 
Windom Volunteer Fire Company      $5,000 
Boston Emergency Squad       $20,000 
Mortons Corners Fire Department      $3,000 
Village of North Collins Fire Department     $5,000 
Eden Fire Department        $5,000 
Brant-Farnham Historical Society      $5,000 
Operation Good Neighbor       $5,000 
Eden North Collins Food Pantry      $5,000 
WNY Southtowns Scenic Byway      $10,000 
Boston Free Library        $2,000 
Town of Collins Public Library      $2,000 
North Collins Public Library       $2,000 
Angola Public Library       $2,000 
Eden Public Library        $2,000 
Concord Public Library       $2,000 
Orchard Park Public Library       $2,000 
Foster Closet WNY        $10,000 
Clarence Fire District No. 1       $30,000 
Clarence Football Boosters       $10,000 
Village of Akron         $25,000 
Friendship Foundation       $5,000 
Amherst Youth Foundation       $5,000 
Buddy's Second Chance Rescue      $5,000 
Amherst South Rotary       $2,500 
Clarence Chamber of Commerce      $7,500 
Alden Historical Society       $5,000 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

379 

Alden Substance Abuse Coalition Prevention Coalition    $3,000 
Alden High School/ Bulldog Manufacturing      $3,000 
Town of Lancaster         $30,000 
Town of Cheektowaga       $5,000 
P.U.N.T Pediatric Cancer Collaborative     $20,000 
Boys & Girls Club of Depew-Lancaster     $10,000 
Alden Community Center       $10,000 
Lancaster Senior Center        $10,000 
716Patriots         $4,000 
Blossom in NY Inc.        $10,000 
Blossom Fire Company       $10,000 
Elma, Marilla, Wales Boys & Girls Club     $10,000 
Elma Conservation Club       $10,000 
Friends of Knox Farm        $10,000 
West Seneca Police Department      $10,000 
West Falls Center for the Arts      $10,000 
West Seneca Senior Center       $5,000 
Aurora Senior Center        $5,000 
West Seneca Cares, Inc.       $5,000 
Elma Historical Society       $5,000 
Office of the Aurora Town Historian      $5,000 
Roycroft Campus Corporation      $5,000 
Buffalo Friends of Folk Music, Inc.                                           $20,000 
O’Connell & Company Productions                                         $20,000 
Eggertsville Hose Company                                                       $20,000 
Bangladeshi American Social & Cultural Org.                $20,000 
George F. Lamm Post #62                                                          $20,000 
Town of Cheektowaga Senior Center      $100,000 
The EXE Jr. Program        $15,000 
African American Cultural Center       $20,000 
The Galactic Tribe        $15,000 
Michigan Str African American Heritage District     $15,000 
Ujima Company         $25,000 
Burchfield Penny Art Center       $10,000 
Every Bottom Covered        $20,000 
King Urban Life Center        $20,000 
Ramp Global Missions (Project Mona’s House)    $20,000 
Erie Niagara Area Health Education Center (Melinated Moms)   $15,000 
Agape AME Church         $10,000 
Mother Earth Literacies       $15,000 
Hamburg Central School District – Union Pleasant Elementary School $100,000 
Town of Tonawanda (Paramedics)      $20,000 
City of Tonawanda (Visual Arts Board)     $10,000 
American Legion Post 264       $10,000 
Hertel North Park Youth Baseball League     $10,000  
City of Tonawanda (Senior Center)      $10,000  
Parkside Community Association      $10,000 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

380 

Frank Lloyd Wright Martin House      $20,000 
Town of Tonawanda (Pocket Parks & Recreation)                $10,000  
Town of Grand Island (Police)       $20,000 
Boys & Girls Club of the Northtowns       $20,000 
James V. and Fay P. Ryan Paramedic Foundation     $20,000 
Buffalo Parent Teacher Organization                                 $10,000 
Tonawanda Community Gardens and Totes Project     $20,000 
American Legions Post # 1041      $10,000 
 
Add New Resolve Clause as Follows: 
 

RESOLVED, the Public Safety Needs Assessment & Facility Feasibility Study must require 
a request for proposal process in accordance with Erie County procurement policies, and the request 
for proposal for the Public Safety Needs Assessment & Facility Feasibility Study shall include 
language that requires a racial equity lens evaluation, robust community engagement process, and an 
alternatives to new construction analysis in the scope of work for the study; and be it further  
 
Add New Resolve Clause as Follows: 
 

RESOLVED, the funds for the Public Safety Facilities – Pre-Construction at $1,750,000 
shall not be released until the Public Safety Needs Assessment & Facility Feasibility Study is 
completed and adopted by this honorable body; and be it further 

 
MR. GILMOUR requested the separation of the 5th, 6th, and 7th Resolve Clauses, and moved 

to approve the balance of the item.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MR. GILMOUR moved to approve the 5th Resolve Clause.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI, MR. TODARO, MR. BARGNESI, CHAIR 

BASKIN, MR. GILMOUR, MR. JOHNSON, MR. KOOSHOIAN and MS. VINAL.  NOES: None.  
(AYES: 9; NOES: 0) 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MR. GILMOUR moved to approve the 6th Resolve Clause.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. BARGNESI, CHAIR BASKIN, MR. GILMOUR, MR. JOHNSON, MR. 

KOOSHOIAN and MS. VINAL.  NOES: MR. GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI and MR. 
TODARO.  (AYES: 6; NOES: 3) 

 
CARRIED. 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

381 

 
MR. GILMOUR moved to approve the 7th Resolve Clause.  MR. JOHNSON seconded.  MR. 

GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI and MR. TODARO voted in the negative. 
 
CARRIED.  (6-3) 
 

FROM THE COMPTROLLER 
 
Item 26 – (COMM. 8E-2)  Comptroller Analysis of 2022 Budget Balancing Amendments & 

Designations 
 
Received and referred to the FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE SHERIFF 
 
Item 27 – (COMM. 8E-3)  Chaplain Agreements for Holding Center & Correctional Facility 
 
Received and referred to the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM LEGISLATOR MEYERS 
 
Item 28 – (COMM. 8E-4)  Letter Concerning Absence for Session No. 8 
 
Received, filed and printed. 

 
April 21, 2023 
 
Robert Graber, Clerk 
Erie County Legislature 
92 Franklin Street 
Buffalo, NY 14202 
 
Dear Clerk Graber,  
 
This letter is to explain my absence from the April 27, 2023 Legislature Session #9. Due to recovery 
from recent surgery, I will be unable to attend the meeting.  
 
Please enter the aforementioned into the Legislature’s official record.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Timothy J. Meyers 
7th District Legislator 

 
FROM THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 
Item 29 – (COMM. 8E-5)  ECSD Nos. 1 & 3 - Various Sanitary Sewer Replacements 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

382 

 
Item 30 – (COMM. 8E-6)  ECSD No. 3 - National Fuel Gas Distribution Corporation 
 
Item 31 – (COMM. 8E-7)  ECSD No. 3 - Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 
 
Item 32 – (COMM. 8E-8)  EC Fair Housing Study - Authorization to Enter Into an 

Agreement with Consultant 
 
Item 33 – (COMM. 8E-9)  PILOT Agreement for Ellicott Town Center, City of Buffalo - 

Affordable Housing Development 
 
Item 34 – (COMM. 8E-10)  Chestnut Ridge Park Culvert PK-21 Stone Wall Replacement 
 
Item 35 – (COMM. 8E-11)  SUNY ECC City Campus, 2021 Ellicott St. Building - Clay Tile 

Roof Repair Rebid 
 
Item 36 – (COMM. 8E-12)  Grover Cleveland Golf Course Schenck House & Restroom 

Renovation Project Construction Award 
 
The above eight items were received and referred to the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 37 – (COMM. 8E-13)  Personnel Adjustment - EC Department of Probation & 

Increased Appropriation for Electronic Monitoring 
 
Received and referred to the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE SHERIFF & COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 
Item 38 – (COMM. 8E-14)  Tablet Program Expansion & Community Reintegration Office 

Furniture 
 
Received and referred to the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE COMPTROLLER 
 
Item 39 – (COMM. 8E-15)  Submission Pursuant to EC Code of Ethics 
 
Received, filed and printed. 

 
      April 24, 2023 
 
Mr. Robert M. Graber, Clerk 
Erie County Legislature 
92 Franklin Street 
Buffalo, NY  14202 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

383 

 
Dear Mr. Graber: 
 
 The purpose of this letter is to comply with our ethics law regarding relatives who hold 
government positions.  The only relatives who are employed by governments in Erie County of 
whom I am aware are: 
 

• My wife, Deborah L. Hardwick, an elementary teacher for the Buffalo Public Schools; and 
• My daughter, Aubrey Hill, who is also an elementary teacher for the Buffalo Public Schools. 

 
In addition, I am aware of the following relatives who live outside of Erie County and are 

employed by government entities: 
 

• My sister, Peggy Holmes, who is employed by Broome Community College; 
• My niece, Alicia Woodard, a police officer in Norwich, NY; 
• My nephew, Ricky Green, a state trooper in Connecticut;   
• My nephew, Jason Woodard, who is a police officer in Jackson Township, Pennsylvania; and 
• My niece, Sidney Holmes, who is a teacher in the Chenango Valley Central School District 

in Broome County. 
 

I also have numerous cousins and other relatives who I have lost contact with over the years.  
To my knowledge, though, none reside in Western New York and I am unaware of any who are 
employed by government. 

 
     Sincerely, 
 

Kevin R. Hardwick 
Erie County Comptroller 

 
FROM LEGISLATOR MILLS 

 
Item 40 – (COMM. 8E-16)  Letter Concerning Absence for Session No. 8 
 
Received, filed and printed. 

 
April 24, 2023 

 
Hon. April N.M. Baskin, Chair 
Erie County Legislature 
92 Franklin Street, 4th Floor 
Buffalo, New York  14202 
 
Dear Chair Baskin, 
 

I regret that I will unavoidably be unable to attend the session on April 27, 2023.  I am 
scheduled to be out of town on that date for a business meeting.   



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

384 

 
Thank you. 

 
Yours Truly, 
 
John J. Mills 
Erie County Legislator – 11th District 

 
 
cc: Robert M. Graber, Clerk 

Erie County Legislature 
 

FROM THE SHERIFF 
 
Item 41 – (COMM. 8E-17)  Award On-Site Diagnostic Imaging Services for the Holding 

Center & Correctional Facility 
 
Received and referred to the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS  

 
 None. 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES 
. 

FROM THE NFTA 
 

 Item 42 – (COMM. 8M-1)  Metro Cash Flow Statements 
 

Received and referred to the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE NYSDEC 
 

 Item 43 – (COMM. 8M-2)  DEC Invites Public Comment About Brownfield Application for 
Site on East Huron St., Buffalo 
 

Received and referred to the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE NYS DEPT OF AGRICULTURE & MARKETS 
 

 Item 44 – (COMM. 8M-3)  Final Notice of Intent to Undertake an Action within an 
Agricultural District, Grand Island 
 

Received and referred to the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE. 
 



MEETING NO. 8 
APRIL 27, 2023                                                                            ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

385 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
 Item 45 – Chair Baskin announced that the Legislature will conduct committee meetings on 
Thursday, May 4, 2023, and the schedule will be distributed.  Chair Baskin further announced that 
the next scheduled session of the Legislature will be held on Thursday, May 11, 2023.   
 
 Chair Baskin also announced a timetable to hold committee discussions and conduct a vote 
on the legislation concerning the new stadium complex in Orchard Park involving NYS and Buffalo 
Bills.  She announced that the Economic Development Committee will conduct discussions on 
Wednesday, May 3, 2023 and Thursday, May 4, 2023, in the Chamber of the Legislature.  Chair 
Baskin also announced that a Special Session of the Legislature will be held on Thursday, May 4, 
2023, also in the Chamber of the Legislature, to conduct the vote on the new stadium complex 
package. 
 
 

MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS 
 
 Item 46 – Legislator Todaro requested that when the Legislature adjourns, it do so in 
memory of Joan Ratajczak. 
 
 Item 47 – Chair Baskin requested that when the Legislature adjourns, it do so in memory of 
Robert Smith Jr. 
 
 Item 48 – Legislator Malczewski requested that when the Legislature adjourns, it do so in 
memory of Michelle Brennan. 
 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Item 49 – At this time, there being no further business to transact, CHAIR BASKIN 
announced that the Chair would entertain a Motion to Adjourn. 
 
 MR. JOHNSON moved that the Legislature adjourn until Thursday, May 11, 2023 at 12:00 
Noon.  MR. GILMOUR seconded. 
  
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 CHAIR BASKIN declared the Legislature adjourned until Thursday, May 11, 2023 at 12:00 
Noon. 
 
 

ROBERT M. GRABER 
CLERK OF THE LEGISLATURE 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
Minutes for Meeting No. 9   

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Minutes for Meeting No. 9



MEETING NO. 9 – SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023                                                                                 ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

386 

ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
MEETING NO. 9 

SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023 

  
The Legislature was called to order by Chair Baskin.  
 
All members present, except Legislator Meyers. 

  
An Invocation was held, led by Mr. Gilmour, who requested a moment of silence. 

  
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Mills. 
 
   

COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE 
 

Item 1 – MR. GILMOUR moved to discharge the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE of further consideration of COMM. 7E-8 (2023).  MR. JOHNSON seconded.   

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 68   RE: New Stadium Complex in Orchard Park  
       Involving NYS and Buffalo Bills 
       (COMM. 7E-8, 2023) 

 
 WHEREAS, Ralph C. Wilson, Jr. formed a professional football team in 1960 that became 
known as the Buffalo Bills; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Buffalo Bills are an original American Football League franchise and have 
been located in Buffalo and the County (as defined herein) for the last sixty-three years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Buffalo Bills played their first thirteen seasons in the City of Buffalo at War 
Memorial Stadium (also known as the “Rockpile”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 1971, the Buffalo Bills began looking for a new place to play and ultimately, 
in conjunction with the County, built a stadium that would initially be known as Rich Stadium 
located in Orchard Park, New York; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the Buffalo Bills would go on to play their first season in 1973 at Rich Stadium 
and continue to do so for the next forty-nine seasons; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the naming rights to Rich Stadium has changed hands over the years, with the 
stadium also having been known as Ralph Wilson Stadium, New Era Field, Bills Stadium, and 
currently Highmark Stadium; and  
 



MEETING NO. 9 – SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023                                                                                 ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

387 

 WHEREAS, the Buffalo Bills have been an important part of New York for more than sixty-
two years and the team is an integral part of the fabric of this community and brings pride and 
distinction to the County, the Western New York region and the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Buffalo Bills are a part of the efforts to promote the County and Western 
New York as a major community where companies may settle and grow; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Buffalo Bills, as part of the regional and State economy, bring significant 
amounts of sales tax, hotel occupancy tax and personal income tax to public sector coffers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2014, the Buffalo Bills, the County and the State formed a committee known 
as the “New Stadium Working Group” to conduct a study and determine whether the current stadium 
could be renovated to be comparable with current National Football League facilities or whether a 
new stadium should be built; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after exploring all potential options, the New Stadium Working Group 
recommended that a new stadium (referred to herein as the “New Stadium Project”) be built in light 
of the age and cost of structural repairs needed for Highmark Stadium to remain a safe and viable 
home for the team; and   
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Buffalo Bills, the County, the State and the thousands of 
fans of the Buffalo Bills who are located throughout the world, that the Buffalo Bills remain in Erie 
County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 29, 2022, the Buffalo Bills, the County and the State, through the 
ECSC (as defined herein), signed a Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU”) outlining a 
common understanding among the parties and setting forth in principle certain actions to be 
undertaken by each of the parties to enable (a) the financing, design and construction of the New 
Stadium Project and (b) the Buffalo Bills to continue to play their home games at Highmark Stadium 
through completion of construction of the New Stadium Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on May 26, 2022, this Honorable Body approved the MOU; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the MOU, the financial contribution to be made by the County to 
the design and construction of the New Stadium Project is $250 million, regardless of the total cost; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon completion of the New Stadium Project, the County will have no further 
obligation to the Buffalo Bills or the operation of the new facility, except for the limited obligations 
set forth in the Stadium Lease (as defined herein); and 
 

WHEREAS,  the County of Erie, a New York municipal corporation (the “County”), Erie 
County Stadium Corporation, a New York business corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
New York State Urban Development Corporation d/b/a Empire State Development, which 
subsidiary is a public benefit corporation (“ECSC”) and Buffalo Bills, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company (the “Bills”) have decided to develop and construct a new football stadium and 
related amenities in the Town of Orchard Park, New York (the “Stadium Complex”); and 



MEETING NO. 9 – SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023                                                                                 ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

388 

 
WHEREAS, Bills Stadium and Events Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 

(“StadCo”), an affiliate of the Bills by virtue of the common ownership of StadCo and the Bills by 
Buffalo Bills Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“HoldCo”) and ECSC have 
entered into a new stadium lease (the “Stadium Lease”) with respect to the Bills’ use of the Stadium 
Complex; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Stadium Lease requires that the County, ECSC and StadCo jointly fund a 

Capital Improvement Fund (the “Fund”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County shall use revenue produced by a county surcharge imposed on ticket 

and other items at the Stadium Complex to satisfy its required contribution to the Fund; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Stadium Lease provides that the County’s obligation to contribute to the 
Fund shall not exceed the amount of revenue generated by the county surcharge and collected on its 
behalf (the “Surcharges Revenue”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 1, 2022, the Erie County Legislature transmitted to all potentially 
Interested and Involved Agencies (as those terms are defined pursuant to SEQRA) a notice of the 
Legislature's intent to act as Lead Agency for the review of the Stadium Complex (together with a 
completed Part 1 of the Full Environmental Assessment Form), as that term is defined pursuant to 
SEQRA; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2023, under COMM. 22E-6 (2022) As Amended, Erie County 
issued a Negative Declaration and issued a Notice of Determination of Non-Significance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County wishes to finance its $250,000,000 share of the total cost of the New 
Stadium Project through (i) the issuance of up to $150,000,000 of serial bonds, notes or other 
obligations of the County and (ii) the expenditure of available funds of the County (in an amount of 
at least $100,000,000) to cover the balance of such $250,000,000 share, with the issuance of such 
obligations and the implementation of such plan of financing to be formally authorized through the 
adoption of the bond resolution that is being presented herewith, that is incorporated herein by the 
reference, and that is to be deemed formally adopted by the approval hereof (the “Bond 
Resolution”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, final Stadium Complex documents consisting of  the Second Amendment to 
2013 Master Lease Agreement, the Second Amendment to 2013 Stadium Lease Agreement, 
Amendment to 2013 Memorandum, the Amendment to 2013 Non-Relocation Agreement, the 
Amendment to 2013 Stadium Security Agreement, the Stadium Lease Agreement, the Stadium 
Development and Construction Coordinating Agreement, the Non-Relocation Agreement, the 
Community Benefits Agreement, the Stadium Security Agreement, the Club Guaranty Agreement 
and the Bond Resolution were filed with the Legislature, the County’s approval of which shall 
become effective upon the passage of this resolution. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 



MEETING NO. 9 – SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023                                                                                 ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

389 

 RESOLVED, that the County Executive is authorized to execute all necessary agreements 
related to the construction of a new stadium in Erie County, as generally described herein and in the 
various documents presented to the Erie County Legislature herewith, and the Erie County 
Legislature does hereby approve (and, in the case of the Bond Resolution, formally adopt) the 
following project documents dated March 29, 2023 by and among the Bills, the County, and ECSC 
including, but not limited to the Second Amendment to 2013 Master Lease Agreement, the Second 
Amendment to 2013 Stadium Lease Agreement, Amendment to 2013 Memorandum, the 
Amendment to 2013 Non-Relocation Agreement, the Amendment to 2013 Stadium Security 
Agreement, the Stadium Lease Agreement, the Stadium Development and Construction 
Coordinating Agreement, the Non-Relocation Agreement, the Community Benefits Agreement, the 
Stadium Security Agreement, the Club Guaranty Agreement and the Bond Resolution (which is 
being contemporaneously enacted hereby, not merely approved or ratified, and is thus dated the date 
hereof), all in substantially the same form and with substantially the same content as contained in the 
documents submitted to the Legislature, with such minor changes therein as may be approved by the 
County Executive, his execution thereof to be conclusive evidence of his approval and the approval 
of this body; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the County Executive is further authorized to take any and all additional 
actions necessary to execute all required documents; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes a county surcharge to be 
added to the purchase price of each ticket sold for admittance to any ticketed event held at the 
Stadium Complex; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes a county surcharge to be 

added to the purchase price of all concessions, merchandise, parking, and other sales at the Stadium 
Complex; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the amount of such surcharge shall be six percent of the purchase price of 

items identified herein; and be it further 
  
 RESOLVED, that all Surcharges Revenue shall be collected by StadCo on the County’s 
behalf and shall be funded into and disbursed from the Fund in a manner consistent with the terms 
contained in the Stadium Lease; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Bond Resolution as presented to this body is hereby formally adopted 
and approved through the vote on this master approval resolution that has incorporated the terms of 
the Bond Resolution fully by reference, and the Bond Resolution shall be deemed effective and 
legally sufficient to the same extent as if it had been presented to, and acted upon, separately by the 
Erie County Legislature, rather than (for convenience) as part of this overall master approval 
resolution for the project to which the Bond Resolution relates; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the County Executive, 
the Deputy County Executive, the County Attorney, the Bills and ECSC. 
 
 



MEETING NO. 9 – SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023                                                                                 ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

390 

Amendments to 2013 Stadium Lease Documents 
 

1. Amendment to Memorandum of 2013 Master Lease 
 

2. Amendment to Memorandum of 2013 Stadium Lease 
 

3. Second Amendment to 2013 Master Lease 
 

4. Second Amendment to 2013 Stadium Lease 
 

5. Amendment to 2013 Stadium Security Agreement 
 

6. Amendment to 2013 Non-Relocation Agreement 
 

2023 Stadium Lease Documents 
 

7. Stadium Lease 
 

8. Stadium Development and Construction Coordinating Agreement - Part One, Part Two 
 

9. Community Benefits Agreement 
 

10. Non-Relocation Agreement 
 

11. Stadium Security Agreement 
 

12. Club Guaranty Agreement 
 

13. Legal Opinion of County 
 

14. Legal Opinion of Loeb 
 

15. Legal Opinion of Sidley 
 

16. Legal Opinion of Hodgson Russ 
 

17. ECSC Secretary's Certificate 
 

18. PSL Marketing Agreement 
 

19. Team Use Agreement 

20. Bond Resolution 
 
 MR. GILMOUR moved to approve the item.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 

https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/01%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Amendment%20to%20Memorandum%20of%202013%20Master%20Lease%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/02%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Amendment%20to%20Memorandum%20of%202013%20Stadium%20Lease%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/03%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Second%20Amendment%20to%202013%20Master%20Lease%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/04%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Second%20Amendment%20to%202013%20Stadium%20Lease%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/05%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Amendment%20to%202013%20Stadium%20Security%20Agreement%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/06%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Amendment%20to%202013%20Non-Relocation%20Agreement%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/07%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Stadium%20Lease%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/08%20-Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Stadium%20Construction%20Coordinating%20Agreement%20Executed_Part1.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/08%20-Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Stadium%20Construction%20Coordinating%20Agreement%20Executed_Part2.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/09%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Community%20Benefits%20Agreement%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/10%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Non-Relocation%20Agreement%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/11%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Stadium%20Security%20Agreement%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/12%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Club%20Guaranty%20Agreement%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/13%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20County%20Opinion%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/14%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Loeb%20Opinion%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/15%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Sidley%20Opinion%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/16%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Hodgson%20Russ%20Opinion%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/17%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20ECSC%20Secretary%27s%20Certificate%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/18-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20PSL%20Marketing%20and%20Sales%20Agreement%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/19%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-%20Team%20Use%20Agreement%20%5BExecuted%5D.pdf
https://www2.erie.gov/legislature/sites/www2.erie.gov.legislature/files/uploads/Misc_Uploards/20%20-%20Bills%20-%202023%20-Stadium%20Bond%20Resolution.pdf


MEETING NO. 9 – SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023                                                                                 ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

391 

CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI, MR. MILLS, MR. TODARO, MR. 

BARGNESI, CHAIR BASKIN, MR. GILMOUR, MR. JOHNSON, MR. KOOSHOIAN and MS. 
VINAL.  NOES: None.  (AYES: 10; NOES: 0) 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

FROM CHAIR BASKIN 
 

Item 2 – (COMM. 9E-1)   Letter Calling for Special Meeting 
 
Received, filed and printed. 

 
April 28, 2023 
 
Robert M. Graber 
Clerk of the Legislature 
92 Franklin Street, Fourth Floor 
Buffalo, New York 14202 
 
Re: Calling a Special Meeting of the Legislature 
 
Dear Mr. Graber: 
 
Please be advised that there is a pressing matter before the Erie County Legislature that needs 
immediate attention.  Therefore, there is a need to call a Special Meeting of the Legislature. 
 
Accordingly, pursuant to Rule 2.02 of the Rules of Order of the Erie County Legislature, you are 
hereby directed to call a SPECIAL MEETING of the Erie County Legislature to be held on 
Thursday, May 4, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. in the Chambers of the Legislature, 4th Floor of Old County 
Hall, 92 Franklin Street, Buffalo, New York. 
 
The purpose of the Special Meeting will be to discuss and potentially act on a Discharge from the 
Economic Development Committee, COMM. 7E-8 (2023), concerning "New Stadium Complex in 
Orchard Park Involving NYS and Buffalo Bills." 
 
The items on the agenda of the Special Meeting will include COMM. 7E-8 (2023), a Discharge from 
the Economic Development Committee, my letter to you directing the calling of the Special 
Meeting, and your Memo as Clerk of the Legislature to Members of the Legislature calling the 
Special Meeting. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 



MEETING NO. 9 – SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023                                                                                 ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

392 

Sincerely, 
 

April N.M. Baskin 
Chair, Erie County Legislature 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS  
 

FROM CLERK OF LEGISLATURE 
 

Item 3 – (COMM. 9D-1)   Special Meeting Notice 
 
Received, filed and printed. 

 
April 28, 2023 
 
To:  All Members of the Erie County Legislature 
 
From:  Robert M. Graber, Clerk 
 
Subject:  SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE FOR MAY 4, 2023 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to Rule 2.02 of the RULES OF ORDER of the Erie County 
Legislature, and under the direction of Chair April N.M. Baskin, there will be a Special Meeting of 
the Erie County Legislature on Thursday, May 4, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. in the Chambers of the 
Legislature, 4th Floor of Old County Hall, 92 Franklin Street, Buffalo, New York. 
 
The Special Meeting will consider a Discharge from the Economic Development Committee, 
COMM. 7E-8 (2023), concerning "New Stadium Complex in Orchard Park Involving NYS and 
Buffalo Bills." 
 
The items on the agenda of the Special Meeting will include COMM. 7E-8 (2023), Discharged from 
the Economic Development Committee, Chair Baskin's letter to me directing the calling of the 
Special Meeting, and my Memo as Clerk of the Legislature to Members of the Legislature calling 
the Special Meeting.  The items are attached. 
 
Thank you. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 Item 4 – Chair Baskin announced that the next scheduled session of the Legislature will be 
held on Thursday, May 11, 2023.   
 
 

MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS 
 



MEETING NO. 9 – SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 4, 2023                                                                                 ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

393 

 Item 5 – Chair Baskin requested that when the Legislature adjourns, it do so in memory of 
those who are no longer with us. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Item 6 – At this time, there being no further business to transact, CHAIR BASKIN 
announced that the Chair would entertain a Motion to Adjourn. 
 
 MR. JOHNSON moved that the Legislature adjourn until Thursday, May 11, 2023 at 12:00 
Noon.  MR. GILMOUR seconded. 
  
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 CHAIR BASKIN declared the Legislature adjourned until Thursday, May 11, 2023 at 12:00 
Noon. 
 
 

ROBERT M. GRABER 
CLERK OF THE LEGISLATURE 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
BASKIN  Celebrating and Honoring National Nurses Week

A ttachmentsA ttachments
NATIONAL NURSES WEEK





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
BASKIN  Recognizing Apraxia Awareness Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
APRAXIA AWARENESS DAY







  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Honoring the Elwood Jordans Insurance Agency as the Alden
Chamber of Commerce 2023 Business of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
ELWOOD JORDANS INSURANCE





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Recognizing Coach McKenzie Bezon, 2023 All-Bee Girls'
Basketball Coach of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
COACH BEZON





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Honoring Tyler DeKruger on Achieving the Rank of Eagle
Scout

A ttachmentsA ttachments
TYLER DEKRUGER





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Honoring Luciano Grande on Achieving the Rank of Eagle
Scout

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LUCIANO GRANDE





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
TODARO  Honoring Eric Frys on Achieving the Rank of Eagle Scout

A ttachmentsA ttachments
ERIC FRYS





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
VINAL  Acknowledging and Honoring Geoffrey and Robin Klein

A ttachmentsA ttachments
GEOFFREY & ROBIN KLEIN







  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

BASKIN  Honoring and Recognizing The Phi Omega Chapter of Omega
Psi Phi Fraternity, Inc. -- 100th Year Anniversary

A ttachmentsA ttachments
PHI OMEGA







  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

VINAL  Honoring Gary Schautt -- Celebrating 50 Years of Service with
the Eggertsville Hose Company  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
GARY SCHAUTT





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
JOHNSON  Recognizing Military Appreciation Month 2023

A ttachmentsA ttachments
MILITARY APPRECIATION





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

VINAL  Honoring Past Fire Chief John Daniels -- 50 Years of Service
with the Eggertsville Hose Company  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
JOHN DANIELS





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
MAJORITY CAUCUS  Recognizing National Blood Pressure Month - May 2023

A ttachmentsA ttachments
BLOOD PRESSURE MONTH





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
MAJORITY CAUCUS  Honoring National Lupus Awareness Month - May 2023

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LUPUS MONTH





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

BASKIN  
Acknowledging Shai Arnold and For Grieving Daughters
Organization Celebrating 4th Annual Motherless-Daughter
Brunch 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
SHAI ARNOLD





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GREENE  Honoring Brothers of Mercy Wellness Campus on National
Nursing Home Week

A ttachmentsA ttachments
MERCY WELLNESS





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GREENE  Honoring and Congratulating Police Officer Keith
Felgemacher on His Retirement

A ttachmentsA ttachments
KEITH FELGEMACHER





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GREENE  Honoring and Congratulating Amherst Police Officer Scott
Banning on His Retirement

A ttachmentsA ttachments
SCOTT BANNING





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GREENE  
Honoring the Cystic Fibrosis Association of Western New
York and Recognizing Cystic Fibrosis Awareness Month in
Erie County

A ttachmentsA ttachments
CYSTIC FIBROSIS





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MALCZEWSKI  Recognizing Lyme WNY During Lyme Disease Awareness
Month

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LYME WNY





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MILLS  Honoring Fox Run at Orchard Park on National Nursing
Home Week

A ttachmentsA ttachments
FOX RUN-NURSING HOME WEEK





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MILLS  Honoring the Jennie B. Richmond Nursing Home During
National Nursing Home Week

A ttachmentsA ttachments
JENNIE B. NURSING HOME





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MILLS  Celebrating the Wayland Brewing Company on Its Grand
Opening

A ttachmentsA ttachments
WAYLAND BREWING





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  
Recognizing the Correctional Officers at the Erie County
Holding Center During National Correctional Officers' Week
May 7-13, 2023

A ttachmentsA ttachments
CORRECTIONAL HOLDING CENTER





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  
Recognizing the Correctional Officers at the Erie County
Correctional Facility During National Correctional Officers'
Week May 7-13, 2023

A ttachmentsA ttachments
CORRECTIONAL FACILITY





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MILLS  Honoring Stanley Brown for Serving Our Country and
Community

A ttachmentsA ttachments
STANLEY BROWN





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MALCZEWSKI  Congratulating Anna Tavernier for Winning the 2023 Youth
of the Year Competition

A ttachmentsA ttachments
ANNA TAVERNIER





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Honoring Christopher Gust for Being Named Alden Chamber
of Commerce 2023 Citizen of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
CHRISTOPHER GUST





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LL INTRO. 1-1
(2022)  TODARO, GREENE,

LORIGO & MILLS  

A Local Law Authorizing Twelve and
Thirteen-Year-Old Licensed Hunters to Hunt
Deer with a Firearm or Crossbow During
Hunting Season with the Supervision of a
Licensed Adult 

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 1-1 (2022)



1-1

LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 1 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 2 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 3 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 4 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 5 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 6 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 7 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 8 of 8



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LL INTRO. 3-1
(2022)  

BASKIN, MEYERS,
JOHNSON, VINAL &
GILMOUR

 The Erie County Language Access Act  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 3-1 (2022)



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

1 of 6

3-1



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

2 of 6



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

3 of 6



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

4 of 6



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

5 of 6



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

6 of 6



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
LL INTRO. 3-1
(2023)  JOHNSON  The Occupancy Tax Modernization Act  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 3-1 (2023)











































  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LL INTRO. 2-2
(2023)  

BASKIN, MEYERS,
JOHNSON, VINAL,
KOOSHOIAN, BARGNESI
& GILMOUR

 The Public Art Act of Erie County
  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 2-2 (2023)



2-2













  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
LL INTRO. 5-1
(2023)  GILMOUR  The Service-Disabled Veterans Utilization Act  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 5-1



5-1

Page 1 of 2



Page 2 of 2



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
REPORT No. 6  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
PS Report No. 6



 

 

May 4, 2023 PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 6 

 

ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATOR MEYERS. 

CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICO MEMBER. 

 

1. RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received and filed: 

 

a. COMM. 6E-1 (2023) 

JOHNSON: “Documents Supporting 3 Bell System for BPS” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

2. COMM. 7E-10 (2023) 

SHERIFF 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office continues to offer community reintegration 

programming through Project Blue and other programs; and 

 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with Project Blue, the Sheriff’s Office seeks to expand its 

programming for participants; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office seeks to enter into an agreement with The 

Prevention Council for Mindful Awareness Skill-Building Workshops; and 

 

WHEREAS, the workshops will provide tools, techniques, and strategies on how to enjoy 

moments and navigate challenges; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 6-week programming would be offered to Project Blue participants at the 

holding center and the correctional facility; and 

 

WHEREAS, the agreement is not to exceed $4,992.00 and will expire December 31, 2023; and  

 

WHEREAS, this program will be funded through the commissary account without impacting the 

2023 operating budget.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the Erie County Sheriff’s 

Office and the Erie County Executive to enter into a contract with The Prevention Council of Erie County, 

1625 Hertel Ave, Buffalo, New York 14216, for Mindful Awareness Skill-Building workshops; and be it 

further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the agreement is for six weeks of programming at the Erie County Holding 

Center and the Erie County Correctional Facility; and be it further   

 

 RESOLVED, the agreement is not to exceed $4,992.00; and be it further  

 

RESOLVED, certified copies of the approved resolution shall be sent to the County Executive, 

the County Attorney, and the Chief of Administration of the Sheriff’s Office for implementation. 

(5-0) 

 

3. COMM. 8E-3 (2023) 

SHERIFF 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office maintains a chaplain unit to provide religious 

services and spiritual counseling to the incarcerated population at the Erie County Holding Center and the 

Erie County Correctional Facility inmates; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office will enter into separate three-year agreements with Chaplain 

Frederick Gelsey and Chaplain Kenneth Simmons; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the chaplains shall be compensated $50.00 per week; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the contracts will be paid from account 516020 – Professional Services and Fees 

and will not affect the 2023 operational budget.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the Erie County Sheriff’s 

Office and the Erie County Executive to enter into a three-year contract with Frederick Gelsey, 217 

Northampton Street, Buffalo, New York 14208, at a rate of $50.00 per week for religious and spiritual 

services; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the Erie County Sheriff’s 

Office and the Erie County Executive to enter into a three-year contract with Kenneth Simmons, 60 

Stewart Avenue, Buffalo, New York 14211, at a rate of $50.00 per week for religious and spiritual 

services; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the contracts will be paid from account 516020 – Professional Services and Fees 

and will not affect the 2023 operational budget; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office is hereby authorized to release the designated 

funds and make payments as necessary; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, certified copies of the approved resolution shall be sent to the County Executive, 

the County Attorney, the Division of Budget and Management, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office, and 

the Chief of Administration of the Sheriff’s Office for implementation.  

(5-0) 

 

 



 

 

4. COMM. 8E-13 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Probation Department provides pretrial Release Under Supervision 

services for the courts as an alternative to incarceration; and 

 

WHEREAS, bail reform legislation enacted by New York State in 2020 has significantly 

increased the caseloads of the Probation Officers providing pretrial Release Under Supervision services as 

well as the demand for electronic monitoring of released defendants; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached resolution requests authorization to add a Probation Officer position 

within the Erie County Probation Department to the pretrial services staff to address the increase in 

caseloads and the resulting increase in electronic monitoring of defendants; and 

 

WHEREAS, the New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) has awarded the 

Erie County Probation Department funding to address expenses related to the provision of Pretrial 

Services; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Probation Department proposes to use a portion of this funding to 

add a Probation Officer position and to increase the 2023 budget amount for electronic monitoring; and 

 

WHEREAS, these appropriations will not result in an increase in County funding of the existing 

Probation Department’s 2023-2025 Budgets and will be readdressed with the 2026 Budget. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes to add one Probation Officer 

position effective June 3, 2023 (B-100 #13653) in the 2023 Probation Department General Fund; and be it 

further 

 

 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the following budgetary increase in the 2023 

Budget of the Probation Department to fund the cost of the new position and increases in electronic 

monitoring costs:  

Probation  

Fund 110, Fund Center 12610 

Account          Revenue Increase 

409060           State Aid Pretrial Service $78,394 

 

Account          Appropriation       Increase  

500000           Full Time Salaries       $32,632 

502000           Fringe Benefit       $16,316  

516030           Maintenance Contracts      $27,846 

561410           Lab and Technical Equipment      $  1,600 

                     $ 78,394 

 

and be it further  

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Division of Budget and Management to 

implement any budget adjustments and to make any technical adjustments required to effectuate this 

resolution; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the: County Executive's Office, 

Division of Budget and Management, County Comptroller, Personnel Department, Department of 

Purchase and the Probation Department.  

(5-0) 

 

5. COMM. 8E-14 (2023) 

 SHERIFF & COUNTY EXECUTIVE AS AMENDED 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office has initiated a tablet program for the incarcerated 

population; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the tablets are used for educational, personal skill-building, and entertainment 

purposes; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the tablets are used in conjunction with service providers to enhance programming; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office will purchase an additional 475 tablets and 70 

charging carts from Keefe Commissary Network, which will provide greater access to the tablets for the 

incarcerated population at the holding center and the correctional facility; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office will transfer $82,000.00 from account 221800 – 

Telephone Revenue to account 561410 – Lab & Tech to purchase the tablets and charging carts; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office created the Community Reintegration Division to provide 

educational, personal skill-building, and re-entry programming to the incarcerated population; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Community Reintegration offices have moved to 134 West Eagle Street due to 

the expansion of services and the number of service providers; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the division needs additional office furniture to provide workstations for the 

increased county and non-county personnel within the office; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office will transfer $22,500.00 from account 221800 – Telephone 

Revenue to account 561420 – Office Furniture & Fixtures to purchase the furniture; and 

 

 

 



 

 

 WHEREAS, the office furniture will be purchased from Millington-Lockwood, an approved New 

York State bidder; and      

 

 WHEREAS, as of April 24, 2024, the Telephone Revenue Account’s balance is $537,396.00; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the Sheriff and the County Executive agree the tablet expansion program and the 

furniture for the Community Reintegration office are appropriate use of the funds; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this use of funds complies with COMM. 6E-24, 2013, which states that telephone 

revenue “shall be dedicated to the general operation of the Holding Center and Correctional Facility;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, these transfers will not have a fiscal impact on the 2023 County Budget.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature authorizes the Division of Budget and Finance to 

transfer $82,000.00 from account 221800 – Telephone Revenue to account 561410 – Lab & Tech to 

purchase the tablets and charging carts; and be it further  

 

 RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature authorizes the Division of Budget and Finance to 

transfer $22,500.00 from account 221800 – Telephone Revenue to account 561420 – Office Furniture & 

Fixtures to purchase the furniture; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature hereby waives the procedures, as impractical, provided 

for in Section 19.08 of the Erie County Administrative Code for purposes of purchasing the tablets and 

charging carts from Keefe Commissary Network; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Sheriff’s Office and the Division of Budget and Management 

are authorized to have any unused funds either remain in or returned to the Telephone Revenue Account; 

and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the Division of Budget and Management is authorized to make any technical 

adjustments necessary to effectuate this transfer should there be any unforeseen issues; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office is hereby authorized to release the designated 

funds and make payments as necessary; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the County Executive, the 

County Attorney, the County Comptroller, the Division of Budget and Finance, the Division of 

Purchasing, and the Sheriff's Office for implementation. 

(5-0) 

 

 

 

6. COMM. 8E-17 (2023) 

 SHERIFF 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Division of Correctional Health is responsible for the 

medical care of individuals in its custody; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this medical care requires access to radiology imaging services; and 

  

 WHEREAS, Correctional Health has twice issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for on-site 

diagnostic imaging services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, staff publicly published the RFP and contacted multiple vendors; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Buffalo Ultrasound was the only vendor to submit a proposal following the second 

publication of the RFP; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the vendor will provide the following, but not limited to, diagnostic imaging 

services: x-rays, ultrasound, Doppler, and echocardiographs; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office recommends that Buffalo Ultrasound be awarded the contract 

for RFP #2023-004VF; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office and the County of Erie shall enter into a three-year 

agreement with Buffalo Ultrasound for $25,000.00 per year; and 

 

 WHEREAS, either party may terminate the agreement, with or without cause, with ten days 

written notice; and  

 

 WHEREAS, there are no fiscal implications on the operating budget. The professional services 

contract for diagnostic imagining services at the Erie County Holding Center and the Erie County 

Correctional Facility are funded in account: 

 

 516020   Professional Services   $25,000.00 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the Erie County Sheriff’s 

Office to award RFP #2023-004VF to Buffalo Ultrasound 388 Evans Street, Williamsville, New York 

14221, for on-site diagnostic imaging services comprehensive for the Erie County Sheriff’s Division of 

Correctional Health; and be it further 

 

 

 



 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the County Executive and 

the Erie County Sheriff to enter into a contract with Buffalo Ultrasound 388 Evans Street, Williamsville, 

New York 14221; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the terms of the agreement are for three years at $25,000.00, and either party may 

terminate the contract, with or without cause, with ten days written notice; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the contract is funded in Fund Center 11650, in the following accounts: 

 

 516020   Professional Services   $25,000.00 

 

and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management is hereby authorized to make any 

technical adjustments necessary should there be any unforeseen issues; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office is hereby authorized to release the designated 

funds and make payments as necessary; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, certified copies of the approved resolution shall be sent to the County Executive, 

the County Attorney, the Division of Purchasing, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office, and the Chief of 

Administration of the Sheriff’s Office for implementation. 

(5-0) 

 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 

CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
REPORT No. 6  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
ED Report No. 6



 

 

May 4, 2023 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 6 

 

ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATOR MEYERS. 

CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER. 

 

1.  RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received, filed and referred to the ENERGY & 

 ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE: 

 

a.  COMM. 8E-5 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD Nos. 1 & 3 - Various Sanitary Sewer Replacements” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

2.  RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 

 

a. COMM. 8M-1 (2023) 

 NFTA: “Metro Cash Flow Statements” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

b. COMM. 8M-2 (2023) 

 NYSDEC: “DEC Invites Public Comment About Brownfield Application for Site on East Huron 

 St., Buffalo” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

c. COMM. 8M-3 (2023) 

 NYS DEPT OF AGRICULTURE & MARKETS: “Final Notice of Intent to Undertake an 

 Action within an Agricultural District, Grand Island” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

3. COMM. 8E-6 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Division of Sewerage Management (DSM) is in the design phase 

for the Southtowns Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility (AWTF) Expansion Project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it has been identified during the design phase that a proposed electrical substation 

for the Southtowns AWTF Expansion Project requires the relocation of an existing 2-inch diameter gas 

line owned by National Fuel Gas Distribution Corporation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the DSM recommends executing right of way and gas line relocation agreements to 

allow the existing 2-inch diameter gas line to be moved. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature approves of a 10-foot-wide right of way to be 

granted to National Fuel Gas Distribution Corporation within the bounds the Southtowns AWTF parcel, 

SBL No. 159.00-1-24, S-3690 Lake Shore Road, Buffalo, New York 14219, so that National Fuel Gas 

Distribution Corporation may lay, maintain, alter, operate, relocate, remove, abandon in place, extend, re-

lay and change the size of a pipeline or pipelines and to install cathodic protection devices, cable, 

regulators, connections, meters, valves, fittings, and accessories and do such other activity as is necessary 

and/or convenient for system maintenance, transportation and distribution of gas, over, under and/or 

through via a new 2-inch diameter gas line, or future gas lines, as may be necessary to service the 

Southtowns AWTF; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the Commissioner of the 

Department of Environment and Planning to sign any and all documentation requiring the signature of the 

property owner, including Right of Way and Gas Line Relocation Agreements, as it relates to the new gas 

line provided by National Fuel Gas Distribution Corporation for the Southtowns AWTF expansion project, 

subject to approval as to form by the County Attorney; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution will be forwarded to the County Executive’s 

Office, Division of Budget and Management, Department of Law, Department of Environment and 

Planning, and the Division of Sewerage Management.  

(4-0)  Chair Baskin not present for vote. 

 

4. COMM. 8E-7 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Division of Sewerage Management (DSM) is in the design phase 

for the Southtowns Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility (AWTF) Expansion Project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it has been identified during the design phase that a proposed electrical substation 

for the Southtowns AWTF Expansion Project would require a new electrical service; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the DSM recommends granting Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (NMPC) a 20-

foot wide easement for the new electrical service and associated appurtenances. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature approves of a 20-foot wide easement to be granted 

to NMPC within the bounds the Southtowns AWTF parcel, SBL No. 159.00-1-24, S-3690 Lake Shore 

Road, Buffalo, New York 14219, so that NMPC may construct, reconstruct, relocate, extend, repair, 

maintain, operate, inspect, patrol, and, at their pleasure, abandon or remove electric facilities as may be 

necessary to service the Southtowns AWTF; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the Commissioner of the 

Department of Environment and Planning to sign any and all documentation requiring the signature of the 



 

 

property owner, including the easement agreement, as it relates to the new electrical service provided by 

NMPC for the Southtowns AWTF expansion project, subject to approval as to form by the County 

Attorney; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution will be forwarded to the County Executive’s 

Office, Division of Budget and Management, Department of Law, Department of Environment and 

Planning, and the Division of Sewerage Management.  

(4-0)  Chair Baskin not present for vote. 

 

5. COMM. 8E-8 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 WHEREAS, the need for developing additional units of affordable housing is a priority for Erie 

County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Erie County recognizes that various urban, suburban and rural communities within the 

County seek to explore creation of new units but may lack the technical expertise relative to siting such 

developments; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County recognizes that studying existing zoning, public transit, and neighborhood 

amenity patterns relative to affordable housing development is beneficial in strategically locating such sites; 

and   

 

 WHEREAS, Erie County has solicited proposals from qualified professional planning consultants for 

proposals to undertake such Affordable Housing Study; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the results of the selection process are included as an attachment to this resolution as 

outlined in the Erie County Administrative Code 26.08; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Erie County desires to work with Dr. Jason Knight, AICP (SUNY Buffalo State) to 

produce such Study; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this Affordable Housing Study is intended to assist Erie County and local municipalities 

with bringing additional units of affordable housing online. 

 

 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to execute an 

agreement to provide professional planning services to conduct an Affordable Housing Study in an amount not 

to exceed $30,000 with Dr. Jason Knight, AICP (SUNY Buffalo State); and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that an amount of $30,000 be allocated from the 2023 Erie County Budget in fund 110, 

fund center 16200, general ledger 516020; and be it further 

 RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby authorized to 

implement any budget adjustments as required to comply with State and local funding requirements; and be it 

further 

 

 RESOLVED, that this resolution takes effect from and after its date of adoption; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Erie County Executive’s Office; 

County Attorney; Comptroller’s Office; Division of Budget and Management; and Department of Environment 

and Planning.  

(4-0)  Chair Baskin not present for vote. 

 

6. COMM. 8E-9 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 WHEREAS, Ellicott Town Center Project consists of the acquisition, rehabilitation, and 

preservation of 281 units for low income tenants within four high-rise tower buildings located at 211 & 

233 East Eagle Street, and 202 & 214 South Division Street, the Shiloh Senior Homes townhomes-style 

facility at 245 East Eagle Street and parcels at 215 East Eagle Street, 216 East Eagle Street and 243 East 

Eagle Street; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Legislature adopted a policy on Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) 

on December 16, 1999, and the PILOT is consistent with said policy; and           

 

 WHEREAS, in order to make the Project economically feasible for Ellicott Town Center LLC 

and First Shiloh 2 Housing Development Fund Company, Inc. to operate the housing project it is 

necessary to extend tax relief from the County of Erie and the City of Buffalo. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  

 

 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the County Executive to execute a Payment in 

Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) Agreement with Ellicott Town Center LLC, First Shiloh 2 Housing Development 

Fund Company, Inc., and the City of Buffalo and any other organizations necessary to conclude this 

PILOT Agreement; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall include an annual PILOT in the amount of taxes due as 

set forth on Schedule A attached hereto; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the Erie County 

Executive’s Office, Comptroller’s Office, Division of Budget and Management, Department of Real 

Property Tax Services, Department of Environment and Planning, and the Department of Law. 

 

 

 



 

 

SCHEDULE A 

PILOT Payments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(4-0)  Chair Baskin not present for vote. 

 

7. COMM. 8E-10 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 WHEREAS, the Stone Walls at Culvert PK-21 in Chestnut Ridge Park are deteriorating and 

causing a potential safety hazard of the travelling public; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the replacement of the stone Walls at Culvert PK-21 in Chestnut Ridge Park 

(Project CAP-PK-21-WALL-22) was approved by your Honorable Body via COMM 17E-15 (2021) and 

COMM 9E-6 (2022); and 

 WHEREAS, unforeseen conditions found during the construction resulted in additional 

construction costs, an extended construction schedule, and the need for additional construction inspection; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the work performed was beyond the scope of the original project and therefore 

requires additional funding; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County Executive and department of Parks, Recreation & Forestry desires to 

execute a Change Order with the Contractor, McLaughlin Construction Corp. dba Edbauer Construction, 

for the increase in construction costs estimated at $31,000 for the Construction phase of the project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County Executive and department of Parks, Recreation & Forestry desires to 

execute an Amendment with the Consultant, Greenman-Pedersen, Inc., with an increase in funding for the 

Construction Inspection phase of the Project estimated at $5,000; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the additional $36,000 needed for the Change Order and Amendment is available 

from Fund 410, Funds Center 164, Project A.21112 - 2021 Countywide Parks Improvements. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to execute 

any necessary Change Orders with the Project Contractor; McLaughlin Construction Corp. dba Edbauer 

Construction in an amount not to exceed $31,000; and be it further 

 

  RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the County Executive to execute any 

necessary Amendments with the Project Consultant, Greenman-Pedersen, Inc.in an amount not to exceed 

$5,000; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the additional funds for the Project will be allocated from Fund 410, Funds 

Center 164, Project A.21112- 2021 Countywide Parks Improvements; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature shall forward certified copies of this Resolution to 

the Erie County Executive’s Office, Division of Budget and Management, Department of Parks, 

Recreation, and Forestry. 

(4-0)  Chair Baskin not present for vote. 

 

8. COMM. 8E-11 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, from 2010 to 2012, exterior restorations of the Ellicott Street Building were 

completed which included replacing the existing asphalt shingles and the sloped roof cladding on the street 

side around the perimeter of the building with a clay tile roof that duplicates the original; since then, a 

Year Total City County 

1 $ 114,572 $ 85,929 $ 28,643 

2 $ 118,009 $ 88,507 $ 29,502 

3 $ 121,550 $ 91,163 $ 30,387 

4 $ 125,196 $ 93,897 $ 31,299 

5 $ 128,952 $ 96,714 $ 32,238 

6 $ 132,821 $ 99,616 $ 33,205 

7 $ 136,805 $102,604 $ 34,201 

8 $ 140,909 $105,682 $ 35,227 

9 $ 145,137 $108,853 $ 36,284 

10 $ 149,491 $112,118 $ 37,373 

11 $ 153,976 $115,482 $ 38,494 

12 $ 158,595 $118,946 $ 39,649 

13 $ 163,353 $122,515 $ 40,838 

14 $ 168,253 $126,190 $ 42,063 

15 $ 173,301 $129,976 $ 43,325 



 

 

number of localized failures have occurred on the clay tile roof system that has compromised pedestrian 

safety; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2018 after several localized failures at the City campus, the Department of Public 

Works contracted with a Register Roofing Consultant to perform a forensic analysis to determine the 

cause for the roof failures; and 

 

WHEREAS, after onsite investigations were performed, the forensic analysis revealed that 

neither the calculated design resistance of the tiles as installed, nor the prescriptive guidelines referenced 

in the design documents provided a structurally-sound, code-compliant roof assembly for the Ellicott 

Street Building; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the investigation and analysis also revealed that the lifting and/or separation of clay 

tile units from the building is primarily due to a failure of the smooth shank copper roofing nails that 

secure the clay tile units to the underlying horizontal wood batten and the existing roof mortar filler 

material at all hip locations is failing; and 

 

WHEREAS, remedial action is necessary to ensure that the clay tile units that are currently 

anchored with smooth shank nails be re-installed with screws to the underlying horizontal wood battens to 

eliminate their potential to become dislodged by wind and fall to grade; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works coordinated with the Department of Law to 

determine if there was any recourse to the original design consultant from the 2010 project to hold them 

accountable, however, it was determined that we were outside the statute of limitations on the project 

resulting in the inability to hold the original design consultant accountable; and 

 

WHEREAS, based on the forensic analysis and the inability to hold the original design consultant 

accountable, a different design consultant was selected through the County’s standard RFP process to 

prepare documents to make the necessary corrective action to the existing roof system; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Erie previously received bids for the SUNY Erie Community College 

City Campus 2021 Ellicott Street Building Clay Tile Roof Repair project on Tuesday, December 20, 2022, 

however the bid prices far exceeded the consultant’s pre-bid estimate, the scope was reduced to 

approximately half of the roof areas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Erie received bids for the SUNY Erie Community College City 

Campus 2021 Ellicott Street Building Clay Tile Roof Repair REBID project on Tuesday, March 14, 2023; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the lowest bidder failed to submit their Experience Questionnaire as part of the 

sealed proposal rendering them non-responsive, making it so that their bid could not be considered in 

accordance with the Erie County Local Law 2-2021; and  

WHEREAS, the lowest responsible bidder for the General Construction Work is Jos A. Sanders 

& Sons, Inc.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Erie will receive 50% reimbursement from New York State for this 

project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works and Bell & Spina Architects-Planners PC are 

recommending award of the contract to the lowest responsible bidder for the SUNY Erie Community 

College City Campus 2021 Ellicott Street Building Clay Tile Roof Repair REBID project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, that the County Executive is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with the 

lowest responsible bidder for the SUNY Erie Community College City Campus 2021 Ellicott Street 

Building Clay Tile Roof Repair REBID project for an amount not to exceed as follows: 

 

General Construction Work 

Jos. A. Sanders & Sons, Inc.  Base Bid:   $ 3,701,344.00 

Total Award of General Construction  Contract:   $ 3,701,344.00 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that the sum of $298,656 be allocated to a Construction Contingency Fund with 

authorization for the County Executive to approve change orders in an amount not to exceed the 

Contingency Fund; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that change order reductions will result in these funds being returned to the 

Construction Contingency Fund; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that the Comptroller’s Office be authorized to make payment for all the above from 

the approved Capital Budgets, Fund 480, Funds Center 122, as follows: 

 

E.14006 2014 ECC Code Compliance (Collegewide)     $           146.33 

E.15004 2015 ECC Code Compliance (Collegewide)     $      23,528.00 

E.17005 2017 ECC Code Compliance (Collegewide)      $      36,568.49 

E.18005 2018 ECC Code Compliance (Collegewide)     $        1,150.00 

E.19001 2019 Collegewide Improvements and Renovations    $    370,360.48 

E.20001 2000 Collegewide Improvements and Renovations    $ 1,569,546.70 

E.21150 2021 ECC City Roof       $ 1,998,700.00 

For a Total Amount Not to Exceed       $ 4,000,000.00 



 

 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that two certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Department of Public 

Works, Commissioner’s Office, and one copy each to the County Executive’s Office, the Comptroller’s 

Office, the Division of Budget and Management, and one copy to SUNY Erie and Financial Officer. 

(4-0)  Chair Baskin not present for vote. 

 

9. COMM. 8E-12 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Parks, Recreation and Forestry (Parks) has identified 

a capital improvement project at Grover Cleveland Golf Course to renovate the existing historic Grover 

Schenk House and Restroom Building; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works and Watts Architecture and Engineering, DPC are 

recommending award of the contracts to the lowest responsible bidder for the General, Mechanical, 

Electrical and Plumbing Contract received on March 8, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County Executive is requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with the 

lowest responsible bidder for the Grover Cleveland Golf Course Schenck House and Restroom Renovation 

Project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to enter 

into contracts with the lowest responsible bidders for the Project for an amount not to exceed as follows: 

 

General Construction Work 

Walter Johnson Building Co., Inc.   Base Bid:  $ 1,089,604 

Total Award of General Construction Contract:    $ 1,089,604 

 

Mechanical Construction Work 

John W. Danforth Company    Base Bid:  $ 156,500 

Total Award of General Construction Contract:    $ 156,500 

 

Electrical Construction Work 

CIR Electrical Construction Corporation  Base Bid:  $ 198,550 

Total Award of Electrical Construction Contract:    $ 198,550 

 

 

Plumbing Construction Work 

M.K.S Plumbing Corp.      Base Bid:  $ 49,000 

Total Award of Electrical Construction Contract:    $ 49,000 

 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that the sum of $150,000 be allocated to a Construction Contingency Fund with 

authorization for the County Executive to approve change orders in an amount not to exceed the 

Contingency Fund; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that change order reductions will result in these funds being returned to the 

Construction Contingency Fund; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that the Comptroller’s Office be authorized to make payment for the above from 

the previously approved, as adopted Capital Projects in Fund 410, Funds Center 122 as follows: 

 

A.21162 – 2021 Parks Managed by DPW   $1,643,654 

Total not to exceed           $1,643,654 

 

and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that two certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Department of Public 

Works, Commissioner’s Office, and one copy each to the County Executive’s Office, the Comptroller’s 

Office, the Division of Budget and Management, and the Department of Parks, Recreation & Forestry. 

(4-0)  Chair Baskin not present for vote. 

 

 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 

CHAIR 

 

 

 

 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
INTRO. 10-1  BASKIN  RENEW Plan Funding Re-Allocation  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23INTRO. 10-1



INTRO. 10-1 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

INTRO. 10-2  MALCZEWSKI  Supporting the Separation of Policy and
Financial Issues in the New York State Budget  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23INTRO. 10-2



INTRO. 10-2 
Page 1 of 4



INTRO. 10-2 
Page 2 of 4



INTRO. 10-2 
Page 3 of 4



INTRO. 10-2 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

INTRO. 10-3  TODARO  Supporting Kyra's Law in the New York State
Senate and Assembly  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
INTRO. 10-3



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 1 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 2 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 3 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 4 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 5 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 6 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 7 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 8 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 9 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 10 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 11 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 12 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 13 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 14 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 15 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 16 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 17 of 18



INTRO. 10-3 
Page 18 of 18



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 4E-9  From the Energy &
Environment Committee  

From the County Executive - ECSD No. 5 RFP -
Transit Road Corridor Sanitary Sewer Service
Evaluation Report

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 4E-9



COMM. 4E-9 
Page 1 of 1

DISCHARGE



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT

    ****Proposed Amendment to COMM. 4E-9
(2023)  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Proposed Amendment to COMM. 4E-9 (2023)



Erie County Legislature – Meeting No. 10 
May 11, 2023 

Amendment to Comm. 4E-9 (2023) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 5, 2023 
 
Erie County Legislature  
92 Franklin Street, Fourth Floor 
Buffalo, New York 14202  
 
 RE: Amendment: Legislative Comm. 4E-9 (2023) 

Erie County Sewer District No. 5 
  Transit Road Corridor Sanitary Sewer Service Evaluation Report 

Request For Proposals  
 
Honorable Members: 
 

Enclosed please find a resolution and accompanying memorandum from the 
Department of Environment and Planning pertaining to proposed agreement to perform 
engineering services for Erie County Sewer District No. 5. 
 

Should your Honorable Body require further information, I encourage you to contact 
Joseph Fiegl, P.E. in the Division of Sewerage Management.  Thank you for your consideration 
on this matter. 
 

Sincerely yours, 
 
 

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq. 
Erie County Executive 
 
 

 
MCP:mas 
Enclosure 
 
cc: Joseph Fiegl, Deputy Commissioner, Division of Sewerage Management 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Honorable Members of the Erie County Legislature 
From:  Department of Environment and Planning 
Re:  Amendment: Legislative Comm. 4E-9 (2023) 

Erie County Sewer District No. 5 
  Transit Road Corridor Sanitary Sewer Service Evaluation Report 

Request For Proposals  
Date:  May 5, 2023 

 
SUMMARY 
Award of a professional services agreement with JM Davidson, D.P.C. (JMDavidson) (935 
Sheridan Drive – Suite 120, Tonawanda, New York 14150) in an amount not-to-exceed 
$100,000.00 for engineering services related to the Transit Road Corridor Sanitary Sewer 
Service Evaluation Report in Erie County Sewer District (ECSD) No. 5 is requested.  
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS 
Funding for the study exists within Capital Project C.23550 as was appropriated as part of 
Legislative Comm. 8E-1 (2023) – Budget Balancing and Year End Designations Resolution. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Erie County Department of Environment and Planning (ECDEP) – Division of Sewerage 
Management (DSM) issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to retain a firm to provide engineering 
services associated with Transit Road Corridor Sanitary Sewer Service Evaluation Report.  A 
proposal review committee consisting of representatives from the ECDEP, the DSM, the Town 
of Amherst, and the Town of Clarence reviewed and scored the proposals using the scoring 
matrix in the RFP, which includes factors contained in Section 26.08 of the County’s 
Administrative Code.  On March 9, 2023, the review committee met to tabulate scores and it was 
recommendation of the committee to interview the top three ranked firms: GHD Consulting 
Services, Inc. (GHD), JMDavidson, and Wendel WD Architecture Engineering Surveying 
(Wendel).  On March 27, 2023, the review committee interviewed the three firms and it was 
subsequently recommended that JMDavidson be retained for the requested professional services. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Sanitary sewer services in the Town of Clarence are provided by ECSD No. 5, Town of Clarence 
Sewer Districts 2, 4, 6, 7, 9, & 10 (maintained by ECSD No.5 through an intermunicipal 
agreement), by private septic systems maintained by the respective property owners, or in limited 
situations by private treatment systems.  The vast majority of public sewer systems in this area 
are tributary to the Town of Amherst Water Pollution Control Facility.  Both the Town of 
Clarence and ECSD No. 5 have agreements with the Town of Amherst for conveyance and 
treatment services. 
 



In December 2016, the Town of Clarence completed its latest master planning exercise titled 
“Clarence 2030 – Town of Clarence Comprehensive Plan”.  As an addendum to the plan, the 
Town completed the “Town of Clarence Master Sewer Plan – 2030” (April 2018), identifying 
various priorities for the provision of sanitary sewer services in the coming years. 
 
In 2021, the Town of Clarence received a Conceptual Master Plan application for the 
redevelopment of Eastern Hills Mall parcel in ECSD No. 5.  Uniland Development Company, as 
owner of this parcel, has proposed converting the site into a mixed-use “Town Center” through 
the construction of new residential, commercial, hospitality, and entertainment/recreational uses.  
These proposed changes to the Eastern Hills Mall parcel were not contemplated in the Town of 
Clarence master plans. 
 
Preliminary analyses indicate the proposed peak wastewater flows from full implementation of 
the plan to redevelop the Eastern Hills Mall parcel exceed the current capacity of ECSD No. 5’s 
downstream sewer system on Transit Road.  Further, there are other potential projects in ECSD 
No. 5 and/or the Town of Clarence master plans that impact sanitary sewer capacities. 
 
As a result, the DSM issued a request for proposals to retain an engineering firm to analyze the 
future provision of sanitary sewer services in the Transit Road corridor.  Five (5) firms submitted 
proposals in response to the RFP.  After reviewing the proposals based on qualifications, 
considering the costs submitted, and interviewing the top three firms, JMDavidson was 
recommended to be retained for the services. 
 
CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION 
ECSD No. 5 will not be able to advance the engineering analyses needed for long-term planning 
in this corridor, which may adversely impact projects in the Town of Clarence master plans or 
the potential redevelopment of Eastern Hills Mall site. 
 
STEPS TO FOLLOW APPROVAL 
The County Executive will be requested to execute an agreement with JMDavidson in an amount 
not to exceed $100,000.00.   
  



  



A RESOLUTION SUBMITTED BY 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND PLANNING 

 
RE:  Amendment: Legislative Comm. 4E-9 (2023) 

Erie County Sewer District No. 5 
 Transit Road Corridor Sanitary Sewer Service Evaluation Report 

Request For Proposals 
 

WHEREAS, funding was appropriated as part of Legislative Comm. 8E-1 (2023) – 2023 
Budget Balancing and Year End Designations Resolution – for a study of Erie County Sewer 
District (ECSD) No. 5’s future sanitary sewer capacity needs, including items listed in the Town 
of Clarence’s master plan and potential redevelopment of the Eastern Hills Mall site; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Erie issued a Request for Proposals to retain an engineering 
firm to perform professional services for the Transit Road Corridor Sanitary Sewer Service 
Evaluation Report in ECSD No. 5; and 
 

WHEREAS, a review committee evaluated the responses to the Request for Proposals 
using a consistent scoring matrix; and  
 

WHEREAS, after ranking proposals and conducting interviews the review committee 
recommends JM Davidson, D.P.C.to complete the requested consulting services. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT, 
 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 
execute an agreement with JM Davidson, D.P.C. (935 Sheridan Drive – Suite 120, Tonawanda, 
New York 14150) for professional services associated with this project in an amount not to 
exceed $100,000.00, subject to approval as to content by the Commissioner of the Department of 
Environment and Planning, and approval as to form by the County Attorney’s Office; and be it 
further 
 

RESOLVED, that sufficient funding exists within ECSD No. 5, Fund 430, Funds Center 
181, Capital Project C.23550 – Transit Road Sanitary Sewer Service Evaluation to fund these 
engineering services; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby 
authorized to implement any budget adjustments necessary to facilitate this action; and be it 
further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature be directed to send a certified copy of this 
resolution to the County Executive, the County Comptroller, the Director of Budget and 
Management, Richard Stanton, Assistant County Attorney, and Joseph Fiegl, P.E., Deputy 
Commissioner, Department of Environment & Planning. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 6E-10  From the Energy &
Environment Committee  

From the County Executive - ECSD No. 6 -
Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service
Lateral Connection Lining Project

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 6E-10



COMM. 6E-10 
Page 1 of 1

DISCHARGE



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT

    ****Proposed Amendment to COMM. 6E-10
(2023)  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Proposed Amendment to COMM. 6E-10 (2023)



Erie County Legislature – Meeting No. 10 
May 11, 2023 

Amendment to Comm. 6E-10 (2023) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
April 26, 2023 

 
Erie County Legislature 
92 Franklin Street – Fourth Floor 
Buffalo, NY 14202 
 
 RE:   Amendment: Legislative Comm. 6E-10 (2023) 
  Erie County Sewer District No. 6 
  Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service Lateral Connection Lining Project 
  Bid Opening – Contract No. 66 
 
Dear Honorable Members: 
 

Plans and specifications, known as the Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service Lateral 
Connection Lining Project, Contract No. 66, were prepared and construction bids were received 
on Tuesday, April 4, 2023 by the Erie County Division of Sewerage Management. The lowest 
responsible bidder and bid amount for this project is as follows: 
 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder         Amount 
Contract No. 66  United Survey, Inc.     $498,140.00 
    25145 Broadway Avenue 
    Oakwood Village, OH 44146   
 

Should your Honorable Body require further information, I encourage you to contact 
Joseph Fiegl, P.E. in the Division of Sewerage Management.  Thank you for your consideration 
of this matter. 
 
      Sincerely yours, 
 
 
      Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq. 
      Erie County Executive 
 
MCP:nw 
Enclosure 
Cc: Joseph Fiegl, Deputy Commissioner, Division of Sewerage Management 



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Honorable Members of the Erie County Legislature 
From:  Department of Environment and Planning 
Re:  Amendment: Legislative Comm. 6E-10 (2023) 
  Erie County Sewer District No. 6 
  Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service Lateral Connection Lining Project 
  Bid Opening – Contract No. 66 
Date:  April 26, 2023 
 
SUMMARY 
Award of Contract No. 66 for the Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service Lateral Connection 
Lining Project is requested as follows: 
 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder         Amount 
Contract No. 66  United Survey, Inc.     $498,140.00 
    25145 Broadway Avenue 
    Oakwood Village, OH 44146     
     
The necessary bid tabulations, Engineer’s estimate, and Engineer’s recommendation are 
enclosed. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS 
There will be no fiscal implications to the County’s General Fund.  The funds for this contract 
will be from Capital Account No. C.21150 (American Rescue Plan funds). 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Rehabilitation of infrastructure is necessary to restore proper function in sanitary sewer 
collection systems, limit the probability of failure, reduce costly inflow & infiltration (I&I), and 
to protect public and environmental safety.  In an effort to remove I&I from the Ridgewood 
Village sanitary sewer collection system, engineers in the Division of Sewerage Management 
proposed that the connections to the mainline sewer in this project area be rehabilitated utilizing 
Cured-in-Place Pipe (CIPP) service connection liners, a trenchless technology determined to be 
the most economical method of completing the repairs.  The process has minimal impact on 
surface conditions, traffic, and residents.   
 



BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Erie County Sewer District No. 6 owns and operates the sanitary sewer collection system within 
the Ridgewood Village area of the City of Lackawanna.  In recent years, investments have been 
made in the rehabilitation of this system in accordance with an Enhanced I&I Pilot Study to 
provide compliance with the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
(NYSDEC) requirements.  Rehabilitation efforts to date have included CIPP lining of the 
mainline sewer, manhole rehabilitation, and open cut excavation spot repairs.  The final phase of 
the pilot study includes rehabilitation of the connections between the sanitary mainline sewers 
and the laterals.   
 
Plans and specifications were prepared by the Erie County Division of Sewerage Management 
for the purpose of receiving bids to complete the Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service 
Lateral Connection Lining Project, Contract No. 66.  Three (3) bids were received and publicly 
read on Tuesday April 4, 2023.  United Survey, Inc. was the lowest responsible bidder with a 
bid of $498,140.00.  United Survey, Inc. submitted a responsive bid that is considered 
competitive for this work and close to the Engineer’s estimate.  The contractor has been 
recognized as a responsible company and has successfully completed projects of this scale for 
the Division of Sewerage Management in the past.  Therefore, it is recommended the County 
Legislature proceed with award. 
 
CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION 
Maintaining the status quo would result in continued deterioration of the identified pipes, an 
increase in probability of failure over time, and no reduction in I&I.  Further, NYSDEC 
requirements would not be met. 
 
STEPS TO FOLLOW APPROVAL 
The lowest responsible bidder will be issued a Notice of Award and the Department will initiate 
the process of executing the contract documents. A Notice to Proceed will be issued to the 
contractor upon receipt of all necessary documents and execution of the contract. 





A RESOLUTION SUBMITTED BY: 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND PLANNING 

 
RE:  Amendment: Legislative Comm. 6E-10 (2023) 
 Erie County Sewer District No. 6 
 Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service Lateral Connection Lining Project  
 Bid Opening – Contract No. 66 
 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning has received the 
following lowest responsible bid for Contract No. 66 at 2:00 p.m. on April 4, 2023: 
 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder          Amount 
Contract No. 66  United Survey, Inc.     $498,140.00 
    25145 Broadway Avenue 
    Oakwood Village, OH 44146     
    

; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the aforementioned lowest responsible bidder has successfully completed 
projects for the Division of Sewerage Management in the past; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Division of Sewerage Management has determined this project is a Type 
II action in accordance with 6NYCRR Section 617.5(c) and therefore is not subject to State 
Environmental Quality Review Act review under New York State Environmental Conservation 
Law. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT, 
 

RESOLVED, that the Ridgewood Village Sanitary Sewer Service Lateral Connection 
Lining Project, Erie County Sewer District No. 6, Contract No. 66 be awarded as follows: 

 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder          Amount 
Contract No. 66  United Survey, Inc.     $498,140.00 
    25145 Broadway Avenue 
    Oakwood Village, OH 44146      
 
 ; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the County Executive be, and hereby is, authorized to execute 
Contracts with the aforementioned lowest responsible bidder, subject to approval as to form by 
the County Attorney’s office and approval as to content by the Commissioner of Environment 
and Planning; and be it further  

 
RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management and the County Comptroller 

are authorized to allocate up to $498,140.00 in Capital Account No. C.21150 (American Rescue 
Plan funds) to fund Contract No. 66; and be it further 



 
RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby 

authorized to implement any budget adjustments necessary to facilitate this funding; and be it 
further 
 
 RESOLVED, that at the close of the project any unused funds be returned to the capital 
project and the budgets be adjusted accordingly; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature be directed to send a certified copy of this 
resolution to the County Executive, the County Comptroller, the Director of Budget and 
Management, Richard Stanton, Assistant County Attorney, and Joseph Fiegl, P.E., Deputy 
Commissioner, Department of Environment and Planning. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 



 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-1  SHERIFF  EC Sheriff's Office - NYS Canal Corporation
Marine Patrol Grant  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-1



COMM. 10E-1 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 10E-1 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 10E-1 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 10E-1 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-2  MEYERS  Letter of Absence for Session No. 9 - May 4,
2023  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-2



COMM. 10E-2 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-3  BARGNESI  
Submission Pursuant to EC Code of Ethics
(Local Law #2 -2018), Disclosure of Family
Members Employed by Any Government
Organization

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-3



COMM. 10E-3 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 10E-4  COMPTROLLER  Interim Financial Report of Erie County  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-4



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 1 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 2 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 3 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 4 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 5 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 6 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 7 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 8 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 9 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 10 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 11 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 12 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 13 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 14 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 15 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 16 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 17 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 18 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 19 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 20 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 21 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 22 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 23 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 24 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 25 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 26 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 27 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 28 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 29 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 30 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 31 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 32 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 33 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 34 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 35 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 36 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 37 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 38 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 39 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 40 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 41 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 42 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 43 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 44 of 45



COMM. 10E-4 
Page 45 of 45



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 10E-5  MINORITY CAUCUS  Constituent Concern  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-5



COMM. 10E-5 
Page 1 of 3



COMM. 10E-5 
Page 2 of 3



COMM. 10E-5 
Page 3 of 3



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-6  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Submission Pursuant to EC Code of Ethics
(Local Law #2 -2018), Disclosure of Family
Members Employed by Any Government
Organization

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-6



COMM. 10E-6 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-7  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Buffalo Convention Center - Sidewalk Vault
Rehabilitation Project  



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-8  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Erie County - On-Call Electrical Engineering
Consultant  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-8



COMM. 10E-8 
Page 1 of 7



COMM. 10E-8 
Page 2 of 7



COMM. 10E-8 
Page 3 of 7



COMM. 10E-8 
Page 4 of 7



COMM. 10E-8 
Page 5 of 7



COMM. 10E-8 
Page 6 of 7



COMM. 10E-8 
Page 7 of 7



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-9  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Authorization to Enter Into Contract for Rath
Building - 15th Floor Amendment  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-9



COMM. 10E-9 
Page 1 of 7



COMM. 10E-9 
Page 2 of 7



COMM. 10E-9 
Page 3 of 7



COMM. 10E-9 
Page 4 of 7



COMM. 10E-9 
Page 5 of 7



COMM. 10E-9 
Page 6 of 7



COMM. 10E-9 
Page 7 of 7



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-10  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  On-Call General Civil Engineering & Land
Survey Services RFP  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-10



COMM. 10E-10 
Page 1 of 7



COMM. 10E-10 
Page 2 of 7



COMM. 10E-10 
Page 3 of 7



COMM. 10E-10 
Page 4 of 7



COMM. 10E-10 
Page 5 of 7



COMM. 10E-10 
Page 6 of 7



COMM. 10E-10 
Page 7 of 7



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 10E-11  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Transfer of Funds to Capital Project  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-11



COMM. 10E-11 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 10E-11 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 10E-11 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 10E-11 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-12  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Authorization to Enter Into Contract with the
Recreational Off-Highway Vehicle Association  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-12



COMM. 10E-12 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 10E-12 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 10E-12 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 10E-12 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-13  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Acceptance of State Aid for Safe Harbor for
Sexually Exploited Children  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-13



COMM. 10E-13 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 10E-13 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 10E-13 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 10E-13 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-14  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Authorization to Enter Into Contract with Dr.
Iram Ashraf  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-14



COMM. 10E-14 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 10E-14 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 10E-14 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 10E-14 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-15  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Appointment to the EC Senior Services
Advisory Board  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-15



COMM. 10E-15 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 10E-15 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 10E-15 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 10E-15 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-16  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Authorization to Enter Into Contract for
Transportation Consultant for Older Adult &
Disabled Populations

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-16



COMM. 10E-16 
Page 1 of 6



COMM. 10E-16 
Page 2 of 6



COMM. 10E-16 
Page 3 of 6



COMM. 10E-16 
Page 4 of 6



COMM. 10E-16 
Page 5 of 6



COMM. 10E-16 
Page 6 of 6



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-17  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Authorization to Award 2023 Summer
Operation Primetime Contracts  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-17



COMM. 10E-17 
Page 1 of 5



COMM. 10E-17 
Page 2 of 5



COMM. 10E-17 
Page 3 of 5



COMM. 10E-17 
Page 4 of 5



COMM. 10E-17 
Page 5 of 5



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10E-18  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Appointment to the EC Health Equity
Advisory Board  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-18



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 1 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 2 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 3 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 4 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 5 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 6 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 7 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 8 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 9 of 10



COMM. 10E-18 
Page 10 of 10



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 10E-19  SHERIFF  Accept Donation of Sanitation Supplies  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10E-19



COMM. 10E-19 
Page 1 of 3



COMM. 10E-19 
Page 2 of 3



COMM. 10E-19 
Page 3 of 3



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10D-1  DIRECTOR OF BUDGET
& MANAGEMENT  February 2023 Budget Monitoring Report  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10D-1



COMM. 10D-1 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10D-2  
DEPUTY
COMPTROLLER OF
AUDIT

 
EC Comptroller's Office Audit of the EC
Clerk's Office - Notification of Expanded
Scope & Separation into Two Audits

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10D-2



COMM. 10D-2 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10D-3  COUNTY ATTORNEY  Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie
County  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10D-3



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 1 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 2 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 3 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 4 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 5 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 6 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 7 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 8 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 9 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 10 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 11 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 12 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 13 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 14 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 15 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 16 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 17 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 18 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 19 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 20 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 21 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 22 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 23 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 24 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 25 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 26 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 27 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 28 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 29 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 30 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 31 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 32 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 33 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 34 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 35 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 36 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 37 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 38 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 39 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 40 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 41 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 42 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 43 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 44 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 45 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 46 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 47 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 48 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 49 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 50 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 51 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 52 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 53 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 54 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 55 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 56 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 57 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 58 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 59 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 60 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 61 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 62 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 63 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 64 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 65 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 66 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 67 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 68 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 69 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 70 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 71 of 72



COMM. 10D-3 
Page 72 of 72



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 10D-4  BUDGET DIRECTOR  Information Request Per INTRO. 7-3 (2023)  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10D-4



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 1 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 2 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 3 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 4 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 5 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 6 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 7 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 8 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 9 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 10 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 11 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 12 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 13 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 14 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 15 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 16 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 17 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 18 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 19 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 20 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 21 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 22 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 23 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 24 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 25 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 26 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 27 of 28



COMM. 10D-4 
Page 28 of 28



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10M-1  ASSIGNED COUNSEL
PROGRAM  Quarterly Report of Assigned Counsel

Program - 1st Quarter of 2023  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10M-1



COMM. 10M-1 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 10M-1 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 10M-1 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 10M-1 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 10M-2  ECIDA  ECIDA 2022 Annual Financial Statements  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10M-2



COMM. 10M-2 
Page 1 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 2 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Table of Contents

December 31, 2022

Independent Auditors’ Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Financial Statements
Balance Sheets
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows 
Notes to Financial Statements

Supplementary Information
Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets 
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Nonaccounting Information
Schedule of Bond, Note, and Lease Transactions

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 3 of 39



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors 
Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), a business-type 
activity, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise ECIDA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of ECIDA as of December 31, 2022, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be 
independent of ECIDA, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit.  We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

2021 Financial Statements

The financial statements of ECIDA as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 24, 2022.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about ECIDA’s ability to continue as a going concern for 
one year beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 4 of 39



2

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about ECIDA’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audit.

Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, ECIDA adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, in 2022. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion 
and analysis be presented to supplement the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 5 of 39



3

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise ECIDA’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information as listed in the table of 
contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Nonaccounting Information

The nonaccounting information at the end of these financial statements, which is the responsibility of 
management, is of a nonaccounting nature and has not been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 16, 2023 on our 
consideration of ECIDA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering ECIDA’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 16, 2023

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 6 of 39



4

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)

December 31, 2022

Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is a public benefit corporation that provides tax incentives, financing 
programs, international trade assistance, land development, and other economic development services to the City of Buffalo (the 
City) and Erie County, New York (the County).  In accomplishing its mission, ECIDA does not receive any operational funding from 
Federal, State, County, or local sources.  Instead, ECIDA relies primarily upon administrative fees charged to those businesses that 
utilize its products and services.

As a public benefit corporation, ECIDA is required to comply with accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  Under GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for 
State and Local Governments, ECIDA is required to present management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) to assist readers in 
understanding ECIDA’s financial performance.

In compliance with GASB Statement No. 34, we present the attached overview and analysis of the financial activities of ECIDA as 
of and for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with ECIDA’s audited financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2021, ECIDA adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87).  This statement requires recognition of certain 
lease assets and liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and that recognized income or expense, 
based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease as a liability and 
an intangible right-to-use lease asset and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. 

Basic Overview of the Financial Statements

Included in this report are the following financial statements:

1) Balance Sheets - The balance sheets show the reader what ECIDA owns (assets and deferred outflows of resources) and 
what ECIDA owes (liabilities and deferred inflows of resources).  The difference between ECIDA’s assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources (net position) can be one way to measure ECIDA’s 
financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in ECIDA’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial 
health is improving or deteriorating.

2) Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - This statement reports ECIDA’s operating and 
nonoperating revenues by major source along with operating and nonoperating expenses.  The difference between total 
revenues and expenses can be one way to measure ECIDA’s operating results for the year.

3) Statements of Cash Flows - This statement reports ECIDA’s cash flows from operating, capital and related financing, and
investing activities.

Financial Highlights

 ECIDA’s total net position decreased by 2% from $20,866,000 in 2021 to $20,638,000 in 2022.

 ECIDA experienced a decrease in net position of $228,000 in 2022 compared to $195,000 in 2021.

 Administrative fees, a key source of revenue for ECIDA, decreased 32% from $2,419,000 in 2021 to $1,656,000 in 2022.

 Operating expenses increased from $2,734,000 in 2021 to $2,946,000 in 2022.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 7 of 39



5

Condensed Comparative Financial Statements

Balance Sheets at December 31:

in thousands 2022 2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Assets
Cash $ 18,401 $ 18,638 $ (237) (1%) $ 18,670

Receivables and other assets 2,467 3,121 (654) (21%) 2,088

Capital assets, net 1,166 1,422 (256) (18%) 1,249

Restricted cash 9,524 8,870 654 7% 6,289

Total assets 31,558 32,051 (493) (2%) 28,296

Liabilities

Other liabilities $ 958 $ 1,614 $ (656) (41%) $ 1,064

Funds held on behalf of others 9,318 8,718 600 7% 6,134

Total liabilities 10,276 10,332 (56) (1%) 7,198

Deferred inflows of resources – leases 644 853 (209) (25%) -

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 1,040 1,134 (94) (8%) 1,249

Restricted 11,332 11,435 (103) (1%) 11,647

Unrestricted 8,266 8,297 (31) - 8,202

Total net position 20,638 20,866 (228) (1%) 21,098

Total liabilities, deferred inflows,
  and net position $ 31,558 $ 32,051 $ (493) (2%) $ 28,296

Restricted cash consists primarily of funds held on behalf of others including the Erie County Regional Redevelopment Fund, 
Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment Fund, and PILOT Increment Financing (PIF) funds. The $654,000 or 7% increase from 2021 is
primarily due to PILOT and PIF receipts of $1,414,000 and interest of $30,000 exceeding required disbursements to municipalities 
of $676,000 and eligible project funds of $168,000.  Restricted cash also includes $207,000 for the Railway Trust Fund, which 
increased $55,000 from 2021. The $2,581,000, or 41%, increase in 2021 over 2020 was due to continued PILOT payments into PIF 
funds and the establishment of a new PIF in 2021. 

Receivables and other assets include grants receivable, affiliate receivables, leases receivable, prepaid expenses, and venture 
capital investments.  The decrease of $654,000 is primarily the result of $219,000 of cash received from special project grants, 
$210,000 of cash received from building leases, and $284,000 from affiliates. The increase from 2020 to 2021 is from 
implementation of GASB 87, resulting in $853,000 of leases receivable and deferred inflow of resources at December 31, 2021.

The $656,000 decrease in other liabilities is due to decreases in accounts payable of $265,000, unearned revenue of $229,000, 
and leases payable of $162,000.  Unearned revenue is offset by grants receivable and is recognized as special project revenue as 
eligible activities are performed.  ECIDA rents office space that is capitalized as a right-to-use lease asset in accordance with GASB 
87 and the related lease payable decreases as payments are made. The increase from 2020 to 2021 was partially caused by the 
implementation of GASB 87.  Other liabilities include leases payable of $288,000 at December 31, 2021 that were not included in 
2020.

In accordance with GASB 87, ECIDA has capitalized the present value of future lease receipts as a lease receivable and deferred 
inflow of resources.  The lease receivable is reduced as cash is received and the deferred inflow of resources is recognized as 
rental income over the term of the lease contract.  ECIDA implemented GASB 87 as of January 1, 2021, the earliest year presented 
in the accompanying financial statements, and as such associated lease accounts are not reflected in this MD&A for 2020.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 8 of 39



6

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the years ended December 31:

in thousands 2022 2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 1,656 $ 2,419 $ (763) (32%) $ 1,850

Affiliate management fees 466 419 47 11% 387

Rental and other 438 405 33 8% 439

Total operating revenues 2,560 3,243 (683) (21%) 2,676

Operating expenses:

Salaries and benefits 1,999 1,905 94 5% 2,004

General and administrative 687 564 123 22% 625

Depreciation, amortization, and other 260 265 (5) (2%) 118

Total operating expenses 2,946 2,734 212 8% 2,747

Special project grants:

Revenues 966 5,484 (4,518) (82%) 113

Expenses (896) (6,228) 5,332 (86%) (1,476)

Total special project grants   70 (744) 814 (109%) (1,363)

Operating loss (316) (235) (81) 34% (1,434)

Nonoperating revenue (expense), net 88 40 48 120% (90)

Change in net position (228) (195) (33) 17% (1,524)

Net position – beginning 20,866 21,098 (232) (1%) 22,622

Restatement – GASB 87 - (37) -

Net position – ending $ 20,638 $ 20,866 $ (228) (1%) $ 21,098

Revenue Analysis

Administrative fees are primarily collected from the issuance of various forms of tax abatements and tax-exempt financing. Fees 
for tax abatement are based on the amount of project investment. ECIDA relies on these fees to cover its operating costs; however, 
the amount of fees collected in any given year is largely dependent upon the local economic climate and the timing between 
project approval and project commencement. Administrative fees decreased $763,000 or 32% in 2022 primarily due to a decrease 
in the value of induced projects. Administrative fees were collected related to 25 different projects in 2022, down from 31 in 2021. 
In 2020, administrative fees were collected related to 21 projects.

Affiliate management fees represent salaries and overhead costs charged to ECIDA affiliates for services that ECIDA’s employees 
provide to these organizations. ECIDA’s affiliates include Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), a lending 
corporation, and Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC), a land development corporation. Affiliate 
management fees from ILDC increased $53,000 while fees from RDC decreased $6,000.

Rental and other income is primarily comprised of rental income for building leases and rental income from the Port Terminal
Facility.

Expense Analysis

Salaries and benefits increased $94,000, or 5%, in 2022 due to employee raises and performance incentives.  In 2021, salaries and 
benefits decreased $99,000 from 2020 due to no performance incentive payments, lower pension contributions due to newly 
hired employees, and decreases in accrued leave balances.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 9 of 39



7

General and administrative expenses increased $123,000 from $564,000 in 2021 to $687,000 in 2022 primarily due to an $89,000 
refund for previously recognized administrative fee revenue.  The final project budget was below initial estimates and the fee due 
to ECIDA was reduced accordingly.  In 2021, general and administrative expenses decreased $61,000 which is partially due to the 
implementation of GASB 87 as lease payments in 2020 are reclassified as amortization and interest expense beginning in 2021. 
Consultant fees increased $84,000 and insurance costs increased $31,000 which partially offset the overall decrease in general 
and administrative expenses in 2021.

Net special project grants increased from a $744,000 net loss in 2021 to net income of $70,000 in 2022. In 2022, grant revenues 
mostly equaled grant expenses as the ECIDA passed through Erie County funds of $385,000 to ILDC and $198,000 of CARES Act 
funds to RDC. In 2021, ECIDA established a COVID-19 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Grant in response to the state of 
emergency declared in New York State and expended $559,000 of funds for this purpose. ECIDA also granted ILDC $213,000 to 
support carrying costs of property owned.

Budget Analysis

ECIDA prepares an annual budget which was presented and approved by the Board of Directors on October 27, 2021.  The 
following table presents an analysis of ECIDA’s performance compared to the approved 2022 budget.

Variance
in thousands Actual Budget $ %

Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 1,656 $ 1,855 $ (199) (11%)
Affiliate management fees 466 434 32 7%
Rental and other 438 450 (12) (3%)

Total operating revenues 2,560 2,739 (179) (7%)

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 1,999 2,092 (93) (4%)
General and administrative 687 714 (27) (4%)
Depreciation, amortization, and other 260 120 140 117%

Total operating expenses 2,946 2,926 20 1%

Operating income before special project grants (386) (187) (199) 106%

Special project grants:
Revenues 966 832 134 16%
Expenses (896) (824) (72) 9%

Total special project grants   70    8 62 775%

Nonoperating revenue, net 88 13 75 577%

Change in net position $ (228) $ (166) $ (62) 37%

Budget to Actual Analysis

Overall, ECIDA exceeded its budgeted decrease in net position for 2022 by $62,000.  Administrative fees were 11% less than the 
budgeted amount due to smaller tax incentive projects approved and closed than anticipated. Total operating expenses were 
$20,000 over budget and nonoperating revenue was higher than budget by $75,000.  Nonoperating revenue includes interest 
income on cash deposits that was $60,000 greater than expected.  Net special project grants had a positive variance of $62,000.

ECIDA implemented GASB 87, Leases, which required various reclassifications on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position that were not reflected in the 2022 budget. A portion of rental income was reclassified to interest income. 
ECIDA’s payments as a lessee are now capitalized as a right-to-use lease asset, resulting in lease payments budgeted as general 
and administrative expenses now recognized as amortization expense and a small portion as interest expense.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 10 of 39



8

Economic Factors Impacting ECIDA

ECIDA relies extensively upon administrative fees to generate the majority of its annual revenue.  As a result of current uncertain 
economic conditions and potential legislative/board actions, ECIDA’s ability to generate the administrative fees necessary to 
support operations may be limited in the future. 

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of ECIDA’s finances. Questions concerning any of the financial 
information provided in this report should be addressed to the CFO of ECIDA at (716) 856-6525.  General information relating to 
ECIDA can be found at its website, www.ecidany.com.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 11 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Balance Sheets
(As Restated)

December 31, 2022 2021

Assets

Current assets:

Cash 18,400,853$      18,638,374$      

Receivables

Affiliates 471,011              755,495              

Grants 644,183              863,473              

Leases 200,724              209,531              

Other 111,376              111,804              

Prepaid expenses 89,319                29,547                

19,917,466        20,608,224        
Noncurrent assets:

Leases receivable 443,203              643,927              

Capital assets, net (Note 5) 1,166,361           1,422,178           

Other assets 506,886              506,886              

Restricted cash 9,524,124           8,870,022           

11,640,574        11,443,013        

31,558,040$      32,051,237$      

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 37,003$              302,018$            

Lease payable 126,166              147,483              

Accrued expenses 151,856              150,611              

Unearned revenue 643,647              872,994              

958,672              1,473,106           
Noncurrent liabilities:

Lease payable -                           140,897              

Funds held on behalf of others 9,317,525           8,717,606           

9,317,525           8,858,503           

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred inflows of resources related to leases 643,927              853,458              

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 1,040,195           1,133,798           

Restricted 11,331,382        11,434,813        

Unrestricted 8,266,339           8,297,559           

20,637,916        20,866,170        

31,558,040$      32,051,237$      

See accompanying notes.  9

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 12 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

(As Restated)
For the years ended December 31, 2022 2021

Operating revenues:

Administrative fees 1,656,279$        2,419,283$        
Affiliate management fees 465,692              419,100              
Rental income 308,450              280,076              
Other 129,643              126,161              

Total operating revenues 2,560,064           3,244,620           

Operating expenses:

Salaries and benefits 1,999,345           1,905,312           
General and administrative 687,125              564,443              
Depreciation and amortization 258,776              263,932              
Other 1,354                  1,060                  

Total operating expenses 2,946,600           2,734,747           

Operating income (loss) before special project grants (386,536)            509,873              

Special project grants:

Revenues 965,710              5,484,283           
Expenses (895,280)            (6,228,502)         

70,430                (744,219)             

Operating loss (316,106)            (234,346)             

Nonoperating revenues:

Investment income -                           2,425                  
Interest income 102,271              59,683                
Interest expense (14,419)               (22,144)               

87,852                39,964                

Change in net position (228,254)            (194,382)             

Net position - beginning 20,866,170        21,097,843        
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (Note 2) -                           (37,291)               
Net position - beginning as restated 20,866,170        21,060,552        

Net position - ending 20,637,916$      20,866,170$      

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

See accompanying notes.  10

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 13 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Statements of Cash Flows
(As Restated)

For the years ended December 31, 2022 2021

Operating activities:

Cash from fees and rental income 1,964,729$        2,714,289$        

Cash from special project grants 955,653              5,500,302           

Cash received from other sources 880,247              366,877              

Payments to employees, suppliers, and other (3,173,580)         (2,395,760)         

Payments for special project grants (895,280)            (6,228,502)         

Net operating activities (268,231)            (42,794)               

Capital and related financing activities:

Purchases of capital assets (2,959)                 (31,305)               
Interest payments on leases (14,419)               (22,144)               
Interest received on leases 42,673                52,651                

Net capital and related financing activities 25,295                (798)                    

Investing activities:

Change in restricted cash, net (54,183)               2,683                  

Cash received from equity investments -                           2,425                  

Interest received 59,598                7,032                  

Net investing activities 5,415                  12,140                

Net change in cash (237,521)            (31,452)               

Cash - beginning 18,638,374        18,669,826        

Cash - ending 18,400,853$      18,638,374$      

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash flows

from operating activities:

Operating loss (316,106)$          (234,346)$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash flows

from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 258,776              263,932              

Changes in other assets and liabilities:

Receivables 504,202              (195,429)             

Prepaid expenses (59,772)               16,011                

Accounts payable (265,015)            227,366              

Lease payable (162,214)            (154,489)             

Accrued expenses 1,245                  (13,833)               

Unearned revenue (229,347)            47,994                

Net operating activities (268,231)$          (42,794)$             

See accompanying notes.  11

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 14 of 39



12

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Nature of Organization

Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) was 
created in 1970 by an act of the Legislature of the State of 
New York (the State) for the purpose of encouraging 
financially sound companies to establish themselves and 
prosper in Erie County (the County).

ECIDA has related party relationships with Buffalo and Erie 
County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC) and
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation 
(RDC).  All three entities are managed by the same personnel
and RDC currently shares a common board with ECIDA.  These
entities share the same mission, which is to provide the 
resources that encourage investment, innovation, workforce 
development, and international trade resulting in a successful
business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job 
creation, and job retention for businesses and individuals 
which improves the quality of life for the residents of the 
region.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of ECIDA have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles.

Financial Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define ECIDA for financial reporting 
purposes, management has considered all potential 
component units. The decision to include a potential 
component unit in ECIDA’s reporting entity is based on 
accounting standards which consider legal standing, fiscal 
dependency, and financial accountability. Based on the 
application of these criteria, there are no additional entities
included in ECIDA’s financial statements.

Measurement Focus

ECIDA reports as a special-purpose government engaged in 
business-type activities.  Business-type activities are those that 
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods or services.  ECIDA's financial statements are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred.  

ECIDA's policy for defining operating activities in the 
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position are those that generally result from exchange
transactions such as payments received for services and 
payments made to purchase those goods or services.  Certain 
other transactions are reported as nonoperating activities and 
include interest income, interest expense, and grants resulting 
from nonexchange transactions. Grants are recognized as 
receivable and unearned revenue at the time awarded and as 
revenue when all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been satisfied. ECIDA receives special project 
grants from various Federal, State, and County sources.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.

Cash

Cash management is governed by State laws and as 
established by ECIDA’s written policies. Cash resources must
be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust 
companies located within the State. Policies permit 
management to use demand accounts and certificates of 
deposit for daily operating funds.  Invested resources are 
limited to obligations of the United States Treasury and its 
Agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the 
State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand and time deposits and 
certificates of deposit not covered by Federal Deposit 
Insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral include 
obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations 
of the State and its municipalities and school districts.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 15 of 39



13

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank 
failure, ECIDA’s deposits may not be returned to it.  At 
December 31, 2022, ECIDA’s bank deposits were fully 
collateralized by FDIC coverage and securities held by the
pledging institution’s agent in ECIDA’s name.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at the principal amount 
outstanding, net of an allowance for uncollectible loans.  The 
allowance method is used to compute the provision for 
uncollectible loans.

Determination of the balance of the allowance for 
uncollectible loans is based on an analysis of the loan
portfolio and reflects an amount that, in management's 
judgment, is adequate to provide for potential loan losses.  
Loans are written off when, in management’s judgment, no 
legal recourse is available to collect the amount owed.

ECIDA previously provided a loan to a manufacturing company
that would be forgiven as the company met certain criteria. At 
December 31, 2022, the entire loan is reserved with the 
remaining $400,000 forgivable in $100,000 installments 
between 2023 and 2026 as the borrower satisfies the loan
requirements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Depreciation is provided 
over estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.  
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred; significant 
improvements are capitalized.

Capitalization thresholds to determine which asset purchases 
are added to capital accounts and the estimated useful lives 
of capital assets are:

Capitalization
Policy

Estimated 
Useful Life in 

Years

Buildings and improvements $ 1,000 5 - 40
Furniture and equipment $ 1,000 3 - 10

Rental Property:
In 1989, ECIDA developed a public warehouse and trans-
shipment facility (the Port Terminal Facility) at the Gateway 
Metroport facility in the City of Lackawanna. The Port 
Terminal Facility provides enclosed storage facilities and 
materials handling services for the trans-shipment of goods by 
water, rail, and truck. The facility is owned by ECIDA and is 
operated by Gateway Trade Center, Inc.  Port Terminal Facility 
rental property assets are fully depreciated. ECIDA receives a 
percentage of annual Excess Cash Flow, as defined, from the 
operations at the Port Terminal Facility.

ECIDA also owns its former office space at 143 Genesee 
Street.  This property is recorded at cost and leased to a third 
party (Note 7).

Other Assets

Other assets include venture capital investments made by 
ECIDA in order to spur local economic growth. Venture capital 
investments are recorded at the lesser of cost or fair market 
value as determined by management’s estimates based on 
available financial information.

Net Position

Net position consists of the following components:

 Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding 
balances of any related debt obligations attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

 Restricted – consists of restricted assets reduced by 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to 
those assets if their use is constrained to a particular 
purpose. Restrictions are imposed by the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development’s UDAG program.

 Unrestricted – the net amount of assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources 
that are not included in the determination of net 
investment in capital assets or the restricted component of 
net position and therefore are available for general use by 
ECIDA.

Tax Incentive Transactions

ECIDA maintains an economic development incentive 
program to provide sales, property, and/or mortgage 
recording tax benefits for qualified construction, renovation,
or expansion projects or other economic development 
activities within Erie County.  Under this program, ECIDA may 
take title to or a leasehold interest in the real and/or personal 
property involved in the project for the term of the incentive 
period. ECIDA simultaneously leases the property under a 
lease agreement to the company undertaking the project 
(lessee).  ECIDA receives administrative fees from the lessee
for providing these tax incentives which are recognized 
according to the terms of the fee agreement.  

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 16 of 39



14

ECIDA is an issuer of tax-exempt bond financing for qualified
manufacturers and low-income housing projects which meets 
the definition of conduit debt obligations. These bonds are 
obligations of the borrower and secured by the assets they 
finance. ECIDA receives bond issuance fees from the borrower
for providing this service which is recognized according to the 
terms of the fee agreement.  ECIDA also has a shared services 
agreement with ILDC under which administrative and staffing 
services are provided to ILDC in connection with its bond 
issuances to nonprofit organizations in exchange for the 
related bond issuance fees received by ILDC. At December 31, 
2022, previously issued bonds have an aggregate outstanding 
balance of $540,645,622, none of which is recognized as a 
liability of ECIDA.

ECIDA received $105,000 in administrative fees from ILDC in 
2022.  There were no administrative fees transferred in 2021.

2.  Change in Accounting Principle:

Effective January 1, 2021, the earliest period presented, 
ECIDA adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This
Statement establishes a single model for lease accounting
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings
of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, 
a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use asset, and a lessor is required to 
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of 
resources. The impact of this Statement on ECIDA’s balance 
sheet at January 1, 2021 is as follows:

Net position, January 1, 2021 $ 21,097,843
Lease receivable 1,053,011
Right-to-use lease asset 737,415
Accumulated amortization (331,837)
Lease liability (442,869)
Deferred inflow of resources (1,053,011)

Net position, as restated, January 1, 2021 $ 21,060,552

3. Special Project Grants:

Bethlehem Shoreline Enhancement – ECIDA received a grant 
from the NYS Department of State in the amount of $122,825
in June 2020 to support the construction and administration 
of Shoreline Trail enhancements on the former Bethlehem 
Steel property.

Bethlehem Water and Sewer Design – ECIDA received a grant 
from Erie County in the amount of $700,000 in July 2020 to 
support the design, engineering and construction 
administration of water and sewer utility extensions and 
upgrades on the former Bethlehem Steel property.

National Grid – Zero Net Energy Building – ECIDA received an 
Economic Development Program grant from National Grid in 
the amount of $125,000 in January 2017. Revenue was 
recognized during 2022 upon completion of the grant 
requirements.

U.S. Economic Development Administration (EDA) –
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy – ECIDA 
received a grant from the EDA in the amount of up to $50,000 
in October 2021 to support the Comprehensive Economic 
Development Strategy recovery plan implementation.

The following is a summary of grants receivable at December
31:

2022 2021

Bethlehem Shoreline Enhancement $ 92,119 $ 92,119
Bethlehem Water and Sewer Design 545,566 589,856
Buffalo Southern Railroad - 2017 

PFRAP Rail Improvement 140 140
Sumitomo Dunlop Rail - PFRAP 6,358 6,358
National Grid - Zero Net Energy - 125,000
EDA - Comprehensive Economic 

Development Strategy - 50,000

$ 644,183 $ 863,473

The following is a summary of unearned revenue at December
31:

2022 2021

Bethlehem Shoreline Enhancement $ 108,152 $ 122,373
Bethlehem Water and Sewer Design 535,495 575,621
National Grid - Zero Net Energy - 125,000
EDA - Comprehensive Economic 

Development Strategy - 50,000

$ 643,647 $ 872,994

4. Funds Held on Behalf of Others:

ECIDA holds cash for various development activities. ECIDA 
disburses these funds when given the appropriate 
authorization. The funds include:

2022 2021

Erie County Regional 
Redevelopment Fund $ 1,820,634 $ 1,846,057

Buffalo Brownfields 
Redevelopment Fund 452,106 561,316

Jemal’s Seneca Fund 427,340 348,142
Seneca Street Corridor Fund 2,387,879 2,304,585
Main Street Improvement Fund 4,229,566 3,657,506

$ 9,317,525 $ 8,717,606

Restricted cash also includes $206,599 and $152,416 as of 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, for the Railway 
Trust Fund for activities related to two Erie County shortline 
railroads.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 17 of 39



15

5.  Capital Assets:

Balance Retirements/ Balance
January 1, 2022 Increases Reclassifications December 31, 2022

Land $ 167,400 $ - $ - $ 167,400

Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements 1,106,386 2,959 - 1,109,345
Buildings 2,747,489 - - 2,747,489
Furniture and equipment 470,145 - - 470,145

Total depreciable assets 4,324,020 2,959 - 4,326,979

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 879,876 54,824 - 934,700
Buildings 2,026,464 36,043 - 2,062,507
Furniture and equipment 420,997 20,426 - 441,423

Total accumulated depreciation 3,327,337 111,293 - 3,438,630

Total depreciable assets, net 996,683 (108,334) - 888,349

Right-to-use lease assets:
Building 737,415 - - 737,415
Less accumulated amortization 479,320 147,483 - 626,803

Total right-to-use assets, net 258,095 147,483 - 110,612

$ 1,422,178 $ (255,817) $ - $ 1,166,361

Balance Retirements/ Balance
January 1, 2021 Increases Reclassifications December 31, 2021

Land $ 167,400 $ - $ - $ 167,400

Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements 1,106,386 - - 1,106,386
Buildings 2,747,489 - - 2,747,489
Furniture and equipment 471,536 31,305 (32,696) 470,145

Total depreciable assets 4,325,411 31,305 (32,696) 4,324,020

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 825,348 54,528 - 879,876
Buildings 1,990,421 36,043 - 2,026,464
Furniture and equipment 427,815 25,878 (32,696) 420,997

Total accumulated depreciation 3,243,584 116,449 (32,696) 3,327,337

Total depreciable assets, net 1,081,827 (85,144) - 996,683

Right-to-use lease assets:
Building 737,415 - - 737,415
Less accumulated amortization 331,837 147,483 - 479,320

Total right-to-use assets, net 405,578 147,483 - 258,095

$ 1,654,805 $ (232,627) $ - $ 1,422,178

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 18 of 39



16

6.  Related Party Transactions:

Affiliate Management Fees

ECIDA allocates a portion of personnel and rental costs to its 
affiliates, RDC and ILDC. ECIDA earned $465,692 and $419,100
in affiliate management fees for the years ended December 
31, 2022 and 2021.  Management fees and related receivables 
by affiliate are as follows:

Management Fees Receivables

2022 2021 2022 2021

RDC $ 288,468 $ 294,566 $ 291,289 $ 297,384
ILDC 177,224 124,534 179,722 458,111

$ 465,692 $ 419,100 $ 471,011 $ 755,495

In 2022, Erie County provided $385,000 to ECIDA as a 
subrecipient of Community Development Block Grant funds.
These funds were then transferred to ILDC for its Erie County 
BDF loan program. These amounts are included in special
project grant revenues and expenses in the accompanying 
2022 statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position.

7.  Leases:

ECIDA, as lessee, entered into a non-cancelable lease for 
office space through September 30, 2023 and recognized a 
right-to-use lease asset at the present value of $737,415 using 
a discount rate of 5%. The lease requires annual minimum 
payments of $176,633 and utility charges that are determined 
on an annual basis.  Principal and interest due in 2023 total 
$126,166 and $6,308, respectively.

ECIDA entered into a sublease agreement with Buffalo Urban 
Development Corporation for a portion of their office space
through September 30, 2023.  ECIDA recognized $23,153 and 
$23,338 in gross rental income, including interest at 5.0%, in 
2022 and 2021.  Expected receipts in 2023 total $16,011.

ECIDA, as lessor, has entered into a non-cancelable lease for 
its former office through July 31, 2027. ECIDA recognized 
$220,386 and $213,681 in gross rental income, including 
interest at 5.0%, in 2022 and 2021.  Annual receipts are 
expected to total $230,856 through 2025.

8.  Pension:

ECIDA maintains a defined contribution simplified employee 
pension (SEP) plan covering all of its employees.  Employees 
are eligible to participate six months after employment, with 
employer contributions vesting immediately.  During 2022
and 2021, ECIDA made discretionary contributions of 12% of
eligible employees’ salaries. ECIDA’s expense for contributing 
to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
amounted to $162,663 and $157,973 respectively. Employees 
are also permitted to participate in the New York State 
Deferred Compensation Plan but ECIDA does not make 
contributions to this plan.

9.  Risk Management:

ECIDA purchases commercial insurance for various risks of 
loss due to torts, theft, damage, injuries to employees, and 
natural disasters in addition to insurance purchased to 
indemnify directors and officers.  Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage 
in any of the past three years.

10.  Commitments and Contingencies:

Grants

ECIDA receives financial assistance from federal, state, and 
local agencies in the form of grants and fiduciary agreements.
Managing these funds generally requires compliance with the 
terms and conditions specified in the agreements and may be
subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of ECIDA. 
Based on prior experience, management expects any such 
amounts to be immaterial.

Litigation

ECIDA is subject to claims and lawsuits that arise in the 
ordinary course of business.  In the opinion of management, 
these claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse 
effect upon the financial position of ECIDA.

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 19 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Supplementary Information

Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets

General UDAG

Account Account Total

Assets

Current assets:

Cash 7,475,718$      10,925,135$    18,400,853$    

Receivables

Affiliates 471,011            -                         471,011            

Grants 644,183            -                         644,183            

Leases 200,724            -                         200,724            

Other 111,376 -                         111,376            

Prepaid expenses 89,319              -                         89,319              

8,992,331        10,925,135      19,917,466      
Noncurrent assets:

Leases receivable 443,203            -                         443,203            

Capital assets, net 1,166,361        -                         1,166,361        

Other assets 100,639            406,247            506,886            

Restricted cash 9,524,124        -                         9,524,124        

11,234,327      406,247            11,640,574      

20,226,658$    11,331,382$    31,558,040$    
Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 37,003$            -$                       37,003$            

Lease payable 126,166 -                         126,166            

Accrued expenses 151,856            -                         151,856            

Unearned revenue 643,647            -                         643,647            

958,672            -                         958,672            
Noncurrent liabilities:

Funds held on behalf of others 9,317,525        -                         9,317,525        

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred inflows of resources related to leases 643,927 -                         643,927            

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 1,040,195        -                         1,040,195        

Restricted -                         11,331,382      11,331,382      

Unrestricted 8,266,339        -                         8,266,339        

9,306,534        11,331,382      20,637,916      

20,226,658$    11,331,382$    31,558,040$    

December 31, 2022

 17

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 20 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Supplementary Information

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended December 31, 2022

UDAG

Account Total

Operating revenues:

Administrative fees -$                       1,656,279$       

Affiliate management fees and rental income -                         465,692            

Rental income -                         308,450            

Other -                         129,643            

Total operating revenues -                         2,560,064         

Operating expenses:

Salaries and benefits -                         1,999,345         

General and administrative 55,856              687,125            

Depreciation and amortization -                         258,776            

Other -                         1,354                

Total operating expenses 55,856              2,946,600         

Operating loss before special project grants (55,856)             (386,536)           

Special project grants:

Revenues 148,812            965,710            

Expenses (232,238)           (895,280)           

(83,426)             70,430              

Operating loss (139,282)           (316,106)           

Nonoperating revenues:

Interest income 35,851              102,271            

Interest expense -                         (14,419)             

35,851              87,852              

Change in net position (103,431)           (228,254)           

Net position - beginning 11,434,813       20,866,170       

Net position - ending 11,331,382$    20,637,916$    

(124,823)          

9,431,357        

9,306,534$      

66,420

(14,419)             

52,001              

816,898            

(663,042)          

153,856            

(176,824)          

258,776            

1,354                

2,890,744        

(330,680)          

129,643            

2,560,064        

1,999,345        

631,269            

General

Account

1,656,279$      

465,692            

308,450            

 18

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 21 of 39



19

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Erie County Industrial Development Agency

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the balance sheet of Erie County Industrial Development Agency
(ECIDA), a business-type activity, as of December 31, 2022, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise ECIDA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 
16, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered ECIDA’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ECIDA’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 22 of 39



20

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering ECIDA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose.

March 16, 2023

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 23 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code Applicant Name Address City State
Postal 
Code

Final Year of 
Financial 
Assistance

2682 Ellicott Development 295 Main Street Buffalo NY 14203 2025
10676 132 Dingens Street, LLC 132 Dingens Street Buffalo NY 14206 2030
2360 Norstar Development USA LP 200 South Division Street Buffalo NY 14204 2025
10411 Ciminelli Real Estate Development 50 Fountain Plaza Buffalo NY 14202 2021
2405 Pol‐Tek Industries 2300 Clinton Street Cheektowaga NY 14227 2022
10671 283 Ship Canal Parkway, LLC 2732 Transit Road West Seneca NY 14224 2022
10672 293 Grote Street, LLC 293 Grote Street Buffalo NY 14207 2029
2583 Sonwil Distribution Center, Inc. 100 Sonwil Drive Cheektowaga NY 14225 2024
10432 Marathon Drains 3310 N. Benzing Road Orchard Park NY 14127 2028
10230 Iskalo Development 5166 Main Street Williamsville NY 14221 2022
10376 Rosanna Elizabeth Visual & Performing Arts Campus (REVPAC) 345 West Ferry Street Buffalo NY 14213 2020
10231A Savarino Construction Corporation 500 Seneca Street Buffalo NY 14208 2025
2515 Niagara National 5001 Genesee Street Cheektowaga NY 14225 2023
10203 TM Montante Development 2760 Kenmore Avenue Tonawanda NY 14150 2024
10355A Benderson Development Company 570 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14202 2027
10372 Buffalo Urban Development Corporation 95 Perry Street Buffalo NY 14203 2026
10583 Creative Structure Services 550 Seneca Street Buffalo NY 14204 2029
10524 Tonawanda Pirson, LLC 5505 Main Street Williamsville NY 14221 2032
10339 The Krog Corporation 4 Centre Drive Orchard Park NY 14127 2022
10285A Benderson Development Company 570 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14202 2024
10298 Zaepfel Development 5505 Main Street Williamsville NY 14221 2027
2479 Cobey, Inc 1 Ship Canal Parway Buffalo NY 14218 2022
2616 API Heat Transfer 2777 Walden Avenue Cheektowaga NY 14225 2022
10359A Aakron Rule Corporation 8 Indianola Avenue Akron NY 14001 2028
1742 Righteous Babe Records, Inc P.O. Box 95 Ellicott Station Buffalo NY 14205 2024
10208 Automated Machine Technologies 6661 Ward Road Orchard Park NY 14127 2024
10663 BLD VII, LLC 100 Corporate Parkway Amherst NY 14226 2032
10074 BP Southtowns Campus, LLC, JP Southtowns Campus, LLC & B&S 

Southtowns Campus Group, LLC
701 Seneca Street, Suite 200 Buffalo NY 14210 2023

10429 The Frizlen Group 257 LafayetteSquare Buffalo NY 14213 2023
2456 Tonawanda Coke 3875 River Road Tonawanda NY 14151 2022
10413 Buffalo Material Handling 2745 Broadway Buffalo NY 14227 2027
2674 Buffalo Recycling Enterprises, LLC 266 Hopkins Street Buffalo NY 14220 2025
10701 RPNY Solar 2 LLC 897 Sanches Street San Francisco CA 94114 2047
10622 Terzo Development, LLC 505 Ellicott Street Buffalo NY 14203 2030
10408 CPI Process Systems, Inc. 2400 North America Drive West Seneca NY 14224 2020
10582 Calspan Corporation 4455 Genesee Street Cheektowaga NY 14225 2032
10340A Calspan Corporation 4455 Genesee Street Cheektowaga NY 14225 2028
2591 Canisius High School 1180 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14209 2008
860 Episcopal Chruch Homes 24 Rhode Island Street Buffalo NY 14213 2029
10585 Chestnut Point LLC 305 Oak Street Lewiston NY 14092 2031

3310 Benzing Road/Marathon Drains/MRP Supports
337 Ellicott Street, LLC/Big Ditch Brewing Company
467 Richmond Avenue
500 Seneca Street, LLC
5001 Genesee Street, LLC / Niagara National, Inc.
555 Riverwalk Parkway, LLC

Project Name
1093 Group/Family Dollar
132 Dingens Street/Pinto Construction
2009 Shoreline Apartments LLC
201 Ellicott, LLC/Braymiller Market
2300 Clinton Street Holdings, LLC/ Pol ‐Tek Industries
283 Ship Canal Parkway
293 Grote Street
315 Ship Canal Parkway, LLC

95 Pirson Parkway, LLC
9505 Main Street, LLC ‐ Cobey
API Heat Transfer, Inc.
Aakron Rule Corporation
Asbury Development, LP/Righteous Babe Records
Automated Machine Technologies, Inc.

570 Associates VI, LLC
683 Northland Avenue/Workforce Training Center
72 East Niagara Street
75 Pirson Parkway
791 Washington Street, LLC/Trico Building
93 NYRPT, LLC

Bullis Road Solar
Bush Lofts
CPI Process Systems, Inc.
Calspan Corporation
Calspan Corporation
Canisius High School

BLD VII, LLC
BP Southtowns Campus, LLC, JP Southtowns Campus, LLC & B&S 
Southtowns Campus Group, LLC
Baracolo Buffalo LLC
Braxner, LLC
Buffalo Material Handling
Buffalo Recycling Enterprises, LLC

Canterbury Woods
Chestnut Point LLC

21

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 24 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code Applicant Name Address City State
Postal 
Code

Final Year of 
Financial 
AssistanceProject Name

1035 Child and Family Services of Erie County 330 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14202 2022
10699 Coca‐Cola Beverage Northeast, Inc. 1 Executive Park Drive Bedford NH 3110 2033
10394 Column Development 1243 Military Road Tonawanda NY 14217 2026
10198A Ciminelli Real Estate Development 350 Essjay Road Williamsville NY 14221 2027
10225 Uniland Partnership of Delaware, LP 100 Corporate Parkway Amherst NY 14226 2026
1014 DTE Tonawanda LLC 425 South Main Street Ann Arbor MI 48107 2022
10286A Gordon Companies, Inc. 85 Innsbruck Drive Cheektowaga NY 14227 2024
10415A Derby Warehousing, LLC/KPM Exceptional 1393 Wisconsin Road Derby NY 14047 2028
10054 Derrick Corporation 590 Duke Road Cheektowaga NY 14225 2022
2361 Duke HN New York, LLC 600 East 96th Street Indianapolis IN 46240 2023
10535 Eastman Machine Company 779 Washington Street Buffalo NY 14203 2029
10395A Ebenezer Railcar Services, Inc./ERS Industries, Inc. 1005 Indian Church Road West Seneca NY 14224 2028
10504 The Related Companies, LP 30 Hudson Yards New York NY 10001 2038
2544 Enidine, Inc. 7 Centre Drive Orchard Park NY 14127 2023
2342 Episcopal Chruch Homes 24 Rhode Island Street Buffalo NY 14213 2036
10352 Flexo‐Transparent, Inc. 28 Wasson Avenue Buffalo NY 14240 2025
10317A Flexocit USA, Inc 1305 Eden‐Evans Center Angola NY 14006 2027
10254A Flying Bison Brewing Co. 491 Ontario Street Buffalo NY 14207 2023
1031 General Motors Powertrain 2995 River Road Tonawanda NY 14150 2032
627 General Motors Powertrain 2995 River Road Tonawanda NY 14150 2012
2524 General Motors Powertrain 2995 River Road Tonawanda NY 14150 2032
2752 General Motors, LLC 2995 River Road Tonawanda NY 14150 2012
2563 General Welding and Fabricating, Inc 991 Maple Street Elma NY 14059 2023
2637 Leisure Living 574 Main Street Tonawanda NY 14150 2026
2534 Goya Foods, Inc. 200 S. Main Street Angola NY 14006 2025
10330A Great Lakes Orthodontics 200 Cooper Avenue Tonawanda NY 14150 2028
10389 Group V Real Estate, Inc. 2457 Wehrle Drive Williamsville NY 14221 2030
10189 HARBORcenter Development, LLC First Niagara Center Buffalo NY 14203 2026
10419A Hertel Pacific, LLC/Cypress North Corp. 567 Exchange Street Buffalo NY 14210 2028
2491 Hydro‐Air Components, Inc. 100 Rittling Boulevard Buffalo NY 14220 2023
10350A Iroquois Bar Corporation 155 Commerce Drive Lackawanna NY 14218 2025
10434 Iskalo Development Corporation 5166 Main Street Williamsville NY 14221 2032
10433 Douglas Development Corporartion One Seneca Drive Buffalo NY 14203 2046
2596 Arrow Grinding, Inc. 525 Vickers Street Tonawanda NY 14150 2025
10291 Joint Schools Construction Board 672 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14209 2029
10621 Joint Schools Construction Board 672 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14209 2032
10140 Joint Schools Construction Board 672 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14209 2026
10194 Joint Schools Construction Board 672 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14209 2028
10342 Joint Schools Construction Board 672 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14209 2031
10134 Joint Schools Construction Board 672 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14209 2032
10435A Raine Logistics 2890 North America Drive West Seneca NY 14224 2028

DNC 250, Inc.
DTE Tonawanda, LLC
David Gordon/Gordon Companies, Inc./Colvin Oakdale, LLC
Derby Warehousing, LLC/KPM Exceptional
Derrick Corporation
Duke HN New York, LLC, Health Now

Child & Family Services of Erie County
Coca‐Cola Beverages
Column Development/L&W Supply
Conventus Partners, LP

Flexovit USA, Inc.
Flying Bison Brewing Co.
General Motors Corporation
General Motors Corporation
General Motors Corporation/GM Powertrain Group
General Motors, LLC

Eastman Machine Company
Ebenezer Railcar Services, Inc.
Elmwood Square Housing
Enidine Incorporated
Episcopal Church Home & Affiliates Life Care Community, Inc.
Flexo‐Transparent, Inc.

Hertel Pacific, LLC/Cypress North Corp.
Hydro‐Air Components, Inc.
Iroquois Bar Corporation
Iskalo 6700 Transit Road, LLC
Jemal's Seneca, LLC
John Goller/Arrow Grinding, Inc.

General Welding & Fabricating, Inc.
Gerspach Properties, LLC
Goya Foods, Inc.
Great Lakes Orthodontics, Ltd.
Group V Real Estate, Inc./Athenex Pharma Solutions
HARBORcenter Development, LLC

Kamax, LLC/Raine Logistics

Joint Schools Construction Board
Joint Schools Construction Board
Joint Schools Construction Board 2012A Refinance
Joint Schools Construction Board 2013 Refunding of 2009A Bonds
Joint Schools Construction Board Series 2016A
Joint Schools Construction Project

22

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 25 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code Applicant Name Address City State
Postal 
Code

Final Year of 
Financial 
AssistanceProject Name

2523 Hohler Awning, Inc.  2600 Walden Avenue Cheektowaga NY 14225 2023
10331 Kohler Awning, Inc. 2600 Walden Avenue Cheektowaga NY 14225 2024
10009 Larkin Development Group 726 Exchange Street Buffalo NY 14210 2022
2656 Invitrogen Corporation/GIBCO 3175 Staley Road Grand Island NY 14072 2025
2680 Invitrogen Corporation/GIBCO/Life Technologies 3175 Staley Road Grand Island NY 14072 2028
2511 Luminescent System, Inc. 130 Commerce way East Aurora NY 14052 2027
2675 MJM Industries, Inc. 3360 N. Benzing Road Orchard Park NY 14127 2025
10404 The Related Companies, LP 60 Columbus Circle New York NY 10023 2037
2566 Mayer Bros. Apple Products, Inc. 3300 Transit Road West Seneca NY 14224 2023
10209A McGard, Inc. 3875 California Road Orchard Park NY 14127 2022
10216 Medaille College 18 Agassiz Circle Buffalo NY 14214 2035
2426 Moog, Inc. 300 Jamison Road Elma NY 14059 2009
10356A Moog, Inc. 300 Jamison Road East Aurora NY 14052 2030
10093 Moog, Inc. 300 Jamison Road East Aurora NY 14052 2023
2619 Moog, Inc. 300 Jamison Road Elma NY 14059 2025
2574 Moog, Inc. 300 Jamison Road Elma NY 14059 2025
2454 New Era Cap Company, Inc. 160 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14202 2022
10390A Niagara Label Co., Inc. 12715 Lewis Road Akron NY 14001 2030
1062 Supermarket Management 460 Niagara Street Buffalo NY 14201 2023
10064 Niagara Transformer Corporation 1747 Dale Road Cheektowaga NY 14225 2024
10234 North American Salt Company 9900 West 109th Street Overland Park KS 66210 2022
2481 Northstar Location Services 4285 Genesee Street Cheektowaga NY 14225 2022
10256 The Hamister Group 10 Lafayette Square Buffalo NY 14203 2023
2404 Orchard Park CCRC, Inc.   1 Fox Run Lane Orchard Park NY 14127 2036
2516 Our Lady of Victory Renaissance Corp. 291 North Street Buffalo NY 14218 2008
1036 People, Inc. 1219 N. Forest Road Williamsville NY 14221 2022
2579 Perrys Ice Cream 1 Ice Cream Plaza Akron NY 14001 2024
10354 Pine Pharmaceuticals, LLC 100 Colvin Woods Parkway Tonawanda NY 14150 2028
10212 Simmers Cranes Design & Service Company 255 Fire Tower Road Tonawanda NY 14150 2026
10689 Polymer Conversions, Inc. 5732 Big Tree Road Orchard Park NY 14127 2032
2478 Polymer Conversions, Inc. 5732 Big Tree Road Orchard Park NY 14127 2023
10393A ROAR Logistics, LLC 120 Church Street Buffalo NY 14202 2028
10211 Richardson Center Corporation PO Box 100 Buffalo NY 14240 2027
2520 Rigidized Metals Corporation 658 Ohio Street Buffalo NY 14203 2023
10420 Rosina Food Products, Inc. 75 Industrial Parkway Cheektowaga NY 14227 2021
10269 Select One Search, LLC 2831 Wehrle Drive Williamsville NY 14221 2024
10341A Shell Fab 2855 Clinton Street West Seneca NY 14224 2025
10292A Concept Construction Corp. 2555 Transit Road Elma NY 14059 2024
10700 Sti‐Co Industries, Inc.  15 Cobham Drive Orchard Park NY 14127 2022
10421 Erie Wind, LLC 4910 Camp Road Hamburg NY 14075 2036
10422 Erie Wind, LLC 4910 Camp Road Hamburg NY 14075 2036

Kohler Awning, Inc.
Kohler Awning, Inc.
Lco Building, LLC
Life Technologies Corporation
Life Technologies, Inc.

Moog Inc. Plant 6A and 2C
Moog, Inc.
Moog, Inc.
Moog, Inc. Plant 11D
Moog, Inc. Plant 20
New Era Cap Company, Inc.

Luminescent Systems, Inc. (""LSI"")
MJM Industries, Inc.
Marina Vista Apartments
Mayer Brothers Apple Products, Inc.
McGard, LLC
Medaille College 2013 Refunding of ECIDA 2003 Bond

Orchard Park CCRC, Inc.
Our Lady of Victory Renaissance Corporation
People, Inc.
Perry's Ice Cream Company, Inc.
Pine Pharmaceuticals
Pollock Research & Design d/b/a Simmers Crane Design & Services

Niagara Label/12715 Lewis Road, LLC
Niagara Maryland Development, LLC
Niagara Transformer Corporation
North American Salt Company
Northstar Services, LLC
Orchard Heights, Inc.

SelectOne RE Holdings
Shell Fab
Shevlin Land & Cattle Company
Skycatcher Holdings, LLC
Steel Winds I Replacement
Steel Winds II Replacement

Polymer Conversions, Inc.
Polymer Conversions, Inc.
ROAR Logistics, LLC
Richardson Center Corporation/Richardson Olmsted Complex
Rigidized Metals Corp.
Rosina Food Products, Inc.

23

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 26 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code Applicant Name Address City State
Postal 
Code

Final Year of 
Financial 
AssistanceProject Name

10430A Steuben Foods, Inc. 1150 Maple Road Elma NY 14059 2034
10410A Steuben Foods, Inc. 1150 Maple Road Elma NY 14059 2030
10586 Sucro Real Estate, LLC 2303 Hamburg Turnpike Lackawanna NY 14218 2033
10360A Sumitomo Rubber USA, Inc. P.O Box 1109 Buffalo NY 14240 2029
10706 Sumitomo Rubber USA, Inc. 10 Sheridan Drive Tonawanda NY 14150 2033
10620 Surmet Ceramics Corp. 699 Hertel Avenue Buffalo NY 14207 2022
10192 Kittinger Furniture Company 2495 Main Street Buffalo NY 14214 2024
10295A Uniland Development Company 100 Corporate Parkway Amherst NY 14226 2027
10565 Life Technologies Corporation, Subsidary of Thermo Fisher 

Scientific, Inc. 
3175 Staley Road Grand Island NY 14072 2032

10564 Life Technologies Corporation, Subsidary of Thermo Fisher 
Scientific, Inc. 

3175 Staley Road Grand Island NY 14072 2032

10418 TMP Technologies, Inc. 1200 Northland Avenue Buffalo NY 14206 2022
10221 Zaepfel Development 5505 Main Street Williamsville NY 14221 2025
10328A Benderson Development Company 570 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14202 2024
10260A Unifrax Corporation 360 Firetower Drive Tonawanda NY 14150 2026
10362A Unifrax Corporation 600 Riverwalk Parkway Tonawanda NY 14150 2025
10407 Unifrax Corporation 600 Riverwalk Parkway Tonawanda NY 14150 2020
10379A WNY Foreign Trade Zone 10 North Gates Avenue Lackawanna NY 14218 2027
10148A Welded Tube 111 Rayette Road Concord L4K2E 2024
2345 Zion Holdings, LLC 443 Delaware Avenue Buffalo NY 14203 2022
10702 197 Summer St LLC 617 Main St.  Buffalo NY 14203 2023
10703 Sinatra and Company Redevelopment, LLC 617 Main St.  Buffalo NY 14203 2023
10720 Broadway Dev. & Management Group, LLC 343‐345 Broadway Buffalo NY 14203 2026
10722 Arbor Multi‐Family Lending, LLC 333 Earie Ovington Blvd Uniondale NY 11553 2023
10723 Krog Corporaton 4 Center Drive Orchard Park NY 14127 2024
10725 Sinatra & Company 617 Main St.  Buffalo NY 14203 2023
10727 Worksport 7299 E. Danbro Crescent Mississauga L5N6P9 2027
10740 Aebly & Associates 3638 Seneca St West Seneca NY 14224 2031
10746 Carrier Terminal Services Inc 2299 Kenmore Ave Kenmore NY 14207 2024
10751 Perry's Ice Cream 1 Ice Cream Plaza Akron NY 14221 2034
10758 OAHS Tonawanda TC LLC 980 Sylvan Avenue Englewood Cliffs NJ 7632 2062
10759 Zephyr Partners 700 Second St Encintas CA 92024 2039
10772 Pinto Construction Company 132 Dingens St Buffalo NY 14206 2031
10730 Joint Schools Construction Board 406 City Hall Buffalo NY 14202 2026

10469 Great Point Media Group 28 Wells Ave. Yonkers NY 10701 2034

The Kittinger Company
The Uniland Partnership of Delaware, LP
Thermo Fisher North Expansion

Thermo Fisher West Expansion

Time Release Properties/Time Release Sciences, Inc.
Tonawanda Pirson, LLC/Wythe Will Tzetzo

Steuben Foods, Inc.
Steuben Foods, Inc.
Sucro Real Eastate/Sweet Life
Sumitomo Rubber USA, Inc.
Sumotomo Rubber
Surmet Ceramics

Zion Holdings, LLC/Buffalo Clinical Research Center, LLC
George Lewis House Apartments
Walcot Apartments
Broadway Development & Management Group, LLC
Arbor Multi Family Lending
791 Washington Street, LLC

Trahwen‐G, LLC
Unifrax 1, LLC
Unifrax 1, LLC
Unifrax Line 7
WNY Foreign Trade Zone Operations/Punto Franco Ltd.
Welded Tube

Laborers Way 1, LLC
Second Warehouse 132 Dingens Street LLC
Joint Schools Construction Board/City School District of the City of 
Buffalo ‐ 2022 series
Great Point Studios Buffalo

471 Elmwood Ave
Worksport
A&A Union Road, LLC 
380 Vulcan / Carrier Terminal Services
Perry's Ice Cream
Tonawanda Towers

24

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 27 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code Project Type Project Purpose
Total Project 
Amount

Benefited Project 
Amount

Bond/Note 
Amount

Federal Tax Status 
of Bonds

Applicant is a Not for 
Profit Corporation

2682 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 1,268,510$              1,000,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10676 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 69,000,000$            6,208,185$              ‐$                              n/a N
2360 Bonds/Notes Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 11,000,000$            11,000,000$            9,000,000$             Tax Exempt N
10411 Lease Retail Trade 6,901,900$              5,960,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2405 Lease Manufacturing 500,000$                  300,000$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10671 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 53,802,515$            49,029,105$            ‐$                              n/a N
10672 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 9,267,021$              5,264,269$              ‐$                              n/a N
2583 Lease Wholesale Trade 12,404,677$            12,404,677$            ‐$                              n/a N
10432 Lease Manufacturing 718,329$                  622,484$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10230 Lease Manufacturing 2,560,000$              1,357,580$              ‐$                              n/a N
10376 Tax Exemptions Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 10,775,636$            7,355,713$              ‐$                              n/a N
10231A Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 31,737,624$            26,522,393$            ‐$                              n/a N
2515 Lease Services 1,100,000$              1,100,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10203 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 9,415,114$              8,474,415$              ‐$                              n/a N
10355A Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 20,745,000$            19,995,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10372 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 58,000,000$            44,110,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10583 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 2,220,927$              1,624,556$              ‐$                              n/a N
10524 Lease Manufacturing 5,806,657$              4,731,474$              ‐$                              n/a N
10339 Tax Exemptions Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 80,535,000$            69,094,873$            ‐$                              n/a N
10285A Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 6,331,256$              6,331,256$              ‐$                              n/a N
10298 Lease Manufacturing 3,304,500$              3,060,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2479 Lease Manufacturing 10,000,000$            9,200,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2616 Lease Manufacturing 7,125,076$              3,712,576$              ‐$                              n/a N
10359A Lease Manufacturing 2,670,000$              2,095,615$              ‐$                              n/a N
1742 Lease Other Categories 5,800,000$              5,800,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10208 Lease Manufacturing 860,000$                  675,000$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10663 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 14,570,786$            12,707,083$            ‐$                              n/a N
10074 Lease Services 2,869,500$              2,869,500$              ‐$                              n/a N

10429 Tax Exemptions Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 3,025,200$              14,437,500$            ‐$                              n/a N
2456 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 491,000$                  391,000$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10413 Lease Services 1,315,000$              1,265,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2674 Lease Other Categories 14,000,000$            3,642,400$              ‐$                              n/a N
10701 Lease Other Categories 7,425,000$              7,425,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10622 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 3,050,000$              1,867,795$              ‐$                              n/a N
10408 Lease Wholesale Trade 3,100,000$              2,700,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10582 Lease Services 13,500,000$            13,250,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10340A Lease Services 6,095,500$              6,095,500$              ‐$                              n/a N
2591 Bonds/Notes Civic Facility 25,000,000$            25,000,000$            22,250,000$           Tax Exempt Y
860 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 58,610,000$            58,740,000$            58,610,000$           Tax Exempt Y
10585 Lease Services 5,000,000$              3,750,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
1035 Bonds/Notes Services 4,200,000$              4,200,000$              4,200,000$             Tax Exempt Y

283 Ship Canal Parkway
293 Grote Street
315 Ship Canal Parkway, LLC
3310 Benzing Road/Marathon Drains/MRP Supports
337 Ellicott Street, LLC/Big Ditch Brewing Company
467 Richmond Avenue

Project Name
1093 Group/Family Dollar
132 Dingens Street/Pinto Construction
2009 Shoreline Apartments LLC
201 Ellicott, LLC/Braymiller Market
2300 Clinton Street Holdings, LLC/ Pol ‐Tek Industries

75 Pirson Parkway
791 Washington Street, LLC/Trico Building
93 NYRPT, LLC
95 Pirson Parkway, LLC
9505 Main Street, LLC ‐ Cobey
API Heat Transfer, Inc.

500 Seneca Street, LLC
5001 Genesee Street, LLC / Niagara National, Inc.
555 Riverwalk Parkway, LLC
570 Associates VI, LLC
683 Northland Avenue/Workforce Training Center
72 East Niagara Street

Braxner, LLC
Buffalo Material Handling
Buffalo Recycling Enterprises, LLC
Bullis Road Solar
Bush Lofts
CPI Process Systems, Inc.

Aakron Rule Corporation
Asbury Development, LP/Righteous Babe Records
Automated Machine Technologies, Inc.
BLD VII, LLC
BP Southtowns Campus, LLC, JP Southtowns Campus, LLC & 
B&S Southtowns Campus Group, LLC
Baracolo Buffalo LLC

Calspan Corporation
Calspan Corporation
Canisius High School
Canterbury Woods
Chestnut Point LLC
Child & Family Services of Erie County

25

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 28 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code Project Type Project Purpose
Total Project 
Amount

Benefited Project 
Amount

Bond/Note 
Amount

Federal Tax Status 
of Bonds

Applicant is a Not for 
Profit CorporationProject Name

10699 Lease Manufacturing 22,611,507$            21,571,633$            ‐$                              n/a N
10394 Lease Wholesale Trade 2,500,000$              2,500,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10198A Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 100,723,543$          81,367,307$            ‐$                              n/a N
10225 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 51,785,708$            51,785,708$            ‐$                              n/a N
1014 Lease Services 34,900,000$            19,700,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10286A Lease Wholesale Trade 1,425,000$              1,425,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10415A Lease Wholesale Trade 1,332,000$              1,307,500$              ‐$                              n/a N
10054 Lease Manufacturing 19,155,000$            11,355,611$            ‐$                              n/a N
2361 Bonds/Notes Services 111,300,000$          11,275,000$            11,275,000$           Taxable N
10535 Lease Manufacturing 1,665,000$              1,615,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10395A Lease Manufacturing 6,000,000$              4,600,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10504 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 8,590,000$              8,590,000$              8,590,000$             Tax Exempt N
2544 Lease Manufacturing 2,926,400$              2,926,400$              ‐$                              n/a N
2342 Lease Civic Facility 14,472,000$            14,472,000$            ‐$                              n/a Y

10352 Lease Manufacturing 6,559,158$              3,375,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10317A Lease Manufacturing 8,349,492$              2,878,500$              ‐$                              n/a N
10254A Lease Manufacturing 2,500,000$              1,642,714$              ‐$                              n/a N
1031 Lease Manufacturing 501,201,500$          80,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
627 Lease Manufacturing 293,000,000$          42,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2524 Lease Manufacturing 25,000,000$            25,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2752 Lease Manufacturing 814,700,000$          18,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2563 Lease Manufacturing 2,260,000$              2,129,670$              ‐$                              n/a N
2637 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 4,500,000$              1,855,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2534 Lease Manufacturing 10,681,774$            10,681,774$            ‐$                              n/a N
10330A Lease Manufacturing 4,629,766$              4,629,766$              ‐$                              n/a N
10389 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 1,697,388$              1,575,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10189 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 172,200$                  160,000,000$          ‐$                              n/a N
10419A Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 935,160$                  7,000,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2491 Bonds/Notes Manufacturing 9,800,000$              9,800,000$              9,800,000$             Taxable N
10350A Lease Manufacturing 1,561,179$              1,413,021$              ‐$                              n/a N
10434 Lease Manufacturing 32,300,000$            21,500,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10433 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 45,000,000$            45,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2596 Lease Manufacturing 650,000$                  614,000$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10291 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 236,975,000$          236,975,000$          236,975,000$         Tax Exempt N
10621 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 109,135,000$          109,135,000$          109,135,000$         Tax Exempt N
10140 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 209,540,000$          209,540,000$          209,540,000$         Tax Exempt N
10194 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 62,540,000$            62,540,000$            62,540,000$           Tax Exempt N
10342 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 175,000,000$          133,580,000$          133,580,000$         Tax Exempt N
10134 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 277,875,000$          277,875,000$          277,875,000$         Tax Exempt N
10435A Lease Transportation, Communication, 

Electric, Gas and Sanitary Services
2,214,000$              2,214,000$              ‐$                              n/a N

Coca‐Cola Beverages
Column Development/L&W Supply
Conventus Partners, LP
DNC 250, Inc.
DTE Tonawanda, LLC
David Gordon/Gordon Companies, Inc./Colvin Oakdale, LLC

Enidine Incorporated
Episcopal Church Home & Affiliates Life Care Community, 
Inc.
Flexo‐Transparent, Inc.
Flexovit USA, Inc.
Flying Bison Brewing Co.
General Motors Corporation

Derby Warehousing, LLC/KPM Exceptional
Derrick Corporation
Duke HN New York, LLC, Health Now
Eastman Machine Company
Ebenezer Railcar Services, Inc.
Elmwood Square Housing

Great Lakes Orthodontics, Ltd.
Group V Real Estate, Inc./Athenex Pharma Solutions
HARBORcenter Development, LLC
Hertel Pacific, LLC/Cypress North Corp.
Hydro‐Air Components, Inc.
Iroquois Bar Corporation

General Motors Corporation
General Motors Corporation/GM Powertrain Group
General Motors, LLC
General Welding & Fabricating, Inc.
Gerspach Properties, LLC
Goya Foods, Inc.

Joint Schools Construction Board 2013 Refunding of 2009A 
Joint Schools Construction Board Series 2016A
Joint Schools Construction Project
Kamax, LLC/Raine Logistics

Iskalo 6700 Transit Road, LLC
Jemal's Seneca, LLC
John Goller/Arrow Grinding, Inc.
Joint Schools Construction Board
Joint Schools Construction Board
Joint Schools Construction Board 2012A Refinance

26

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 29 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code Project Type Project Purpose
Total Project 
Amount

Benefited Project 
Amount

Bond/Note 
Amount

Federal Tax Status 
of Bonds

Applicant is a Not for 
Profit CorporationProject Name

2523 Lease Services 295,800$                  295,800$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10331 Lease Manufacturing 850,000$                  850,000$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10009 Lease Construction 13,428,191$            10,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2656 Lease Services 2,378,000$              2,378,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2680 Lease Manufacturing 7,558,455$              6,905,410$              ‐$                              n/a N
2511 Bonds/Notes Manufacturing 7,500,000$              6,000,000$              6,000,000$             Tax Exempt N
2675 Lease Wholesale Trade 1,000,000$              1,000,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10404 Bonds/Notes Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 23,599,000$            13,300,000$            13,300,000$           Taxable N
2566 Lease Manufacturing 916,530$                  916,530$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10209A Lease Manufacturing 9,009,000$              7,702,319$              ‐$                              n/a N
10216 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 18,240,000$            18,240,000$            18,240,000$           Tax Exempt N
2426 Lease Manufacturing 6,514,316$              6,514,316$              ‐$                              n/a N
10356A Lease Manufacturing 44,300,000$            39,600,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10093 Lease Manufacturing 20,567,600$            17,327,600$            ‐$                              n/a N
2619 Lease Manufacturing 6,700,300$              6,700,300$              ‐$                              n/a N
2574 Lease Manufacturing 9,781,000$              9,463,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2454 Lease Manufacturing 9,772,000$              9,593,850$              ‐$                              n/a N
10390A Lease Manufacturing 1,300,000$              1,300,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
1062 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 2,500,000$              2,500,000$              2,500,000$             Tax Exempt N
10064 Lease Manufacturing 10,365,000$            6,700,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10234 Lease Manufacturing 8,269,396$              4,680,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
2481 Lease Services 1,400,000$              1,400,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10256 Lease Services 18,700,000$            18,700,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2404 Bonds/Notes Other Categories 80,000,000$            77,835,000$            77,835,000$           Tax Exempt Y
2516 Bonds/Notes Civic Facility 12,000,000$            11,860,000$            11,860,000$           Tax Exempt Y
1036 Bonds/Notes Services 13,685,000$            13,685,000$            13,685,000$           Tax Exempt Y
2579 Lease Services 3,600,000$              3,600,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10354 Lease Manufacturing 4,300,000$              3,500,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10212 Lease Manufacturing 1,546,500$              1,475,000$              ‐$                              n/a N

10689 Lease Manufacturing 14,250,000$            14,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2478 Lease Manufacturing 3,460,000$              2,964,300$              ‐$                              n/a N
10393A Lease Services 3,425,000$              2,616,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10211 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 55,154,000$            44,310,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2520 Lease Services 1,569,176$              1,569,176$              ‐$                              n/a N
10420 Lease Manufacturing 58,000,000$            33,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10269 Lease Services 1,528,000$              1,528,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10341A Lease Manufacturing 3,179,000$              2,750,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10292A Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 1,602,950$              1,534,571$              ‐$                              n/a N
10700 Tax Exemptions Manufacturing 2,879,000$              2,829,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10421 Lease Other Categories 17,171,429$            16,171,429$            ‐$                              n/a N
10422 Lease Other Categories 4,292,858$              4,002,858$              ‐$                              n/a N

Kohler Awning, Inc.
Kohler Awning, Inc.

Mayer Brothers Apple Products, Inc.
McGard, LLC
Medaille College 2013 Refunding of ECIDA 2003 Bond
Moog Inc. Plant 6A and 2C
Moog, Inc.
Moog, Inc.

Lco Building, LLC
Life Technologies Corporation
Life Technologies, Inc.
Luminescent Systems, Inc. (""LSI"")
MJM Industries, Inc.
Marina Vista Apartments

North American Salt Company
Northstar Services, LLC
Orchard Heights, Inc.
Orchard Park CCRC, Inc.
Our Lady of Victory Renaissance Corporation
People, Inc.

Moog, Inc. Plant 11D
Moog, Inc. Plant 20
New Era Cap Company, Inc.
Niagara Label/12715 Lewis Road, LLC
Niagara Maryland Development, LLC
Niagara Transformer Corporation

Richardson Center Corporation/Richardson Olmsted 
Rigidized Metals Corp.
Rosina Food Products, Inc.
SelectOne RE Holdings
Shell Fab
Shevlin Land & Cattle Company

Perry's Ice Cream Company, Inc.
Pine Pharmaceuticals
Pollock Research & Design d/b/a Simmers Crane Design & 
Services
Polymer Conversions, Inc.
Polymer Conversions, Inc.
ROAR Logistics, LLC

Skycatcher Holdings, LLC
Steel Winds I Replacement
Steel Winds II Replacement

27

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 30 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code Project Type Project Purpose
Total Project 
Amount

Benefited Project 
Amount

Bond/Note 
Amount

Federal Tax Status 
of Bonds

Applicant is a Not for 
Profit CorporationProject Name

10430A Lease Manufacturing 25,621,494$            25,621,494$            ‐$                              n/a N
10410A Lease Manufacturing 16,457,951$            10,283,007$            ‐$                              n/a N
10586 Lease Manufacturing 19,000,000$            18,880,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10360A Lease Manufacturing 9,915,409$              4,461,159$              ‐$                              n/a N
10706 Lease Manufacturing 126,000,000$          125,985,000$          ‐$                              n/a N
10620 Tax Exemptions Manufacturing 11,500,000$            11,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10192 Lease Manufacturing 1,278,000$              1,278,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10295A Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 21,058,000$            17,850,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10565 Lease Manufacturing 85,000,000$            70,200,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10564 Lease Manufacturing 90,000,000$            90,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10418 Lease Manufacturing 22,700,000$            14,380,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10221 Lease Transportation, Communication, 

Electric, Gas and Sanitary Services
18,700,000$            16,200,000$            ‐$                              n/a N

10328A Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 4,772,611$              4,772,611$              ‐$                              n/a N
10260A Lease Manufacturing 33,000,000$            13,000,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10362A Lease Manufacturing 28,700,000$            6,151,770$              ‐$                              n/a N
10407 Lease Manufacturing 36,000,000$            18,675,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10379A Lease Services 1,516,000$              1,516,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10148A Lease Manufacturing 49,778,000$            12,762,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
2345 Lease Other Categories 2,250,000$              2,250,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10702 Tax Exemptions Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 2,875,000$              945,000$                  ‐$                              n/a N
10703 Tax Exemptions Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 3,345,000$              1,212,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10720 Tax Exemptions Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 12,500,000$            8,086,560$              ‐$                              n/a N
10722 Tax Exemptions Services 2,100,000$              2,000,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10723 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 101,500,000$          79,693,125$            ‐$                              n/a N
10725 Tax Exemptions Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 3,590,000$              1,400,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10727 Tax Exemptions Manufacturing 15,666,887$            1,480,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10740 Lease Services 3,110,729$              2,786,729$              ‐$                              n/a N
10746 Lease Services 7,145,000$              5,760,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10751 Lease Manufacturing 18,000,000$            9,820,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10758 Bonds/Notes Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 25,040,720$            11,740,000$            11,740,000$           Tax Exempt N
10759 Lease Manufacturing 27,800,000$            24,875,000$            ‐$                              n/a N
10772 Lease Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 9,300,000$              9,050,000$              ‐$                              n/a N
10730 Bonds/Notes Finance, Ins., & Real Estate 71,150,000$            71,150,000$            71,150,000$           Tax Exempt N

10469 Lease Services 20,931,998$            15,318,753$            ‐$                              n/a N

Sumitomo Rubber USA, Inc.
Sumotomo Rubber
Surmet Ceramics
The Kittinger Company
The Uniland Partnership of Delaware, LP
Thermo Fisher North Expansion

Steuben Foods, Inc.
Steuben Foods, Inc.
Sucro Real Eastate/Sweet Life

Unifrax Line 7
WNY Foreign Trade Zone Operations/Punto Franco Ltd.
Welded Tube
Zion Holdings, LLC/Buffalo Clinical Research Center, LLC
George Lewis House Apartments
Walcot Apartments

Thermo Fisher West Expansion
Time Release Properties/Time Release Sciences, Inc.
Tonawanda Pirson, LLC/Wythe Will Tzetzo

Trahwen‐G, LLC
Unifrax 1, LLC
Unifrax 1, LLC

Great Point Studios Buffalo

380 Vulcan / Carrier Terminal Services
Perry's Ice Cream
Tonawanda Towers
Laborers Way 1, LLC
Second Warehouse 132 Dingens Street LLC
Joint Schools Construction Board/City School District of the 
City of Buffalo ‐ 2022 series

Broadway Development & Management Group, LLC
Arbor Multi Family Lending
791 Washington Street, LLC
471 Elmwood Ave
Worksport
A&A Union Road, LLC 

28

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 31 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code
Date Project 
Approved

Estimate of jobs 
to be created

Estimate of 
jobs to be 
retained

State Sales Tax 
Exemption

Local Sales Tax 
Exemption

County Real 
Property Tax 
Exemption

Local Property 
Tax Exemption

School 
Property Tax 
Exemption

Mortgage 
Recording Tax 
Exemption

2682 6/8/2009 2 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               3,555$                   12,846$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10676 7/28/2021 23 0 67,168$              79,762$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2360 5/9/2005 4 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               9,956$                   35,975$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10411 8/28/2019 45 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            29,979$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
2405 9/12/2005 3 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               1,608$                   2,515$                 6,747$              ‐$                            
10671 5/26/2021 76 0 596,771$            708,666$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10672 5/26/2021 1 0 112,640$            133,760$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2583 12/10/2007 33 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               60,339$                 218,033$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
10432 3/25/2020 2 15 ‐$                         ‐$                               1,756$                   1,326$                 6,379$              ‐$                            
10230 1/29/2014 13 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               12,068$                 43,607$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10376 6/28/2017 1 3 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10231A 2/26/2014 11 20 ‐$                         ‐$                               146,388$               528,965$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
2515 11/13/2006 5 30 ‐$                         ‐$                               5,890$                   9,212$                 16,187$           ‐$                            
10203 4/22/2013 168 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               31,803$                 78,697$               125,747$         ‐$                            
10355A 2/22/2017 124 0 134,081$            159,222$                 49,973$                 78,156$               153,447$         ‐$                            
10372 5/24/2017 8 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               8,045$                   29,071$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10583 1/27/2021 3 17 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          23,315$           ‐$                            
10524 11/18/2020 2 35 67,705$              80,400$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          35,120$           ‐$                            
10339 8/24/2016 130 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10285A 4/22/2015 35 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               21,566$                 33,728$               63,519$           ‐$                            
10298 8/18/2015 31 141 ‐$                         ‐$                               13,641$                 33,756$               53,938$           ‐$                            
2479 5/8/2006 15 45 ‐$                         ‐$                               12,028$                 83,615$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
2616 5/12/2008 75 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               21,792$                 34,083$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10359A 4/26/2017 10 145 ‐$                         ‐$                               5,011$                   8,101$                 13,004$           ‐$                            
1742 6/11/2003 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               19,985$                 72,214$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10208 5/20/2013 2 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               2,805$                   2,118$                 10,188$           ‐$                            
10663 4/28/2021 41 0 137,684$            163,500$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10074 12/19/2011 50 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               12,947$                 9,774$                 47,020$           ‐$                            

10429 2/26/2020 25 9 58,827$              69,857$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2456 2/13/2006 36 4 ‐$                         ‐$                               4,275$                   10,579$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10413 6/27/2019 3 30 ‐$                         ‐$                               2,447$                   8,309$                 6,724$              ‐$                            
2674 3/9/2009 40 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               13,828$                 49,966$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10701 9/22/2021 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10622 3/24/2021 1 0 13,930$              16,542$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10408 5/22/2019 2 12 ‐$                         ‐$                               9,122$                   14,972$               31,719$           ‐$                            
10582 1/27/2021 20 143 10,001$              11,876$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10340A 8/24/2016 11 113 ‐$                         ‐$                               12,867$                 20,124$               35,363$           ‐$                            
2591 1/1/2008 1 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
860 6/11/1997 16 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               128,916$               100,399$             472,377$         ‐$                            
10585 1/27/2021 43 76 13,916$              16,525$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          95,911$           ‐$                            

283 Ship Canal Parkway
293 Grote Street
315 Ship Canal Parkway, LLC
3310 Benzing Road/Marathon Drains/MRP Supports
337 Ellicott Street, LLC/Big Ditch Brewing Company
467 Richmond Avenue

Project Name
1093 Group/Family Dollar
132 Dingens Street/Pinto Construction
2009 Shoreline Apartments LLC
201 Ellicott, LLC/Braymiller Market
2300 Clinton Street Holdings, LLC/ Pol ‐Tek Industries

75 Pirson Parkway
791 Washington Street, LLC/Trico Building
93 NYRPT, LLC
95 Pirson Parkway, LLC
9505 Main Street, LLC ‐ Cobey
API Heat Transfer, Inc.

500 Seneca Street, LLC
5001 Genesee Street, LLC / Niagara National, Inc.
555 Riverwalk Parkway, LLC
570 Associates VI, LLC
683 Northland Avenue/Workforce Training Center
72 East Niagara Street

Braxner, LLC
Buffalo Material Handling
Buffalo Recycling Enterprises, LLC
Bullis Road Solar
Bush Lofts
CPI Process Systems, Inc.

Aakron Rule Corporation
Asbury Development, LP/Righteous Babe Records
Automated Machine Technologies, Inc.
BLD VII, LLC
BP Southtowns Campus, LLC, JP Southtowns Campus, LLC & 
B&S Southtowns Campus Group, LLC
Baracolo Buffalo LLC

Calspan Corporation
Calspan Corporation
Canisius High School
Canterbury Woods
Chestnut Point LLC

29

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 32 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code
Date Project 
Approved

Estimate of jobs 
to be created

Estimate of 
jobs to be 
retained

State Sales Tax 
Exemption

Local Sales Tax 
Exemption

County Real 
Property Tax 
Exemption

Local Property 
Tax Exemption

School 
Property Tax 
Exemption

Mortgage 
Recording Tax 
ExemptionProject Name

1035 5/15/2002 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10699 9/22/2021 0 124 379,596$            450,770$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10394 7/25/2018 8 30 ‐$                         ‐$                               8,971$                   14,030$               26,422$           ‐$                            
10198A 3/25/2013 100 1148 ‐$                         ‐$                               228,691$               826,361$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
10225 12/16/2013 65 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               152,357$               550,532$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
1014 3/14/2001 7 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               49,599$                 122,733$             196,112$         ‐$                            
10286A 5/20/2015 6 82 ‐$                         ‐$                               9,922$                   15,518$               25,891$           ‐$                            
10415A 7/24/2019 1 6 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10054 3/21/2011 36 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               9,237$                   14,447$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
2361 7/11/2005 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               362,036$               1,308,195$         ‐$                      ‐$                            
10535 2/24/2021 3 126 19,605$              23,281$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      7,500$                    
10395A 7/25/2018 13 84 ‐$                         ‐$                               29,729$                 48,792$               103,370$         ‐$                            
10504 9/23/2021 0 4 2,674$                3,175$                      ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2544 3/12/2007 40 270 ‐$                         ‐$                               2,439$                   1,841$                 8,858$              ‐$                            
2342 6/13/2005 30 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               37,869$                 29,492$               138,761$         ‐$                            

10352 12/21/2016 6 115 ‐$                         ‐$                               2,263$                   8,176$                 ‐$                      ‐$                            
10317A 11/18/2015 36 45 ‐$                         ‐$                               16,682$                 27,831$               40,615$           ‐$                            
10254A 6/18/2014 4 5 ‐$                         ‐$                               8,548$                   30,888$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
1031 5/10/2000 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               198,725$               491,751$             785,754$         ‐$                            
627 10/16/1996 0 4133 ‐$                         ‐$                               102,241$               252,998$             404,258$         ‐$                            
2524 12/11/2006 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2752 4/12/2010 263 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2563 5/21/2007 10 29 ‐$                         ‐$                               12,514$                 602$                    40,219$           ‐$                            
2637 8/11/2008 2 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               6,421$                   22,090$               19,820$           ‐$                            
2534 3/12/2007 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               36,864$                 100,961$             114,833$         ‐$                            
10330A 6/22/2016 9 221 ‐$                         ‐$                               13,111$                 32,445$               51,842$           ‐$                            
10389 2/21/2018 25 55 ‐$                         ‐$                               2,358$                   988$                    7,287$              ‐$                            
10189 2/19/2013 285 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               326,838$               853,961$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
10419A 8/28/2019 2 16 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            10,084$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
2491 6/12/2006 135 165 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10350A 10/26/2016 2 65 ‐$                         ‐$                               2,535$                   9,162$                 6,862$              ‐$                            
10434 5/27/2020 90 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10433 3/25/2020 5 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               101,697$               667,270$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
2596 1/17/2008 6 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               6,475$                   22,277$               19,988$           ‐$                            
10291 5/20/2015 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10621 4/28/2021 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10140 8/14/2002 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10194 3/25/2013 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10342 8/24/2016 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10134 8/14/2002 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            

Coca‐Cola Beverages
Column Development/L&W Supply
Conventus Partners, LP
DNC 250, Inc.
DTE Tonawanda, LLC
David Gordon/Gordon Companies, Inc./Colvin Oakdale, LLC

Child & Family Services of Erie County

Enidine Incorporated
Episcopal Church Home & Affiliates Life Care Community, 
Inc.
Flexo‐Transparent, Inc.
Flexovit USA, Inc.
Flying Bison Brewing Co.
General Motors Corporation

Derby Warehousing, LLC/KPM Exceptional
Derrick Corporation
Duke HN New York, LLC, Health Now
Eastman Machine Company
Ebenezer Railcar Services, Inc.
Elmwood Square Housing

Great Lakes Orthodontics, Ltd.
Group V Real Estate, Inc./Athenex Pharma Solutions
HARBORcenter Development, LLC
Hertel Pacific, LLC/Cypress North Corp.
Hydro‐Air Components, Inc.
Iroquois Bar Corporation

General Motors Corporation
General Motors Corporation/GM Powertrain Group
General Motors, LLC
General Welding & Fabricating, Inc.
Gerspach Properties, LLC
Goya Foods, Inc.

Joint Schools Construction Board 2013 Refunding of 2009A 
Joint Schools Construction Board Series 2016A
Joint Schools Construction Project

Iskalo 6700 Transit Road, LLC
Jemal's Seneca, LLC
John Goller/Arrow Grinding, Inc.
Joint Schools Construction Board
Joint Schools Construction Board
Joint Schools Construction Board 2012A Refinance

30

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 33 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code
Date Project 
Approved

Estimate of jobs 
to be created

Estimate of 
jobs to be 
retained

State Sales Tax 
Exemption

Local Sales Tax 
Exemption

County Real 
Property Tax 
Exemption

Local Property 
Tax Exemption

School 
Property Tax 
Exemption

Mortgage 
Recording Tax 
ExemptionProject Name

10435A 6/24/2020 1 12 601$                   714$                         6,288$                   10,320$               21,865$           ‐$                            
2523 12/11/2006 20 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               1,835$                   2,870$                 5,404$              ‐$                            
10331 6/22/2016 1 50 ‐$                         ‐$                               2,582$                   4,039$                 7,606$              ‐$                            
10009 10/18/2010 25 176 ‐$                         ‐$                               29,415$                 106,291$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
2656 10/20/2008 0 475 ‐$                         ‐$                               3,007$                   1,592$                 11,242$           ‐$                            
2680 4/20/2009 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               3,483$                   1,844$                 13,023$           ‐$                            
2511 8/14/2006 100 280 ‐$                         ‐$                               16,487$                 26,828$               52,166$           ‐$                            
2675 3/9/2009 50 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               4,845$                   3,657$                 17,595$           ‐$                            
10404 2/27/2019 0 5 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2566 6/11/2007 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               4,141$                   6,796$                 14,399$           ‐$                            
10209A 5/20/2013 23 457 ‐$                         ‐$                               9,983$                   7,536$                 36,254$           ‐$                            
10216 3/12/2003 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2426 4/10/2006 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               3,362$                   162$                    9,947$              ‐$                            
10356A 3/22/2017 69 288 ‐$                         ‐$                               18,267$                 879$                    53,940$           ‐$                            
10093 8/15/2011 35 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               22,753$                 1,095$                 67,189$           ‐$                            
2619 4/14/2008 70 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               10,474$                 504$                    35,855$           ‐$                            
2574 8/13/2007 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               14,886$                 717$                    43,954$           ‐$                            
2454 3/13/2006 20 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               39,472$                 142,630$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
10390A 5/23/2018 5 49 ‐$                         ‐$                               1,936$                   811$                    5,024$              ‐$                            
1062 7/21/1999 21 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               18,605$                 67,227$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10064 5/16/2011 14 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               14,634$                 22,887$               43,102$           ‐$                            
10234 1/29/2014 8 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               6,025$                   21,775$               16,308$           ‐$                            
2481 6/12/2006 140 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               9,560$                   14,951$               29,233$           ‐$                            
10256 7/16/2014 7 42 ‐$                         ‐$                               46,397$                 35,026$               168,499$         ‐$                            
2404 9/12/2005 118 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               143,466$               108,305$             521,025$         ‐$                            
2516 11/2/2006 150 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
1036 5/15/2002 600 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2579 9/10/2007 5 285 ‐$                         ‐$                               5,467$                   8,837$                 14,186$           ‐$                            
10354 2/22/2017 12 15 ‐$                         ‐$                               10,382$                 25,690$               41,049$           ‐$                            
10212 6/17/2013 5 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               4,299$                   14,789$               13,269$           ‐$                            

10689 7/28/2021 15 125 129,160$            153,378$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
2478 5/8/2006 15 80 ‐$                         ‐$                               7,593$                   5,732$                 27,574$           ‐$                            
10393A 6/27/2018 14 43 ‐$                         ‐$                               10,057$                 36,339$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10211 6/17/2013 45 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               42,489$                 153,531$             ‐$                      ‐$                            
2520 11/13/2006 2 45 ‐$                         ‐$                               3,520$                   12,719$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10420 10/23/2019 40 100 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          145,327$         ‐$                            
10269 10/22/2014 6 14 ‐$                         ‐$                               3,268$                   11,810$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10341A 8/24/2016 10 45 ‐$                         ‐$                               12,641$                 20,747$               43,955$           ‐$                            
10292A 6/16/2015 10 70 ‐$                         ‐$                               8,002$                   13,133$               27,824$           ‐$                            
10700 9/22/2021 6 41 6,754$                8,020$                      ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            

Kamax, LLC/Raine Logistics
Kohler Awning, Inc.
Kohler Awning, Inc.

Mayer Brothers Apple Products, Inc.
McGard, LLC
Medaille College 2013 Refunding of ECIDA 2003 Bond
Moog Inc. Plant 6A and 2C
Moog, Inc.
Moog, Inc.

Lco Building, LLC
Life Technologies Corporation
Life Technologies, Inc.
Luminescent Systems, Inc. (""LSI"")
MJM Industries, Inc.
Marina Vista Apartments

North American Salt Company
Northstar Services, LLC
Orchard Heights, Inc.
Orchard Park CCRC, Inc.
Our Lady of Victory Renaissance Corporation
People, Inc.

Moog, Inc. Plant 11D
Moog, Inc. Plant 20
New Era Cap Company, Inc.
Niagara Label/12715 Lewis Road, LLC
Niagara Maryland Development, LLC
Niagara Transformer Corporation

Richardson Center Corporation/Richardson Olmsted 
Rigidized Metals Corp.
Rosina Food Products, Inc.
SelectOne RE Holdings
Shell Fab
Shevlin Land & Cattle Company

Perry's Ice Cream Company, Inc.
Pine Pharmaceuticals
Pollock Research & Design d/b/a Simmers Crane Design & 
Services
Polymer Conversions, Inc.
Polymer Conversions, Inc.
ROAR Logistics, LLC

Skycatcher Holdings, LLC

31

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 34 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code
Date Project 
Approved

Estimate of jobs 
to be created

Estimate of 
jobs to be 
retained

State Sales Tax 
Exemption

Local Sales Tax 
Exemption

County Real 
Property Tax 
Exemption

Local Property 
Tax Exemption

School 
Property Tax 
Exemption

Mortgage 
Recording Tax 
ExemptionProject Name

10421 11/20/2019 0 3 ‐$                         ‐$                               38,743$                 140,030$             104,872$         ‐$                            
10422 11/1/2020 0 3 ‐$                         ‐$                               9,686$                   35,008$               26,218$           ‐$                            
10430A 3/25/2020 20 604 16,019$              19,022$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10410A 3/27/2019 18 564 ‐$                         ‐$                               37,310$                 1,796$                 119,910$         ‐$                            
10586 1/27/2021 40 5 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      86,250$                 
10360A 4/26/2017 0 1241 ‐$                         ‐$                               8,190$                   20,267$               28,457$           ‐$                            
10706 10/27/2021 0 1399 305,250$            362,485$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10620 3/24/2021 18 13 12,332$              14,644$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10192 2/19/2013 8 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               5,550$                   2,141$                 16,189$           ‐$                            
10295A 8/18/2015 0 511 ‐$                         ‐$                               48,704$                 76,172$               133,855$         ‐$                            
10565 1/27/2021 60 807 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10564 12/16/2020 60 818 267,261$            317,373$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10418 8/28/2019 20 103 30,323$              36,008$                    ‐$                            267,163$             200,085$         ‐$                            
10221 9/16/2013 35 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               64,665$                 160,015$             255,684$         ‐$                            
10328A 5/26/2015 35 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               26,776$                 41,877$               96,705$           ‐$                            
10260A 8/19/2014 25 268 ‐$                         ‐$                               7,222$                   17,871$               28,555$           ‐$                            
10362A 4/26/2017 25 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               32,305$                 79,939$               127,732$         ‐$                            
10407 3/27/2019 10 27 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          85,146$           ‐$                            
10379A 8/23/2017 1 5 ‐$                         ‐$                               4,171$                   15,075$               11,290$           ‐$                            
10148A 7/16/2012 121 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               41,778$                 151,001$             113,089$         ‐$                            
2345 4/11/2005 0 20 ‐$                         ‐$                               14,582$                 52,691$               ‐$                      ‐$                            
10702 9/21/21 1 0 2,973$                3,530$                      ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10703 9/21/21 1 0 2,499$                2,968$                      ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10720 1/26/22 7 2 1,260$                1,496$                      ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10722 1/26/22 25 168 58,766$              69,785$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10723 1/26/22 5 0 119,326$            141,700$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      532,500$               
10725 3/23/22 1 0 913$                   1,085$                      ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10727 4/27/22 11 0 2,611$                3,101$                      ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      30,937$                 
10740 7/27/22 2 12 70$                      83$                           ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      19,890$                 
10746 7/27/22 4 5 15,282$              18,148$                    ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      39,375$                 
10751 7/27/22 15 363 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10758 10/26/22 0 3 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10759 8/24/22 37 0 85,141$              101,105$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      120,000$               
10772 12/21/22 18 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            
10730 4/27/22 0 0 ‐$                         ‐$                               ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            

10469 11/17/21 17 0 162,938$            193,489$                 ‐$                            ‐$                          ‐$                      ‐$                            

Sumitomo Rubber USA, Inc.
Sumotomo Rubber
Surmet Ceramics
The Kittinger Company
The Uniland Partnership of Delaware, LP
Thermo Fisher North Expansion

Steel Winds I Replacement
Steel Winds II Replacement
Steuben Foods, Inc.
Steuben Foods, Inc.
Sucro Real Eastate/Sweet Life

Unifrax Line 7
WNY Foreign Trade Zone Operations/Punto Franco Ltd.
Welded Tube
Zion Holdings, LLC/Buffalo Clinical Research Center, LLC
George Lewis House Apartments
Walcot Apartments

Thermo Fisher West Expansion
Time Release Properties/Time Release Sciences, Inc.
Tonawanda Pirson, LLC/Wythe Will Tzetzo
Trahwen‐G, LLC
Unifrax 1, LLC
Unifrax 1, LLC

Great Point Studios Buffalo

380 Vulcan / Carrier Terminal Services
Perry's Ice Cream
Tonawanda Towers
Laborers Way 1, LLC
Second Warehouse 132 Dingens Street LLC
Joint Schools Construction Board/City School District of the 
City of Buffalo ‐ 2022 series

Broadway Development & Management Group, LLC
Arbor Multi Family Lending
791 Washington Street, LLC
471 Elmwood Ave
Worksport
A&A Union Road, LLC 

32

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 35 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code
County PILOT     

Payments Made
Local PILOT         

Payments Made
School District PILOT 
Payments Made

County PILOT     
Payments Due

Local PILOT         
Payments Due

School District PILOT 
Payments Due

2682 1,904$                              6,881$                              ‐$                                       1,904$                              6,881$                              ‐$                                      
10676 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2360 6,560$                              20,271$                            ‐$                                       6,560$                              20,271$                            ‐$                                      
10411 ‐$                                       11,125$                            ‐$                                       ‐$                                       11,125$                            ‐$                                      
2405 841$                                  1,316$                              6,747$                              841$                                  1,316$                              6,747$                             
10671 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10672 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2583 30,170$                            109,016$                          ‐$                                       30,170$                            109,016$                          ‐$                                      
10432 176$                                  133$                                  638$                                  176$                                  133$                                  638$                                 
10230 7,942$                              28,698$                            ‐$                                       7,942$                              28,698$                            ‐$                                      
10376 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10231A 146,388$                          528,965$                          ‐$                                       146,388$                          528,965$                          ‐$                                      
2515 3,545$                              5,545$                              9,743$                              3,545$                              5,545$                              9,743$                             
10203 6,156$                              15,234$                            35,609$                            6,156$                              15,234$                            35,609$                           
10355A 26,486$                            41,424$                            28,867$                            26,486$                            41,424$                            28,867$                           
10372 3,840$                              15,563$                            ‐$                                       3,840$                              15,563$                            ‐$                                      
10583 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       7,506$                              ‐$                                       ‐$                                       7,506$                             
10524 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       15,820$                            ‐$                                       ‐$                                       15,820$                           
10339 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10285A 7,072$                              11,061$                            20,830$                            7,072$                              11,061$                            20,830$                           
10298 5,066$                              12,536$                            20,030$                            5,066$                              12,536$                            20,030$                           
2479 12,028$                            83,615$                            ‐$                                       12,028$                            83,615$                            ‐$                                      
2616 12,776$                            19,982$                            ‐$                                       12,776$                            19,982$                            ‐$                                      
10359A 1,002$                              1,620$                              2,601$                              1,002$                              1,620$                              2,601$                             
1742 7,500$                              42,500$                            ‐$                                       7,500$                              42,500$                            ‐$                                      
10208 1,165$                              879$                                  4,229$                              1,165$                              879$                                  4,229$                             
10663 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10074 5,066$                              3,825$                              18,399$                            5,066$                              3,825$                              18,399$                           

10429 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2456 3,798$                              9,398$                              ‐$                                       3,798$                              9,398$                              ‐$                                      
10413 917$                                  3,116$                              2,988$                              917$                                  3,116$                              2,988$                             
2674 8,863$                              32,025$                            ‐$                                       8,863$                              32,025$                            ‐$                                      
10701 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10622 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10408 1,488$                              2,443$                              5,175$                              1,488$                              2,443$                              5,175$                             
10582 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10340A 3,045$                              4,762$                              8,367$                              3,045$                              4,762$                              8,367$                             
2591 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
860 128,916$                          100,399$                          455,676$                          128,916$                          100,399$                          455,676$                         
10585 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       9,591$                              ‐$                                       ‐$                                       9,591$                             
1035 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      

283 Ship Canal Parkway
293 Grote Street
315 Ship Canal Parkway, LLC
3310 Benzing Road/Marathon Drains/MRP Supports
337 Ellicott Street, LLC/Big Ditch Brewing Company
467 Richmond Avenue

Project Name
1093 Group/Family Dollar
132 Dingens Street/Pinto Construction
2009 Shoreline Apartments LLC
201 Ellicott, LLC/Braymiller Market
2300 Clinton Street Holdings, LLC/ Pol ‐Tek Industries

75 Pirson Parkway
791 Washington Street, LLC/Trico Building
93 NYRPT, LLC
95 Pirson Parkway, LLC
9505 Main Street, LLC ‐ Cobey
API Heat Transfer, Inc.

500 Seneca Street, LLC
5001 Genesee Street, LLC / Niagara National, Inc.
555 Riverwalk Parkway, LLC
570 Associates VI, LLC
683 Northland Avenue/Workforce Training Center
72 East Niagara Street

Braxner, LLC
Buffalo Material Handling
Buffalo Recycling Enterprises, LLC
Bullis Road Solar
Bush Lofts
CPI Process Systems, Inc.

Aakron Rule Corporation
Asbury Development, LP/Righteous Babe Records
Automated Machine Technologies, Inc.
BLD VII, LLC
BP Southtowns Campus, LLC, JP Southtowns Campus, LLC & B&S 
Southtowns Campus Group, LLC
Baracolo Buffalo LLC

Calspan Corporation
Calspan Corporation
Canisius High School
Canterbury Woods
Chestnut Point LLC
Child & Family Services of Erie County

33

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 36 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code
County PILOT     

Payments Made
Local PILOT         

Payments Made
School District PILOT 
Payments Made

County PILOT     
Payments Due

Local PILOT         
Payments Due

School District PILOT 
Payments DueProject Name

10699 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10394 3,588$                              5,612$                              10,569$                            3,588$                              5,612$                              10,569$                           
10198A 228,691$                          826,361$                          ‐$                                       228,691$                          826,361$                          ‐$                                      
10225 40,729$                            147,172$                          ‐$                                       40,729$                            147,172$                          ‐$                                      
1014 25,387$                            62,822$                            196,112$                          25,387$                            62,822$                            196,112$                         
10286A 5,341$                              8,353$                              14,731$                            5,341$                              8,353$                              14,731$                           
10415A ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10054 4,801$                              7,508$                              ‐$                                       4,801$                              7,508$                              ‐$                                      
2361 198,403$                          716,918$                          ‐$                                       198,403$                          716,918$                          ‐$                                      
10535 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10395A 2,973$                              4,879$                              10,337$                            2,973$                              4,879$                              10,337$                           
10504 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2544 2,012$                              1,519$                              7,306$                              2,012$                              1,519$                              7,306$                             
2342 37,869$                            29,492$                            138,761$                          37,869$                            29,492$                            138,761$                         
10352 453$                                  2,453$                              ‐$                                       453$                                  2,453$                              ‐$                                      
10317A 4,126$                              6,884$                              10,583$                            4,126$                              6,884$                              10,583$                           
10254A 4,496$                              16,248$                            ‐$                                       4,496$                              16,248$                            ‐$                                      
1031 46,740$                            115,660$                          259,927$                          46,740$                            115,660$                          259,927$                         
627 57,093$                            138,622$                          217,036$                          57,093$                            138,622$                          217,036$                         
2524 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2752 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2563 6,404$                              308$                                  20,581$                            6,404$                              308$                                  20,581$                           
2637 3,578$                              12,311$                            11,046$                            3,578$                              12,311$                            11,046$                           
2534 18,566$                            50,849$                            57,835$                            18,566$                            50,849$                            57,835$                           
10330A 2,622$                              6,489$                              10,368$                            2,622$                              6,489$                              10,368$                           
10389 236$                                  99$                                    1,457$                              236$                                  99$                                    1,457$                             
10189 69,261$                            268,498$                          ‐$                                       69,261$                            268,498$                          ‐$                                      
10419A ‐$                                       2,807$                              ‐$                                       ‐$                                       2,807$                              ‐$                                      
2491 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10350A 728$                                  3,449$                              2,583$                              728$                                  3,449$                              2,583$                             
10434 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10433 101,697$                          667,270$                          ‐$                                       101,697$                          667,270$                          ‐$                                      
2596 4,997$                              17,191$                            15,424$                            4,997$                              17,191$                            15,424$                           
10291 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10621 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10140 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10194 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10342 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10134 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10435A 2,689$                              4,412$                              9,348$                              2,689$                              4,412$                              9,348$                             
2523 1,001$                              1,566$                              2,950$                              1,001$                              1,566$                              2,950$                             
10331 775$                                  1,212$                              2,282$                              775$                                  1,212$                              2,282$                             

Coca‐Cola Beverages
Column Development/L&W Supply
Conventus Partners, LP
DNC 250, Inc.
DTE Tonawanda, LLC
David Gordon/Gordon Companies, Inc./Colvin Oakdale, LLC

Enidine Incorporated
Episcopal Church Home & Affiliates Life Care Community, Inc.
Flexo‐Transparent, Inc.
Flexovit USA, Inc.
Flying Bison Brewing Co.
General Motors Corporation

Derby Warehousing, LLC/KPM Exceptional
Derrick Corporation
Duke HN New York, LLC, Health Now
Eastman Machine Company
Ebenezer Railcar Services, Inc.
Elmwood Square Housing

Great Lakes Orthodontics, Ltd.
Group V Real Estate, Inc./Athenex Pharma Solutions
HARBORcenter Development, LLC
Hertel Pacific, LLC/Cypress North Corp.
Hydro‐Air Components, Inc.
Iroquois Bar Corporation

General Motors Corporation
General Motors Corporation/GM Powertrain Group
General Motors, LLC
General Welding & Fabricating, Inc.
Gerspach Properties, LLC
Goya Foods, Inc.

Joint Schools Construction Board 2013 Refunding of 2009A Bonds
Joint Schools Construction Board Series 2016A
Joint Schools Construction Project
Kamax, LLC/Raine Logistics
Kohler Awning, Inc.
Kohler Awning, Inc.

Iskalo 6700 Transit Road, LLC
Jemal's Seneca, LLC
John Goller/Arrow Grinding, Inc.
Joint Schools Construction Board
Joint Schools Construction Board
Joint Schools Construction Board 2012A Refinance

34

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 37 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code
County PILOT     

Payments Made
Local PILOT         

Payments Made
School District PILOT 
Payments Made

County PILOT     
Payments Due

Local PILOT         
Payments Due

School District PILOT 
Payments DueProject Name

10009 11,253$                            13,471$                            ‐$                                       11,253$                            13,471$                            ‐$                                      
2656 1,547$                              819$                                  5,785$                              1,547$                              819$                                  5,785$                             
2680 1,407$                              745$                                  6,553$                              1,407$                              745$                                  6,553$                             
2511 8,243$                              13,414$                            52,166$                            8,243$                              13,414$                            52,166$                           
2675 3,804$                              2,871$                              13,813$                            3,804$                              2,871$                              13,813$                           
10404 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2566 3,173$                              5,208$                              11,034$                            3,173$                              5,208$                              11,034$                           
10209A 3,164$                              2,389$                              36,254$                            3,164$                              2,389$                              36,254$                           
10216 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2426 1,852$                              89$                                    5,524$                              1,852$                              89$                                    5,524$                             
10356A 1,827$                              88$                                    5,394$                              1,827$                              88$                                    5,394$                             
10093 6,954$                              335$                                  20,570$                            6,954$                              335$                                  20,570$                           
2619 5,408$                              260$                                  18,478$                            5,408$                              260$                                  18,478$                           
2574 7,614$                              367$                                  22,527$                            7,614$                              367$                                  22,527$                           
2454 28,033$                            142,630$                          ‐$                                       28,033$                            142,630$                          ‐$                                      
10390A 194$                                  81$                                    502$                                  194$                                  81$                                    502$                                 
1062 18,605$                            67,227$                            ‐$                                       18,605$                            67,227$                            ‐$                                      
10064 4,961$                              7,759$                              14,612$                            4,961$                              7,759$                              14,612$                           
10234 1,807$                              21,775$                            16,308$                            1,807$                              21,775$                            16,308$                           
2481 5,971$                              9,338$                              29,233$                            5,971$                              9,338$                              29,233$                           
10256 13,919$                            10,508$                            50,550$                            13,919$                            10,508$                            50,550$                           
2404 109,306$                          82,605$                            446,412$                          109,306$                          82,605$                            446,412$                         
2516 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
1036 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2579 2,741$                              4,430$                              7,112$                              2,741$                              4,430$                              7,112$                             
10354 4,290$                              10,616$                            16,962$                            4,290$                              10,616$                            16,962$                           
10212 1,248$                              4,295$                              5,031$                              1,248$                              4,295$                              5,031$                             
10689 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
2478 3,824$                              2,887$                              13,888$                            3,824$                              2,887$                              13,888$                           
10393A 1,474$                              5,326$                              ‐$                                       1,474$                              5,326$                              ‐$                                      
10211 13,983$                            50,525$                            ‐$                                       13,983$                            50,525$                            ‐$                                      
2520 2,142$                              7,739$                              ‐$                                       2,142$                              7,739$                              ‐$                                      
10420 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       21,873$                            ‐$                                       ‐$                                       21,873$                           
10269 1,609$                              6,562$                              ‐$                                       1,609$                              6,562$                              ‐$                                      
10341A 3,070$                              5,039$                              14,836$                            3,070$                              5,039$                              14,836$                           
10292A 2,777$                              4,557$                              9,655$                              2,777$                              4,557$                              9,655$                             
10700 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10421 27,424$                            98,676$                            73,901$                            27,424$                            98,676$                            73,901$                           
10422 6,856$                              24,669$                            18,475$                            6,856$                              24,669$                            18,475$                           
10430A ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10410A 3,731$                              180$                                  11,991$                            3,731$                              180$                                  11,991$                           
10586 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      

Mayer Brothers Apple Products, Inc.
McGard, LLC
Medaille College 2013 Refunding of ECIDA 2003 Bond
Moog Inc. Plant 6A and 2C
Moog, Inc.
Moog, Inc.

Lco Building, LLC
Life Technologies Corporation
Life Technologies, Inc.
Luminescent Systems, Inc. (""LSI"")
MJM Industries, Inc.
Marina Vista Apartments

North American Salt Company
Northstar Services, LLC
Orchard Heights, Inc.
Orchard Park CCRC, Inc.
Our Lady of Victory Renaissance Corporation
People, Inc.

Moog, Inc. Plant 11D
Moog, Inc. Plant 20
New Era Cap Company, Inc.
Niagara Label/12715 Lewis Road, LLC
Niagara Maryland Development, LLC
Niagara Transformer Corporation

Richardson Center Corporation/Richardson Olmsted Complex
Rigidized Metals Corp.
Rosina Food Products, Inc.
SelectOne RE Holdings
Shell Fab
Shevlin Land & Cattle Company

Perry's Ice Cream Company, Inc.
Pine Pharmaceuticals
Pollock Research & Design d/b/a Simmers Crane Design & Services
Polymer Conversions, Inc.
Polymer Conversions, Inc.
ROAR Logistics, LLC

Skycatcher Holdings, LLC
Steel Winds I Replacement
Steel Winds II Replacement
Steuben Foods, Inc.
Steuben Foods, Inc.
Sucro Real Eastate/Sweet Life

35

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 38 of 39



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY       

Nonaccounting Information ‐ Schedule of Bond,
Note, and Lease Transactions

December 31, 2022

Project Code
County PILOT     

Payments Made
Local PILOT         

Payments Made
School District PILOT 
Payments Made

County PILOT     
Payments Due

Local PILOT         
Payments Due

School District PILOT 
Payments DueProject Name

10360A 819$                                  2,027$                              5,691$                              819$                                  2,027$                              5,691$                             
10706 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10620 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10192 5,045$                              1,946$                              14,717$                            5,045$                              1,946$                              14,717$                           
10295A 17,311$                            27,074$                            47,576$                            17,311$                            27,074$                            47,576$                           
10565 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10564 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10418 ‐$                                       148,824$                          111,458$                          ‐$                                       148,824$                          111,458$                         
10221 22,510$                            55,702$                            89,005$                            22,510$                            55,702$                            89,005$                           
10328A 11,331$                            17,722$                            39,098$                            11,331$                            17,722$                            39,098$                           
10260A 1,565$                              3,872$                              8,983$                              1,565$                              3,872$                              8,983$                             
10362A 8,411$                              20,812$                            45,065$                            8,411$                              20,812$                            45,065$                           
10407 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       8,515$                              ‐$                                       ‐$                                       8,515$                             
10379A 417$                                  3,015$                              2,258$                              417$                                  3,015$                              2,258$                             
10148A 8,362$                              43,642$                            32,684$                            8,362$                              43,642$                            32,684$                           
2345 8,385$                              52,691$                            ‐$                                       8,385$                              52,691$                            ‐$                                      
10702 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10703 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10720 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10722 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10723 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10725 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10727 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10740 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10746 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10751 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10758 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10759 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10772 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      
10730 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      

10469 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                      

Sumitomo Rubber USA, Inc.
Sumotomo Rubber
Surmet Ceramics
The Kittinger Company
The Uniland Partnership of Delaware, LP
Thermo Fisher North Expansion

Unifrax Line 7
WNY Foreign Trade Zone Operations/Punto Franco Ltd.
Welded Tube
Zion Holdings, LLC/Buffalo Clinical Research Center, LLC
George Lewis House Apartments
Walcot Apartments

Thermo Fisher West Expansion
Time Release Properties/Time Release Sciences, Inc.
Tonawanda Pirson, LLC/Wythe Will Tzetzo
Trahwen‐G, LLC
Unifrax 1, LLC
Unifrax 1, LLC

Great Point Studios Buffalo

380 Vulcan / Carrier Terminal Services
Perry's Ice Cream
Tonawanda Towers
Laborers Way 1, LLC
Second Warehouse 132 Dingens Street LLC
Joint Schools Construction Board/City School District of the City of Buffalo ‐ 
2022 series

Broadway Development & Management Group, LLC
Arbor Multi Family Lending
791 Washington Street, LLC
471 Elmwood Ave
Worksport
A&A Union Road, LLC 

36

COMM. 10M-2 
Page 39 of 39



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10M-3  NYSERDA  
Notice of Intent to Undertake an Action
Within an Agricultural District - RPNY Solar
11, LLC's Two Rod Road Project in the Town
of Marilla

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10M-3



COMM. 10M-3 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/11/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 10M-4  NYSERDA  
Notice of Intent to Undertake an Action
Within an Agricultural District - RPNY Solar
10, LLC's Stolle Road Solar Project in the
Town of Marilla

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 10M-4



COMM. 10M-4 
Page 1 of 1


	Agenda
	AI 442 Minutes for Meeting No. 8
	       ATT_Minutes for Meeting No. 8 
	WHEREAS, New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) has awarded regional energy hub grants to community-based organizations across the state, with the Western New York Clean Energy Hub being awarded to People United for Sustain...
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

	AI 443 Minutes for Meeting No. 9
	       ATT_Minutes for Meeting No. 9
	AI 378 Celebrating and Honoring National Nurses Week
	       ATT_NATIONAL NURSES WEEK
	AI 379 Recognizing Apraxia Awareness Day
	       ATT_APRAXIA AWARENESS DAY
	AI 404 Honoring the Elwood Jordans Insurance Agency as the Alden Chamber of Commerce 2023 Business of the Year
	       ATT_ELWOOD JORDANS INSURANCE
	AI 405 Recognizing Coach McKenzie Bezon, 2023 All-Bee Girlsâ€™ Basketball Coach of the Year
	       ATT_COACH BEZON
	AI 406 Honoring Tyler DeKruger on Achieving the Rank of Eagle Scout
	       ATT_TYLER DEKRUGER
	AI 407 Honoring Luciano Grande on Achieving the Rank of Eagle Scout
	       ATT_LUCIANO GRANDE
	AI 408 Honoring Eric Frys on Achieving the Rank of Eagle Scout
	       ATT_ERIC FRYS
	AI 421 Acknowledging and Honoring Geoffrey and Robin Klein
	       ATT_GEOFFREY and ROBIN KLEIN
	AI 422 Honoring and Recognizing The Phi Omega Chapter of Omega Psi Phi Fraternity, Inc. â€“ 100th Year Anniversary
	       ATT_PHI OMEGA
	AI 423 Honoring Gary Schautt â€“ Celebrating 50 Years of Service with the Eggertsville Hose Company
	       ATT_GARY SCHAUTT
	AI 424 Recognizing Military Appreciation Month 2023
	       ATT_MILITARY APPRECIATION
	AI 425 Honoring Past Fire Chief John Daniels â€“ 50 Years of Service with the Eggertsville Hose Company
	       ATT_JOHN DANIELS
	AI 426 Recognizing National Blood Pressure Month - May 2023
	       ATT_BLOOD PRESSURE MONTH
	AI 427 Honoring National Lupus Awareness Month - May 2023
	       ATT_LUPUS MONTH
	AI 428 Acknowledging Shai Arnold and For Grieving Daughters Organization Celebrating 4th Annual Motherless-Daughter Brunch
	       ATT_SHAI ARNOLD
	AI 429 Honoring Brothers of Mercy Wellness Campus on National Nursing Home Week
	       ATT_MERCY WELLNESS
	AI 430 Honoring and Congratulating Police Officer Keith Felgemacher on His Retirement
	       ATT_KEITH FELGEMACHER
	AI 431 Honoring and Congratulating Amherst Police Officer Scott Banning on His Retirement
	       ATT_SCOTT BANNING
	AI 432 Honoring the Cystic Fibrosis Association of Western New York and Recognizing Cystic Fibrosis Awareness Month in Erie County
	       ATT_CYSTIC FIBROSIS
	AI 433 Recognizing Lyme WNY During Lyme Disease Awareness Month
	       ATT_LYME WNY
	AI 434 Honoring Fox Run at Orchard Park on National Nursing Home Week
	       ATT_FOX RUN-NURSING HOME WEEK
	AI 435 Honoring the Jennie B. Richmond Nursing Home During National Nursing Home Week
	       ATT_JENNIE B. NURSING HOME
	AI 436 Celebrating the Wayland Brewing Company on Its Grand Opening
	       ATT_WAYLAND BREWING
	AI 437 Recognizing the Correctional Officers at the Erie County Holding Center During National Correctional Officersâ€™ Week May 7-13, 2023
	       ATT_CORRECTIONAL HOLDING CENTER
	AI 438 Recognizing the Correctional Officers at the Erie County Correctional Facility During National Correctional Officersâ€™ Week May 7-13, 2023
	       ATT_CORRECTIONAL FACILITY
	AI 439 Honoring Stanley Brown for Serving Our Country and Community
	       ATT_STANLEY BROWN
	AI 440 Congratulating Anna Tavernier for Winning the 2023 Youth of the Year Competition
	       ATT_ANNA TAVERNIER
	AI 441 Honoring Christopher Gust for Being Named Alden Chamber of Commerce 2023 Citizen of the Year
	       ATT_CHRISTOPHER GUST
	AI 380 A Local Law Authorizing Twelve and Thirteen-Year-Old Licensed Hunters to Hunt Deer with a Firearm or Crossbow During Hunting Season with the Supervision of a Licensed Adult
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 1-1 (2022)
	AI 381 The Erie County Language Access Act
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 3-1 (2022)
	AI 382 The Occupancy Tax Modernization Act
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 3-1 (2023)
	AI 384 The Public Art Act of Erie County
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 2-2 (2023)
	AI 418 The Service-Disabled Veterans Utilization Act
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 5-1
	AI 385 Report No. 6 Public Safety Committee
	       ATT_PS Report No. 6
	AI 386 Report No. 6 Economic Development Committee
	       ATT_ED Report No. 6
	AI 413 RENEW Plan Funding Re-Allocation
	       ATT_23INTRO. 10-1
	AI 414 Supporting the Separation of Policy and Financial Issues in the New York State Budget
	       ATT_23INTRO. 10-2
	AI 416 Supporting Kyraâ€™s Law in the New York State Senate and Assembly
	       ATT_INTRO. 10-3
	AI 415 23COMM. 4E-9  DISCHARGE
	       ATT_23COMM. 4E-9
	AI 419 Proposed Amendment to COMM. 4E-9 (2023)
	       ATT_Proposed Amendment to COMM. 4E-9 (2023)
	AI 417 23COMM. 6E-10
	       ATT_23COMM. 6E-10
	AI 420 Proposed Amendment to COMM. 6E-10 (2023)
	       ATT_Proposed Amendment to COMM. 6E-10 (2023)
	AI 373 EC Sheriff's Office - NYS Canal Corporation Marine Patrol Grant
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-1
	AI 374 Letter of Absence for Session No. 9 -. May 4, 2023
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-2
	AI 375 Submission Pursuant to EC Code of Ethics (Local Law #2 -2018), Disclosure of Family Members Employed by Any Government Organization
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-3
	AI 387 Interim Financial Report of Erie County
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-4
	AI 390 Constituent Concern
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-5
	AI 391 Submission Pursuant to EC Code of Ethics (Local Law #2 -2018), Disclosure of Family Members Employed by Any Government Organization
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-6
	AI 392 Buffalo Convention Center - Sidewalk Vault Rehabilitation Project
	AI 393 Erie County - On-Call Electrical Engineering Consultant
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-8
	AI 394 Authorization to Enter Into Contract for Rath Building - 15th Floor Amendment
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-9
	AI 395 On-Call General Civil Engineering & Land Survey Services RFP
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-10
	AI 396 Transfer of Funds to Capital Project
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-11
	AI 397 Authorization to Enter Into Contract with the Recreational Off-Highway Vehicle Association
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-12
	AI 398 Acceptance of State Aid for Safe Harbor for Sexually Exploited Children
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-13
	AI 399 Authorization to Enter Into Contract with Dr. Iram Ashraf
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-14
	AI 400 Appointment to the EC Senior Services Advisory Board
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-15
	AI 401 Authorization to Enter Into Contract for Transportation Consultant for Older Adult & Disabled Populations
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-16
	AI 402 Authorization to Award 2023 Summer Operation Primetime Contracts
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-17
	AI 403 Appointment to the EC Health Equity Advisory Board
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-18
	AI 409 Accept Donation of Sanitation Supplies
	       ATT_23COMM. 10E-19
	AI 371 February 2023 Budget Monitoring Report
	       ATT_23COMM. 10D-1
	AI 372 EC Comptroller's Office Audit of the EC Clerk's Office - Notification of Expanded Scope & Separation into Two Audits
	       ATT_23COMM. 10D-2
	AI 388 Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County
	       ATT_23COMM. 10D-3
	AI 389 Information Request Per INTRO. 7-3 (2023)
	       ATT_23COMM. 10D-4
	AI 376 Quarterly Report of Assigned Counsel Program - 1st Quarter of 2023
	       ATT_23COMM. 10M-1
	AI 377 ECIDA 2022 Annual Financial Statements
	       ATT_23COMM. 10M-2
	AI 410 Notice of Intent to Undertake an Action Within an Agricultural District - RPNY Solar 11, LLC's Two Rod Road Project in the Town of Marilla
	       ATT_23COMM. 10M-3
	AI 411 Notice of Intent to Undertake an Action Within an Agricultural District - RPNY Solar 10, LLC's Stolle Road Solar Project in the Town of Marilla
	       ATT_23COMM. 10M-4

